
15.1011.03000 

Amendment to: SB 2368 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/23/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d . t· t' . t d d t I eves an approona ions an 1c1pa e un ercurren aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017·2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill as amended creates a number of provisions pertaining to transportation network company services. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

This bill as amended will have no substantial fiscal impact on state agencies or political subdivisions. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 



Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/24/2015 



15.1011.02000 

Amendment to: SB 2368 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0212312015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
1 1 d ·r r · td d ti eves an approona ions an 1cma e un ercurren aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill as amended creates a number of provisions pertaining to transportation network company services. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

This bill as amended will have no substantial fiscal impact on state agencies or political subdivisions. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 



Name: Shannon L. Sauer 

Agency: NDDOT 

Telephone: 328-4375 

Date Prepared: 02/24/201 5 



15.1011 .01000 

Bill/Resolution No. : SB 2368 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/26/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
1 1 d · r r · td d tt eves an appropna JOns an 1cipa e un er curren aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

This bill creates a number of provisions pertaining to transportation network company services including a permit 
requirement and a related fee. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

This bill requires a transportation network company to obtain a permit from the NDDOT at an annual fee of $5,000. 
We currently have no way to determine the number of permits that might be issued under this provision or any 
related administrative costs; therefore we have no reliable way to determine the fiscal impacts associated with this 
bill. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 



Name : Shann on L. Sau er 

Age ncy: N DDOT 

Telepho ne : 328-4375 

Date P repa red : 01 /28/201 5 
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2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

SB 2368 
2/6/2015 

Recording job number 23388 

0 Subcommittee 0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To create and enact chapter 39-34 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
transportation network company services. (TNCS) 

Minutes: Attachments: 

Vice Chairman Casper opened the hearing on SB 2368 (Chairman Oehlke absent 
momentarily) and introduced the bill. TNCS thru the use of technology would offer services 
to underserved communities and offer opportunities for people to earn extra income during 
their free time. This bill will ensure clarity regarding things like insurance and driver's 
background . Offered amendment 15.1011.0100 (attachment_!1)., and explained it. (00:00-
09:35) 

Rep Thomas Beadle, District 27, co-sponsor, in support of this kind of services and that 
they should be regulated (9:37-10:12) 

Sagar Shah, General Manager, Uber Technologies, in favor of this bill, they favor balanced 
regulation that would allow free markets to bring on-demand transportation while providing 
safety for its users, see attachment# 2 (10:41-20:98) 

Mike Seminary, Mayor, Bismarck, It is important to embrace new technology and services 
that would improve quality of life for people (21 :16 -25:33) Answered questions from 
committee members regarding his experience with this kind of transportation in Denver 
Colorado. (25: 35- 32:00) 

Jason Loos, Fargo Assistant City Attorney in favor of this bill with the amendments (32 :05-
33:48) 

Joe Burgum, Fargo resident, customer of Transportation Network Companies (TNCS) , 
favors this bill , attachment #3 (34:00-38:12) 

Dale A Haake, Director, Casualty Claims, Nodak Mutual Insurance Company, opposing 
this bill, specifically the disclosure requirements and the obligations of insurers regarding 
accidents involving TNC drivers, see attachment #4 (39: 30 to 43:06) referenced HB 1144 
and answered questions from the committee (49:42 -1 :02 :51) 
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Pat Ward , Property and Casualty Insurance Association of America and the Association of 
North Dakota Insurers, opposing this bill, urged the committee to gut the insurance 
requirements and pass it as a TNC regulation statute, thus leaving HB 1144, as the 
insurance regulation statute, see attachment #5 (49:54-58:14). Distributed copies of HB 
1144 (attachment #6); copies of letters from Uber and Lift regarding excessive insurance 
requirements in California (attachment #7) ; and proposed amendment as alternative to Do 
Not Pass (attachment #8). We want legislation that will address the insurance issues to 
make sure the requirements are consistent across the board . Among our concerns is the 
insurance aspect of the employer- employee situation ; if a taxi driver has commercial 
insurance your company is ultimately responsible for what you do within the scope of your 
employment. Uber and Lift have maintained that their drivers are not employees but 
independent contractors (distributed attachment# 9, news report about a California ruling 
that Lift drivers are employees). The business model is a good idea we encourage this 
innovation but there are insurance issues that need to be worked out. (49:54-1 :04:40) 

David Boeck, Director of Legal Services, North Dakota Protection & Advocacy Project for 
the disabled; sees potential legal problems in some of the wording in this bill , i.e. "will 
comply with all applicable laws" which ones? There are issues regarding accessibility for 
the disabled: wheelchairs, scooters, walkers. I will be happy to offer amendments. 
(1 :04:42- 1 :08:30) 

Jeffrey Ubben, General Counsel and Director, ND Insurance Dept. Legal Division , neutral 
our concerns align with Mr. Wards concerns , this bill does not require a transportation 
network company to be the primary insurance carrier which could leave a gap in insurance 
coverage for personal injury protection, underinsured insurance, uninsured insurance, 
liability bodily injury, when the app is in the "on" stage and when there is no passenger in 
the car. Uber said their coverage would drop down and cover that. It is important to 
remember that this bill will deal with all transportation network companies. If Lift came in 
and didn't want to agree to what Uber agrees to, there would be nothing in the law requiring 
them to. Similarly there would be nothing in the law requiring Uber to keep this coverage; if 
they decide to not provide it. This could create burdens and confusion for consumers to 
determine who is primary in this situation, it could likely lead to the courts to decide, which 
means the expenses of litigation, attorney's fees expenses, additional burden on district 
courts which are already extremely burdened. This bill creates ambiguity as to who the 
primary insurer is; we don't think this is good for consumers. We are working on HB 1144; it 
was the first bill that came up. We offered amendments, we feel confident these gaps will 
be closed and that bill will provide vital consumer protections that are lacking in this one. 
These gaps are small gaps. (1 :08:47-1 :12:05) Yes, Chairman Oehlke we often get 
complaints for coverage denial and sometimes companies take advantage. Yes, Senator 
Axness: we have tried to find a middle ground , there are certain areas we are not willing to 
yield and primary coverage issue is one of them. There have been areas in the House Bill 
where we have agreed on. Senator Sinner issue is if app in on, Uber should be covering 
that driver and that car. The question if the app was accidentally left on (or when it is on) , 
will lead to disagreement between Uber and personal auto insurers and will end up in court 
trying to figure out who was acting in the scope of his employment when he was driving , 
was he monitoring the app? Should uber have any liability at all? Making it primary would 
make it crystal clear. (1 : 12: 17- 1: 15:25) 
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Linda Sitz, Director of the Motor Vehicle Division of the North Dakota Department of 
Transportation (DOT) (1: 15:27 relaying message from Director Grant Levi, that DOT is not 
opposed to the concept of Uber we are confused as to why under Title 39. How is DOT 
supposed to regulate what is being presented in this section of law? Are we flagging our 
motor vehicle records, driver's license records? Currently if there is a situation where law 
enforcement is involved they have the ability to get into our records and run anything on a 
driver based on the driver's license information or the motor vehicle information. What is the 
expectation on DOT? It's possible the better place for this would be through local 
government rather than the state. Tulsa, OK, the city regulates it through their secretary of 
state office; maybe chapter 8, where it talks about the carriage of persons would be a better 
spotforthis. (1:15:30-1:17:22) 

Being there no additional testimony Chairman Oehlke closed the hearing. 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

SB 2368 
2/12/2015 

Recording job number 23704 

D Subcommittee D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature /)<JU.,{} !_ '-'V'"'""-'"' 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To create and enact chapter 39-34 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
transportation network company services. 

Minutes: ent: 0 

Chairman Oehlke opened the discussion on SB 2368, all committee members were 
present. He said that the insurance end of this has a lot going on in the House right now. 
The insurance department has problems with the bill, starting with who has control, who is 
responsible. 

Vice Chairman Casper My understanding is they haven't resolved their position in the 
House yet. The bill has been amended to take out all the regulatory language. If they do 
this today I will have amendments tomorrow, we are waiting to see what they will do before 
we take any action. 

Chairman Oehlke and Senator Axness agreed that one of the options would be to 
eliminate the whole insurance aspect and focus on the regulation. The bill in the House 
deals with the insurance let them address that part and then see us in conference 
committee if necessary. 

Senator Sinner even if we passed it with an insurance provision we are going to have to 
reconcile with their bill anyway, unless they don 't do anything. We want a bill to come out of 
here that gives a chance for setting these companies up. 

Vice Chairman Casper I have a sense if this bill stays like it is it will be "dead on arrival" at 
the House. 

Chairman Oehlke if we did that and the House bill got killed, this one gets sent over and 
everything will start over because there would be no insurance regulation . Tomorrow we 
might have more information, and maybe someone from the Insurance Department can 
explain to us the critical issues. 

Meeting adjourned. 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

D Subcommittee 

SB 2368 
2/13/2015 

Recording job number 23814 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To create and enact chapter 39-34 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to transportation network company services. 

Minutes: ttachment: 1 

Chairman Oehlke opened the discussion on SB 2368, all committee members present. 
The House committee chairman said they are taking pretty much of the legislation we have 
on our bill and endorsing it into theirs. We will see the House bill here. Most of the concerns 
are not if TNCS are a good or bad idea, but with the insurance aspect. It has to do with 
people understanding what they have to do with their own insurance in order to be safe in 
case of an accident. It is one thing for another company to say we got your liability covered 
from the time you pick somebody up until you drop them off. Liability means they are 
covering the guy I am running into, what about my car? We need to address collision 
damage to my vehicle. My insurance company could say they don't cover taxi cab or livery 
operations unless I talk to them about it and have a special policy or a special 
endorsement. People need to understand that if they are going to sign up with a TNCS they 
need to be informed by that TNC to make sure they get the proper insurance endorsements 
and make sure they get proof of it. I asked Paul to put together a study (read from 
document titled Legislative Management Study- Transportation Network Company 
Services, attachment #1) The House might embrace this, 

Senator Sinner: we can put a requirement in, that the TNC must notify the primary insurer 
on the vehicle. I don't want to wait two years to allow Uber to come here, we need to work 
on this bill , pass it to the House and let them fix this. I don't support the study. 

Senator Campbell doesn't support the idea of the study either. 

Chrystal A. Bartuska, Product Filing Group, North Dakota Insurance Department, 
Chairman Oehlke we have the same concern you do, we want to ensure that the insurance 
provisions cover all the people involved. If an amendment that makes this bill a copy of the 
House bill, is the easiest way to do it, I don't know that we would have a problem with that. 
Both bills are so different, now the House is pulling chunks of the Senate bill over, I don't 
know the logistics of how that works, I would have to defer to your committee. Yes, I could 
meet with Senator Sinner and Senator Campbell and work this out. The insurance 
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department is always willing to answer questions and work with you guys on anything, 
either now or once it crosses over. 

Senator Sinner: my preference is to eliminate the insurance portion of the bill , allow the 
House bill to be amended to fit what they want instead of having two versions going back 
and forth and figuring it all out later. 

Vice Chairman Casper I was going to have an amendment drafted for today to make the 
two bills match each other. Their bill is being drafted . There are two paths, wait until we get 
the bill from them and amend it or we accept the study. My sense is their bill is going to 
pass the House. The risk is we do the study, the House bill is killed and we are left only 
with a study. Let's see what has gone on in the House and then act. 

Senator Axness I do not favor waiting for what they do and then go with that. We have 
separation of chambers we take what they did and make it better. 

Mark Nelson Deputy Director, Department of Transportation , our concern is 39-34-03 on 
page 2. DOT is not understanding how we are pulled into this as a regulatory agency. We 
are not opposed to the transportation network; we do not regulate this type of private 
business. 

Jeff Ubben, General Counsel , ND Insurance Department, This language was stricken from 
the House bill , instead they required TNCs to register with the Secretary of State. Uber is 
not an insurance company and we don't have regulatory guidelines. 

No further discussion, meeting adjourned. 



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

SB 2368 
2/19/2015 

Recording job number 24115 

D Subcommittee D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To create and enact chapter 39-34 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
transportation network company services. 

Minutes: ttachments : 3 

Chairman Oehlke opened the discussion on SB 2368. All committee members were 
present. 

Vice Chairman Casper the amendments I have here regulation will go to the Secretary of 
State not to Transportation. Distributed amendment 15.1011 .01004, Attachment #1 this 
amendment would maintain original insurance section in the bill and align regulatory 
section with the one in the current House bill section. Walked the committee thru the 
amendment (00:23- 12:23) 

Chairman Oehlke is there a tax on this service? If there is part would go back to political 
subdivisions where ride came from. 

No one in the committee knew if there is a tax on this service or not. 

Senator Axness my preference has been always to separate insurance from regulatory 

Vice Chairman Casper distributed amendment 15.1011.01003, Attachment# 2, page 3 
remove lines 1-31 , gets rid of the insurance thing. Walked the committee thru the 
amendment (13:14- 16:40) 

Chairman Oehlke but it leaves transportation drivers requirements in. 

Senator Axness: I think the insurance we removed was the TNCS coverage in relation to 
the individual. It would still require the individual to have insurance 

Chairman Oehlke read segments of driver's agreement with Uber. (16:48- 18:22) This is a 
huge disclaimer basically putting all the responsibility on the driver and none on the TNC. 
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Committee continued discussion about the level of regulation other states are undertaking. 
In some states regulation is left up to the cities and municipalities. In some there is no 
regulation. 

Pat Ward, Insurance Industry, concern continues to be the situation where the driver would 
be left with no insurance or underinsured. Most states have no legislation regulating them, 
in some it is the cities doing the regulation . These situations may lead to lengthy and costly 
litigation. (Spoke about the problem with many noncommercial insurance policies that have 
livery service exclusions) . (28:29 -33:07) 

Senator Axness: after this discussion we still have more to think and talk about. 

The other committee members agreed . 

Attachment #3 was distributed: Proposed Amendment to Senate Bill 2368 prepared by the 
North Dakota Insurance Department, 2/17 /15 

Chairman Oehlke adjourned the meeting . 
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Transportation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

SB 2368 
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Recording job 24173 

D Subcommittee D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To create and enact chapter 39-34 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
transportation network company services. 

Minutes: Attachments: f, 

Chairman Oehlke called the meeting to order. All committee members were present. The 
three "pieces of that pie": the Department of Transportation information, the Insurance 
Department part of it and the emergency clause. Cole took all of that to Tim Dawson, 
Legislative Council. We should have all of that back, late today or early tomorrow. 

Senator Sinner: we would be willing to put the Colorado plan in play. A-Hove), lhellJ~ #=I 

Vice Chairman Casper I reviewed the applicable parts for Colorado and Virginia 
legislation. Do we want to leave the insurance provision in or not? If we are going to leave it 
in where do we want to go with it? Right now my gut would be to something similar to 
Colorado and Virginia would be a middle ground, if we want to leave the insurance in. 

Senator Sinner everybody agrees the primary coverage of the driver should be provided to 
Uber. Part of the agreement should be that the primary provider is notified that this person 
is engaging in Uber business that was in most of these. 

Vice Chairman Casper it is not in the House version, which just passed. 

Chairman Oehlke closed the discussion, meeting adjourned. 
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Recording job number 24198 

D Subcommittee D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To create and enact chapter 39-34 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
transportation network company services. 

Minutes: II Attachments: 0 

Chairman Oehlke opened the discussion on SB 2368. Commercial insurance auto policies 
usually cost twice what personal auto policy. That is a random off the wall guess. That rate 
will come down if automated vehicles don't come down over uber. If the automated vehicle 
is stopped does the driver get a DUI? 

Senator Sinner who will stop it? 

Chairman Oehlke it will be a fun committee, the interim study on automated vehicles. 
We still don't have the amendments down, meeting adjourned . 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
To create and enact chapter 39-34 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
transportation network company services. 

Minutes: Attachments: O 

Chairman Oehlke opened the discussion on SB 2368. All committee members were 
present. We have amendment 15.1011 .01005. The first parts, items 1 thru 7, are 
definitions; required disclosures, insurance limits. Keep in mind TNCS doesn't necessarily 
mean Uber it could be anybody. Coverage required when the network application is 
engaged , whose liability coverage is going to be primary. May be satisfied by anyone of the 
following: page 3 section 26.1-40.1-04 If I have the app on and am waiting to pick 
somebody up then my insurance will be primary, must include underinsured , insured and 
PIP . 

Senator Sinner if app is engaged with rider in the car, section 2 applies; section 3 is app 
on with no passengers. 

Chairman Oehlke page 4, Liability of transportation network company beyond required 
liability limits. Continued highlighting the changes, stressed that the capacity of the vehicles 
will be limited, the higher capacity vehicle (number of passengers) the higher the insurance 
premium; duty to cooperate, financial responsibility , proof of insurance. Certificate of 
insurance language is important. 

Senator Sinner moved do pass on amendment 15.1011 .01005 

Vice Chairman Casper seconded the motion 

Voice vote: all committee members in favor 

Vice Chairman Casper moved do pass as amended 

Senator Campbell seconded the motion 

Roll call vote was taken: Yes 6 No 0 Absent 0 
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Carrier: Vice Chairman Casper 



15.1011 .01005 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 1 ')~~'7 
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February 20, 2015 'd 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Page 1, line 1, replace "chapter" with "chapters 26.1-40.1 and" 

Page 1, after line 3, insert: 

"SECTION 1. Chapter 26.1-40.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

26.1-40.1-01. Definitions. 

As used in this chapter and chapter 39-34. unless the context otherwise 
requires: 

.1. "Application off stage" of operation means the time period when the driver 
is operating the vehicle for personal noncommercial reasons and not 
engaged in any manner or operation for the transportation network 
company. 

2. "Application on stage" means the time period the driver is logged onto the 
online-enabled application of a transportation network company and 
available for hire but not engaged and there is no passenger on board. 

~ "Engaged stage" means the time period from the moment a participating 
driver accepts a ride request on the transportation network company 
online-enabled application or platform until the driver completes the 
transaction on the online-enabled application or platform or until the ride is 
complete. whichever is later. 

4. "Participating driver" or "driver" means any individual who uses a vehicle in 
connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled 
application or platform to connect with passengers. 

5. "Passengers on-board stage" means the time period when there are 
passengers in the vehicle pursuant to the driver's participation in a 
transportation network company. 

6. "Transportation network company" means a person operating in this state 
which provides prearranged transportation services for compensation 
using an online-enabled application or platform to connect passengers with 
drivers using a personal vehicle. 

L "Transportation network company insurance" means an insurance policy 
that covers a driver's use of a vehicle in connection with a transportation 
network company's online-enabled application or platform. 

26.1-40.1-02. Required disclosures . 

.1. A transportation network company shall disclose in writing or electronic 
form to participating drivers. as part of its agreement with those drivers, the 
insurance coverage and limits of liability that the transportation network 
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company provides while the driver uses a vehicle in connection with a 
transportation network company's online-enabled application or platform 
and shall advise a participating driver that the driver's personal automobile 
insurance policy may not provide coverage under the agreement. 

2. A transportation network company shall disclose in writing or electronic 
form to participating drivers. as part of its agreement with those drivers. of 
when the driver's personal automobile insurance policy may not provide 
collision or comprehensive coverage. under the agreement. 

3. A transportation network company shall provide notice in writing or 
electronically to the driver instructing the driver to notify the driver's 
personal automobile insurer of the driver's participation in the 
transportation network. 

26.1-40.1-03. Coverage required when transportation network company 
application is engaged until completion of ride when the passenger has exited 
the vehicle . 

.1. A transportation network company and any participating driver shall 
maintain transportation network company insurance that provides for the 
following requirements that apply to transportation network company 
insurance during the engaged stage and during the passenger on-board 
stage. 

2. Transportation network company liability insurance is primary and in the 
amount of one million dollars for death. bodily injury. and property damage. 
The requirements for the coverage required by this subdivision may be 
satisfied by any of the following : 

~ Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
participating driver. 

b. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
transportation network company. 

c. Any combination of subdivisions a and b. 

~ Transportation network company insurance coverage provided under this 
section also provides for uninsured motorist coverage and underinsured 
motorist coverage in the amount of one million dollars anytime the driver 
has transportation network company passengers on board . 

4. Transportation network company insurance coverage must provide 
personal injury protection to drivers. passengers, and pedestrians when 
required under chapter 26.1-41. 

5. The primary insurer, in the case of insurance coverage provided under 
subdivision a, has the sole duty to defend and indemnify the insured. 

6. Coverage under a transportation network company insurance policy may 
neither be dependent on a driver's personal automobile insurance policy 
carrier first denying a claim nor a personal automobile insurance policy 
carrier being required to first deny a claim. 
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7. In every instance in which transportation network company insurance 
maintained by a participating driver to fulfill the insurance obligations of this 
section has excluded coverage according to its policy or ceased to exist, 
the transportation network company shall provide the coverage required by 
this section beginning with the first dollar of a claim. 

26.1-40.1-04. Insurance coverage during the application on stage with no 
passengers in vehicle . 

.L During the application on stage. the transportation network company 
insurance must include: 

a. Motor vehicle liability coverage and the coverage is secondary. The 
coverage must include at least fifty thousand dollars per person and 
one hundred fifty thousand dollars per incident for death and bodily 
injury and at least fifty thousand dollars for property damage. 

b. Uninsured motorist coverage under subsection 3 of section 
26.1-40-15.1 and the coverage is secondary. 

c. Underinsured motorist coverage under subsection 2 of section 
26.1-40-15.1 and the coverage is secondary. 

d. Personal injury protection under chapter 26.1-41 and the coverage is 
secondary. 

2. The requirements for coverage required by this section may be satisfied by 
any of the following : 

a. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
participating driver. 

b. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
transportation network company that provides coverage in the event 
that a participating driver's insurance policy under subsection a has 
ceased to exist or has been canceled or in the event the participating 
driver does not otherwise maintain transportation network company 
insurance. 

c. Any combination of subsections a and b. 

3. A transportation network company may meet its obligations under this 
section through a policy obtained by a participating driver pursuant to 
subsection a or c only if the transportation network company verifies that 
the policy is maintained by the participating driver and is specifically written 
to cover the participating driver's use of a vehicle in connection with a 
transportation network company's digital platform. 

4. If the participating driver's vehicle is insured under a personal automobile 
insurance policy that does not exclude coverage. then such policy must 
provide primary coverage and an insurance policy maintained by the 
transportation network company under subdivision c of subsection 2 must 
provide excess coverage up to at least the limits required by subsection 1. 

§.:. In every instance in which transportation network company insurance 
maintained by a participating driver to fulfill the insurance obligations of this 
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section has lapsed or ceased to exist. the transportation network company 
shall provide the coverage required by this section beginning with the first 
dollar of a claim. 

26.1-40.1-05. Liability of transportation network company beyond required 
limits. 

This chapter does not limit the liability of a transportation network company 
arising out of an automobile accident involving a participating driver in any action for 
damages against a transportation network company for an amount above the required 
insurance coverage. 

26.1-40.1-06. Discretionary personal insurance where offered by personal 
automobile insurer. 

A personal automobile insurer may offer an automobile liability insurance policy. 
or an amendment or endorsement to an existing policy that covers a private passenger 
vehicle or similar type of vehicle with a passenger capacity of fewer than nine 
passengers. including the driver. while used in connection with a transportation network 
company's online-enabled application or platform. 

26.1-40.1-07. Duty to cooperate. 

In a claims coverage investigation involving a participating driver. a 
transportation network company or its insurer shall cooperate with insurers that are 
involved in the claims coverage investigation to facilitate the exchange of information. 
including the provision of dates and times at which an accident occurred involving a 
participating driver and the precise times that the participating driver logged on and off 
the transportation network company's online-enabled application or platform. 

26.1-40.1-08. Financial responsibility. 

Transportation network company insurance that meets the requirements of this 
chapter is deemed to satisfy the financial responsibility requirements of chapter 39-16. 

26.1-40.1-09. Proof of insurance. 

i A participating driver of a transportation network company shall carry proof 
of transportation network company insurance coverage at all times during 
the driver's use of a vehicle in connection with a transportation network 
company's online-enabled application or platform. In the event of an 
accident. a participating driver shall provide this insurance coverage 
information to any other party involved in the accident. and to a police 
officer. upon request. 

2. Before the transportation network company driver is permitted to accept a 
request for transportation network company services on the transportation 
network company's digital network, a transportation network company 
driver shall provide a certificate of insurance to any affiliated transportation 
network company. 
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26.1-40.1-10. Authorized or eligible carrier. 

Transportation network company insurance required by this chapter may be 
placed with an insurer authorized to do business in the state or with a surplus lines 
insurer eligible under section 26.1-44-03." 

Page 1, remove lines 6 through 24 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 13 

Page 2, line 14, replace "39-34-04" with "39-34-01" 

Page 2, line 15, after "agent" insert "with the secretary of state" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "39-34-05" with "39-34-02" 

Page 2, line 18, remove lines 18 through 20 

Page 2, remove lines 24 through 31 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 13 

Page 6, line 14, replace "39-34-11" with "39-34-03" 

Page 7, line 13, replace "nineteen" with "twenty-one" 

Page 7, remove lines 14 through 31 

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 15 

Page 8, line 16, replace "39-34-16" with "39-34-04" 

Page 8, line 19, replace "one" with "six" 

Page 8, line 21 , replace "39-34-17" with "39-34-05" 

Page 8, replace lines 22 through 29 with "A transportation network company may not disclose 
any personally identifiable information of a transportation network company passenger 
except under a legal obligation or for payment processing . For any other disclosure. 
the transportation network company must obtain the passenger's written consent on a 
separate form specifically addressing passenger personal information before the 
company may disclose the passenger's personally identifiable information." 

Page 9, line 1, replace "39-34-18" with "39-34-06" 

Page 9, line 4, replace "municipality or other local entity" with "political subdivision" 

Page 9, line 7, replace "municipal ity's or other local entity's" with "political subdivision's" 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2368: Transportation Committee (Sen. Oehlke, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2368 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, replace "chapter" with "chapters 26.1-40.1 and" 

Page 1, after line 3, insert: 

"SECTION 1. Chapter 26.1-40.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

26.1-40.1-01. Definitions. 

As used in this chapter and chapter 39-34. unless the context otherwise 
requires: 

1.,. "Application off stage" of operation means the time period when the 
driver is operating the vehicle for personal noncommercial reasons and 
not engaged in any manner or operation for the transportation network 
company. 

2. "Application on stage" means the time period the driver is logged onto 
the online-enabled application of a transportation network company and 
available for hire but not engaged and there is no passenger on board. 

~ "Engaged stage" means the time period from the moment a participating 
driver accepts a ride request on the transportation network company 
online-enabled application or platform until the driver completes the 
transaction on the online-enabled application or platform or until the ride 
is complete. whichever is later. 

4. "Participating driver" or "driver'' means any individual who uses a vehicle 
in connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled 
application or platform to connect with passengers. 

5. "Passengers on-board stage" means the time period when there are 
passengers in the vehicle pursuant to the driver's participation in a 
transportation network company. 

6. "Transportation network company" means a person operating in this state 
which provides prearranged transportation services for compensation 
using an online-enabled application or platform to connect passengers 
with drivers using a personal vehicle. 

7. "Transportation network company insurance" means an insurance policy 
that covers a driver's use of a vehicle in connection with a transportation 
network company's online-enabled application or platform. 

26.1-40.1-02. Required disclosures. 

1.,. A transportation network company shall disclose in writing or electronic 
form to participating drivers. as part of its agreement with those drivers. 
the insurance coverage and limits of liability that the transportation 
network company provides while the driver uses a vehicle in connection 
with a transportation network company's online-enabled application or 
platform and shall advise a participating driver that the driver's personal 
automobile insurance policy may not provide coverage under the 
agreement. 
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2.,. A transportation network company shall disclose in writing or electronic 
form to participating drivers. as part of its agreement with those drivers. 
of when the driver's personal automobile insurance policy may not 
provide collision or comprehensive coverage. under the agreement. 

~ A transportation network company shall provide notice in writing or 
electronically to the driver instructing the driver to notify the driver's 
personal automobile insurer of the driver's participation in the 
transportation network. 

26.1-40.1-03. Coverage required when transportation network company 
application is engaged until completion of ride when the passenger has exited 
the vehicle . 

.1. A transportation network company and any participating driver shall 
maintain transportation network company insurance that provides for the 
following requirements that apply to transportation network company 
insurance during the engaged stage and during the passenger on-board 
stage. 

2. Transportation network company liability insurance is primary and in the 
amount of one million dollars for death. bodily injury. and property 
damage. The requirements for the coverage required by this subdivision 
may be satisfied by any of the following : 

a. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
participating driver. 

Q,_ Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
transportation network company. 

c. Any combination of subdivisions a and b. 

~ Transportation network company insurance coverage provided under this 
section also provides for uninsured motorist coverage and underinsured 
motorist coverage in the amount of one million dollars anytime the driver 
has transportation network company passengers on board. 

4. Transportation network company insurance coverage must provide 
personal injury protection to drivers. passengers, and pedestrians when 
required under chapter 26.1-41 . 

§,. The primary insurer, in the case of insurance coverage provided under 
subdivision a. has the sole duty to defend and indemnify the insured. 

§,_ Coverage under a transportation network company insurance policy may 
neither be dependent on a driver's personal automobile insurance policy 
carrier first denying a claim nor a personal automobile insurance policy 
carrier being required to first deny a claim. 

7. In every instance in which transportation network company insurance 
maintained by a participating driver to fulfill the insurance obligations of 
this section has excluded coverage according to its policy or ceased to 
exist, the transportation network company shall provide the coverage 
required by th is section beginning with the first dollar of a claim. 

26.1-40.1-04. Insurance coverage during the application on stage with 
no passengers in vehicle . 

.1. During the application on stage, the transportation network company 
insurance must include: 
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.9..:. Motor vehicle liability coverage and the coverage is secondary. The 
coverage must include at least fifty thousand dollars per person and 
one hundred fifty thousand dollars per incident for death and bodily 
injury and at least fifty thousand dollars for property damage. 

Q.,, Uninsured motorist coverage under subsection 3 of section 
26.1-40-15.1 and the coverage is secondary. 

c. Underinsured motorist coverage under subsection 2 of section 
26.1-40-15.1 and the coverage is secondary. 

Q,, Personal injury protection under chapter 26.1-41 and the coverage is 
secondary. 

2. The requirements for coverage required by this section may be satisfied 
by any of the following: 

.9..:. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
participating driver. 

Q.,, Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
transportation network company that provides coverage in the event 
that a participating driver's insurance policy under subsection a has 
ceased to exist or has been canceled or in the event the participating 
driver does not otherwise maintain transportation network company 
insurance. 

c. Any combination of subsections a and b. 

3. A transportation network company may meet its obligations under this 
section through a policy obtained by a participating driver pursuant to 
subsection a or c only if the transportation network company verifies that 
the policy is maintained by the participating driver and is specifically 
written to cover the participating driver's use of a vehicle in connection 
with a transportation network company's digital platform. 

4. ff the participating driver's vehicle is insured under a personal automobile 
insurance policy that does not exclude coverage, then such policy must 
provide primary coverage and an insurance policy maintained by the 
transportation network company under subdivision c of subsection 2 
must provide excess coverage up to at least the limits required by 
subsection 1. 

~ In every instance in which transportation network company insurance 
maintained by a participating driver to fulfill the insurance obligations of 
this section has lapsed or ceased to exist the transportation network 
company shall provide the coverage required by this section beginning 
with the first dollar of a claim. 

26.1-40.1-05. Liability of transportation network company beyond 
required limits. 

This chapter does not limit the liability of a transportation network company 
arising out of an automobile accident involving a participating driver in any action for 
damages against a transportation network company for an amount above the 
required insurance coverage. 
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26.1-40.1-06. Discretionary personal insurance where offered by 
personal automobile insurer. 

A personal automobile insurer may offer an automobile liability insurance 
policy. or an amendment or endorsement to an existing policy that covers a private 
passenger vehicle or similar type of vehicle with a passenger capacity of fewer than 
nine passengers. including the driver. while used in connection with a transportation 
network company's online-enabled application or platform. 

26.1-40.1-07. Duty to cooperate. 

In a claims coverage investigation involving a participating driver. a 
transportation network company or its insurer shall cooperate with insurers that are 
involved in the claims coverage investigation to facilitate the exchange of 
information, including the provision of dates and times at which an accident occurred 
involving a participating driver and the precise times that the participating driver 
logged on and off the transportation network company's online-enabled application 
or platform. 

26.1-40.1-08. Financial responsibility. 

Transportation network company insurance that meets the requirements of 
this chapter is deemed to satisfy the financial responsibility requirements of chapter 
39-16. 

26.1-40.1-09. Proof of insurance . 

.1. A participating driver of a transportation network company shall carry 
proof of transportation network company insurance coverage at all times 
during the driver's use of a vehicle in connection with a transportation 
network company's online-enabled application or platform. In the event of 
an accident, a participating driver shall provide this insurance coverage 
information to any other party involved in the accident. and to a police 
officer. upon request. 

2. Before the transportation network company driver is permitted to accept 
a request for transportation network company services on the 
transportation network company's digital network, a transportation 
network company driver shall provide a certificate of insurance to any 
affiliated transportation network company. 

26.1-40.1-10. Authorized or eligible carrier. 

Transportation network company insurance required by this chapter may be 
placed with an insurer authorized to do business in the state or with a surplus lines 
insurer eligible under section 26. 1-44-03." 

Page 1, remove lines 6 through 24 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 13 

Page 2, line 14, replace "39-34-04" with "39-34-01" 

Page 2, line 15, after "agent" insert "with the secretary of state" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "39-34-05" with "39-34-02" 

Page 2, line 18, remove lines 18 through 20 

Page 2, remove lines 24 through 31 
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Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 4, remove lines 1through31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 13 

Page 6, line 14, replace "39-34-11" with "39-34-03" 

Page 7, line 13, replace "nineteen" with "twenty-one" 

Page 7, remove lines 14 through 31 

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 15 

Page 8, line 16, replace "39-34-16" with "39-34-04" 

Page 8, line 19, replace "one" with "six" 

Page 8, line 21, replace "39-34-17" with "39-34-05" 
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Page 8, replace lines 22 through·29 with "A transportation network company may not 
disclose any personally identifiable information of a transportation network company 
passenger except under a legal obligation or for payment processing. For any other 
disclosure, the transportation network company must obtain the passenger's written 
consent on a separate form specifically addressing passenger personal information 
before the company may disclose the passenger's personally identifiable 
information." 

Page 9, line 1, replace "39-34-18" with "39-34-06" 

Page 9, line 4, replace "municipality or other local entity" with "political subd_ivision" 

Page 9, line 7, replace "municipality's or other local entity's" with "political subdivision's" 

Renumber accordingly 
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A b i l l  re lating to transportation network company services. 

Minutes: II Attachment # 1 -7 

Chairman Dan Ruby opened the hearing on SB 2368. 

Senator Casper, District 27,  i ntroduced SB 2368. He explained that the bil l is about 
Transportation Network Companies (TNC) .  This is al lowing technology using an 
appl ication on a smartphone to al low a relationship to be formed between yourself and a 
person who owns a veh icle to provide a ride.  The use of this transportation is expanding 
throughout the country, and they want to come to North Dakota . I am interested in 
representing Fargo, because I th ink that there is a need for more transportation in the 
bigger communities in the state, especial ly on the week-ends. I t  al lows people to start their 
own l ittle business by being a d river for a TNC. I th ink i t  wi l l  meet a demand . 

He stated that the Senate real ly focused on the period of time from when the driver has 
their App. (Application) on to the period of time and is avai lable for a ride ,  but has not yet or 
engaged with a purchaser or p icked someone up. The App.  on , phase 1 has had a lot of 
d iscussion to make sure that there is proper insurance coverage in  p lace. The conclusion 
of the Senate Transportation Committee was that the driver wou ld have the primary 
insurance in the first phase, and then the TNC, Uber for instance,  wou ld have secondary 
coverage in  that stage .  

Representative Ben Hanson:  Can you summarize the reasons for the amendments? 

Senator Casper: There were two main issues . The first was the Phase one coverage, as I 
stated before. We also wanted the TNC to give the driver notice that they are 
responsible, and that they have to have primary insurance once they decide to engage in 
th is activity. The driver needs to talk to their insurance agent and provide the correct 
coverage for the activities that they are going to be involved in .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: Why was the change made from age 1 8  to 2 1 ?  
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Senator Casper: The general feel ing was that folks that are age 2 1  would have more 
personal responsibi l ity with regard to their insurance. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: There was a lot of d iscussion on the App. On stage in  the IBL 
Committee. Th is b i l l  specifies in  several areas that the coverage is secondary. Under the 
proof of insurance, do we need al l  of the information in  two places? 

Senator Casper: I do th ink there is potential to clean those two areas up .  This is very 
new, and we are one of the first states to put leg is lation in p lace.  It is the committee's 
viewpoint that we should look at language from other states to make sure that the 
responsibi l ity for insurance is taken care of. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: On the provisions to the add itiona l language to Title 39, who is 
supposed to enforce or regulate that? Is it the Department of Transportation? 

Senator Casper: The way that it is in  there now, it would be up to the Department of 
Transportation how they choose to do that. I wou ld see it being some responsib i l ity for 
them. The Secretary of State wou ld be issuing the certificate, and the $5000 fee.  The 
Department of Transportation would have the regu latory responsibi l ity. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: It looks l ike the Department of Transportation wou ld be requ i red to 
verify the driver requ i rements and records.  We wil l  have to figure out what they can ,  and 
what they want to do, and also, whether other states are actual ly taking that on, rather than 
cities. Usual ly it is a political subdivision . 

Senator Casper: We wou ld be happy to d iscuss that as we move forward . 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Do you see reason for areas of confidential ity to be put into the b i l l> 

Senator Casper: Yes , I th ink having some level of confidentia l ity is important. 

Joe Burgum , citizen of Fargo, spoke to support SB 2368 and provided written testimony. 
See attachment #1 . 

Representative Ben Hanson:  What aspect of publ ic safety wou ld this affect? 

Joe Burgum: As an adu lt who goes out in downtown Fargo and enjoys the night l ife, 
currently you can spend an hour and a half waiting for a cab.  There are places (bars) that 
have hundreds of cars in the parking lots that are being driven home by peop le that have 
enjoyed themselves that evening.  It might not be in the best interest of pub l ic safety. 

Sagar Shah, General  Manager with Uber Tech nologies, spoke on behalf of Uber to 
support SB 2368. This b i l l  wil l  provide a framework for TNCs to operate in North Dakota 
and cod ify safety requ i rements in  an appropriate manner to g ive TNCs a home here.  
Th is has been a topic of meaningfu l d iscussion th is  session and with a few exceptions the 
language in this b i l l  is real ly qu ite s imi lar to HB 1 1 44 that was passed in the House last 
month . 
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Uber is a technology company. We have bui lt a smartphone App. that a l lows you to push a 
button and get a ride. It has transformed the way that people have been able to move 
around their cities. One objective that we see is to improve cities. We have done that by 
con necting riders with d rivers who use their person veh icles and provide the safest and 
most rel iable rides on the road . At the same time we create an economic opportunity for 
these drivers who are on the Uber p latform . Companies that offer th is sort of ride sharing 
technology have become known as Transportation Network Companies (TNCs). There are 
severa l ,  other than Uber, i n  the market. Uber's TNC product, Uber X, is 40% cheaper than 
a taxi in many of the markets that we operate. This real ly speaks to the ability to create 
transportation as reliable as running water, everywhere for everyone. We are able to do 
that and , at the same time, provide an economic opportun ity for the d rivers to earn a l iving 
whi le also using an existing asset, their car. We often see teachers, nurses, mi l itary 
veterans, and retirees , al l  as typ ical part time Uber X drivers on our platform . We are in 
n inety cities around the world , and cities l ike Fargo and Bismarck wil l  be able to benefit 
from the rel iabi l ity and convenience that a service l ike Uber X and TNCs offer. In recent 
months over 6000 people have open up the Uber App. just in North Dakota to see if there is 
Uber service here .  A l ittle over 1 500 of those actual ly had a North Dakota area code. 

In add ition to creating this economic opportun ities there are a lso a lot of community level 
improvements. One of the biggest ones is a reduction in  drunk  d riving .  C ities such as 
Seattle lack transportation options because of that people wou ld typica l ly d rive home drunk 
late at n ight. After ride sharing has entered the markets, we have actual ly seen DUI  arrests 
red uced by over 1 0% a month . Consequently, g roups l ike Mothers Against Drunk Driving , 
have embraced the ride sharing community. As a company, safety is Uber's number one 
concern .  We pride ourselves with connecting passengers with the safest rides on the road . 

As th is b i l l  relates to insurance,  it wou ld requ i re TNCs to provide a $ 1 , 000,000 commercial 
l iabi l ity pol icy during the time in which a driver was on route to pick up a passenger or when 
the passenger is in the veh icle. During the time in which a d river has their Uber App on, 
this b i l l  wou ld say that that t ime wou ld fal l  on the driver's personal insurance to be primary. 
If that personal  insurance excludes coverage for this activity, or is unavailable for any 
reason,  the TNC must maintain a secondary pol icy that wou ld kick in. It is important to note 
that it is set up  this way because this actual ly helps avoid a very big moral hazard issue. If 
the TNC were provid ing primary insurance, then the Uber driver cou ld just turn on an Uber 
App and have primary coverage al l  of the time. It is easy to do; you just push a button . 
That wou ld be stage one, App on .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: On Page 1 Line 1 8, you are redefin ing the "participating driver" a 
l ittle bit .  You use the word person , and in North Dakota law a person cou ld mean a 
person,  corporation, etc. It is a broad term. Do you mean individual? 

Sagar Shah: Yes, ind ividual wou ld be fine, and that is the intent. 

Written proposed amendments were provided by Sagar Shah.  See attachment #2. (24 :00 
minutes) Amendments were reviewed . 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Your  company's privacy pol icy cou ld change, and this is pretty open 
to where we wou ld just have to accept whatever your compa ny's privacy policy is. The 
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House version made sure that you cou ld continue wil l  a l l  of the necessary transactions to 
conduct business, but could n't share any information that was used for marketing . Would 
you be comfortable with that language put back in? I don't remember that being an issue. 

Sagar Shah: That language is actually the same as is in here now. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: No, if that pol icy changes because you publ ish it, it means that you 
cou ld do whatever you want. 

Sagar Shah : This is reflective of what was passed in the House B i l l .  It is a way that 
technology industry operates (Goog le, Amazon, Apple) . There are no state or federal 
requirements to say what they can and can't provide. It is tied to their privacy policies 
wh ich the consumers should know to read and review before sign ing up with the platform . 
It is important to put the onus on that. If anyone ever sees anything that is problematic, that 
can be raised to the Company. 

I wou ld l ike to close by saying that with these changes made, we bel ieve we have a very 
strong bi l l  that supports the free market, promotes innovation , and would have a home for 
TNCs here in North Dakota . We would look forward to bringing services to this state and 
provid ing the safest rides on the road . 

Representative Rick C. Becker: What is the age requ i rement in Minnesota? 

Sagar Shah : I 'm not sure ;  it m ight be 1 9 . I can check on that. 

Representative Rick C. Becker: Is it common, as these laws are passed that the age 
requirements vary from 18 to 2 1 ?  

Sagar Shah : Yes , it is . Different states and cities have adopted d ifferent age 
requ i rements, depending on where they are comfortable. 

Representative Rick C. Becker: If you have a driver in Moorhead , MN that was 1 9 , how 
wou ld you address that if someone in Fargo wanted a ride? 

Sagar Shaw: If the driver is ever in  an area where the regu lations are d ifferent from their 
area of orig ination, we program it so they are not able to p ick up rides in  those areas. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Are you working with any states that are regu lating any part of this ,  
or is i t  always cities? 

Sagar Shah: We are typically working with states.  In I l l inois , for example, the Secretary of 
State wou ld issue a permit for the TNC . Then they would review things l ike :  who is the 
background check provider, what type of background check do they conduct, does that 
meet our standards,  who is the insurance provider, do the policies meet our standards in 
this state, and things l ike that. Once those things meet the requirement in  the law, then 
they wou ld grant the TNC a l icense. 
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Chairman Dan Ruby: That is j ust basically l ike l icensing through the Secretary of State for 
normal business practices? 

Sagar Shah:  Correct. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: So, there would be noth ing through the state Department of 
Transportations? 

Sagar Shah:  That is correct. I th ink that a lot of the DOTs are welcoming their regular 
practices, and regu late th is new industry. I n  other states they are used to the status quo 
which is regu lating th ings l ike trucks and h ighway vehicles. In those cases they do not 
participate in that. One add ition option , wh ich is not in this b i l l ,  would give the city the 
abi l ity to enforce laws themselves as they see fit through their local authorities. It can be 
regu lated at that level ,  as wel l .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: Is there some language that l im its cities abi l ities to regu late rates 
and things l ike that? 

Sagar Shah:  Yes, the reason for that is for consistency, but at the same time it makes 
sense to al low the individual  cities to enforce as they see fit if someth ing wrong is going on .  

Representative Robin Weisz: Is there anyth ing now in state law that prohib its you from 
operating i n  North Dakota? 

Sagar Shah:  There are no laws prohibiting TNCs specifically. There have been 
regu lations around things l ike l imo and taxi ,  that haven't been updated for 50 to 60 years. 
We have worked with cities in d ifferent states to change those regu lations to create a 
framework for TNCs. Fargo was very open to doing that as wel l .  Since, we moved at a 
state level ,  they welcomed the fact that it wou ld be taken care of at that level .  

Representative Robin Weisz: But,  if  you wanted to, you cou ld be operating in  Bismarck 
today? 

Sagar Shah: That is correct, but we wou ld obviously talk to the city first to see if we met its 
requ i rements. 

Representative Gary Paur: As far as the uniformity, if there is a big concert event in 
Fargo with a lot of attendees, wou ld other Uber drivers from surrounding towns head to the 
event to provide services? 

Sagar Shah:  Yes, and an example of that is in M ichigan . Ann Arbor, M ichigan is a huge 
col lege town that has h uge footbal l  games on the week-ends. We m ight inform the drivers 
on our p latform in Detroit, for example, that there wil l  be a big week-end in Ann Arbor. 
That's where we benefit from consistency. 

Representative Gary Paur: So, having the un iformity statewide wou ld be important in 
such events. 
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Representative Lois Delmore: Can you g ive us a short snapshot of how my insurance 
and your insurance wil l  work? If someth ing happens, how wil l  I know which insurance wil l  
cover me? 

Sagar Shah: We make our insurance pol icy extremely clear to the driver d uring the time of 
sign up.  We recommend that they speak with their insurance company before they come 
on the platform. The way that it wou ld work, based on this bill, is if you are a driver, and 
you flip the App. on but are not connected with anyone, the case wou ld fal l  on your  
personal auto insurance.  I f  for any reason, your personal auto excludes coverage, then 
you wou ld work with Uber to pay that claim. Once you are connected with a passenger, 
are on your way to pick the person up, and when you p ick them up to the end of the trip ,  
that is when Uber's primary $ 1 , 000,000 policy will kick i n .  If you have an accident, you cal l  
Uber, and we wi l l  wa lk you through the process in  an event of an accident. The driver wil l 
have an electronic insurance card on their App at al l  t ime. 

Representative Lois Delmore:  Have you had confl icts of who should be paying in  other 
states , and how have they been hand led? 

Sagar Sha h :  There have been NO acts of l itigation ,  to our knowledge, regard ing the 
appl icabi l ity of Period One for the primary auto. You might hear from the insurance 
representatives that this wi l l  cause a lot of l itigation and ambigu ity, but there has been zero 
l itigation over this. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Has there been l itigation over the other stages? 

Sagar Shah : Regard ing that, there has been some l itigation toward Uber saying we want 
more than the one mi l l ion dollars of coverage that Uber has provided . But, there has been 
no l itigation over who shou ld be paying for this moment. 

45 : 30 
Pat Ward, Property a n d  Casualty Insurance Association of America and the 
Association of North Dakota I nsurers, spoke in support of SB 2368. Written testimony 
was provided . See attachment #3. 

48 :50 
A marked up bill and proposed amendments were offered and reviewed . See attachments 
#4-5. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: When reading this, what does the word "specifical ly" add to that? 

Pat Ward: The term we are describing is transportation network company insurance . It 
means an insurance pol icy that specifically covers the driver's use of a vehicle. It means 
a pol icy that does not exclude the coverage, or a pol icy that is designed to provide this 
type of coverage. 

A copy of the Transcript of How to Use the Uber Partner App. Video is also provided . 
See attachment #6. 
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Representative Ch ris Olso n :  I sti l l  don't understand the use of specifica l ly. It says that it 
covers it, which means that it does not exclude it. 

Pat Ward: Our concern is that this wil l become an issue, and that a TNC wil l  come along 
and wi l l  d ispute the primary coverage, arguing that the driver has a personal auto policy 
that may have been a vague exclusion . The company may take the position that there is 
an exclusion that appl ies. They wou ld then argue and l itigate an insurance coverage 
d ispute over whose coverage is primary. We want to make absolutely sure that that their 
(TNC's) coverage is primary un less the person actual ly goes out and buys Transportation 
Network Company I n surance coverage. In paragraph 2a on the bottom of Page 2 Line 
27, you wi l l  see d ifferent ways that the pol icies can combine to create Transportation 
Network Company I nsurance.  A, B, C pol icies l isted . We don't have a problem with a driver 
going out and getting a TNC rider on his personal auto pol icy. We want to make it clear 
that is what we are talk ing about, not a personal auto policy. The exclusions in all of these 
personal auto policies are worded d ifferently in the App on phase, in particu lar, we have a 
concern about coverages, and whether there wi l l  be any coverage.  Most insurance pol icies 
are going to exclude that coverage. Some compan ies will exclude a l l  coverages if 
operating for a TNC . The word specifically is important to have in there .  

Representative Ch ris Olson:  The Transportation Network Company i n  th is language 
wou ld be requ i red to have some type of pol icy to cover the d river when that driver is 
engaged with a passenger or going to pick up a passenger. So, couldn't we assume that 
they wou ld fol low the law and have insurance that actual ly would cover the driver? 

Pat Wa rd : I wou ldn't assume that they wil l  follow the law. The phrase that I heard Mr. Shah 
use was "a moral hazard". So, even though they are doing background checks on their 
drivers ,  they don't necessarily trust them to turn the App on or off at the appropriate t imes. I 
do th ink there are going to be problems. In add ition ,  there are many jurisd ictions that have 
issued cease and desist orders against Uber, and they keep doing business. I bel ieve that 
Ann Arbor, M ichigan is one. There are cities and countries that have banned them, and 
they sti l l  do business. I t  is partly because of this attitude that they are above the law. We 
just want to make sure that whoever is doing this activity has the right coverage and the 
right kind of pol icy. It is important to have clarity in  this b i l l .  We are all on the same page 
here ,  I th ink ,  of wanting to have legis lation that wi l l  provide consistency within the state. I 
wou ld l ike to see legislation that avoids insurance coverage lawsu its and avoids putting the 
insurance company in a position of having to surprise their drivers by tel l ing them that they 
do not have coverage. There may be instances where the back-up coverage isn't there. 

Representative Lois Delmore: If I am going to use my car part time for personal 
business, and part time for Uber, wi l l  I need two policies? 

Pat Ward : That will depend on how you write this law, because we are asking that Uber be 
primary in all phases when someone is working for a TNC ,  not j ust in certain phases. No 
personal auto pol icy provides commercial coverage.  

Representative Lois Delmore: Cou ld you offer the type of pol icy that we are talking about 
right now, and what wou ld be the extra cost? 
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Pat Ward: They have a pol icy right now with a mi l l ion dol lars of coverage .  It is essentia l ly 
an  excess pol icy, which means that if the other pol icy comes up short or doesn't exist, then 
they have coverage. We bel ieve that their coverage should be primary, when their drivers 
are working.  I 'm not sure how much the pol icies are costing . I bel ieve the ones being 
offered in  Colorado (not sure on l imits) are being offered for between $ 1 00 and $200. 

Representative Lois Delmore: You are looking out for your company on the l iabi l ity as 
much as you are looking out for the citizen who wants that insurance, correct? 

Pat Ward: Yes,  we are ,  but we are also looking out for the potential victims that could be 
the victims of these drivers. 

Pat Ward: One thing that isn't in  the bi l l  that I th ink should be in the b i l l  is what I would cal l 
a back-up col l is ion coverage. That wou ld be on Page 3 Line 1 1 .  

1 :06:00 Continued d iscussion of amendments. 

Representative Rick C. Becker: You have indicated that during the App. on phase, the 
driver is working. If I have a free afternoon, and I decide that I am going to pick up my dry 
cleaning,  stop at the grocery store, and stop downtown and say h i  to my cousin Vinney and 
after that I am going to sit at the park and feed the pigeons and turn my App on. You would 
agree that the App off during my errands is not to be primary? Then when I am at the park 
with my App on ,  you wou ld l ike that to be primary? 

Pat Ward: Yes, we would .  

Representative Rick C.  Becker: What d ifference could i t  possibly make if  I say i t  is much 
more efficient whi le I am runn ing my errands? That way I have a greater opportun ity to 
conduct business, but if the App is j ust on in the background and no one is engaging me, I 
can continue my chores with no greater risk to the publ ic, as far as l iabi l ity . Where do you 
remedy this theoretical problem that I am working for Uber the moment my App is on, even 
though I am actual ly working for me doing other things? 

Pat Ward: If your plan is just to do other things, why would you log in? The reason you 
would log in  and turn your App on is because you are now looking for business. I believe 
that Uber with their technologies can police these drivers and have them log out after a 
certain number of m inutes. But, if you are running errands with your  App on with the 
i ntention of going to get someone, we bel ieve you are going to be distracted by your phone. 
Then during that phase you should be on their pol icy, and it should be primary. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: If they are driving around wanting to be engaged , why should they 
have to be d istracted to turn their App on again,  because it times out every so often? 

Pat Ward: They should be able to pul l  over and log in again .  I 'm not talking about it t iming 
out i n  5 or 1 0  minutes. It should be a reasonable amount of t ime, l ike 20 minutes or a half 
hour. 
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Chairman Dan Ruby: Do you have data that shows that there is a h igher incidence of 
accidents in the App On stage? 

Pat Ward: We don't have at this time because it is too early. It started in Cal iforn ia in 201 0. 
The state of Colorado did a study for their b i l l ,  and the conclusion was that there wasn't 
enough data to be conclusive. 

Representative Chris Olson:  It seems l ike there wou ld be some ambigu ity if a d river is 
logged in to 4 or 5 TNCs waiting to engage. Whose coverage would he be u nder then? 

Pat Ward: That is a good question .  

Continued review of mark up and amendments . 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Is  the six year language consistent with 1 1 44? 

Pat Ward: Yes, I believe it is .  

1 : 1 5: 1 1 
End of amendment d iscussion . 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Can you elaborate on Page 4 Lines 1 8-22 ,  why wou ld you remove 
that? 

Pat Ward: The reason it would be removed is because it is our positon that the TNC 
should be primary in all phases. 

Representative Rick C. Becker: Do you have an opinion on the age if it were to be 
changed? 

Pat Ward: My personal opin ion is that 2 1  wou ld be a good idea. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: What is your opin ion about having al l  of this in  Title 39? There are 
no other states that do this, genera l ly it is through mun icipal ities. 

Pat Wa rd: I don't care, but I th ink that someone should regu late it. I do bel ieve that it is the 
Department of Transportation in Colorado,  but I 'm not sure. 

Da n Ruby: If we address the insurance requirements and make sure the passengers are 
protected and the other motorists , do we real ly care about the rest of the regu lation? 

Pat Ward: I don't; I th ink that is up to you ,  the policy makers .  

Representative Gary Paur: What is your concern with having the TNC carry col l is ion 
insurance when they have the App on? 

Pat Ward: The way the amendment is worded this is only for d rivers that do have col l ision 
insurance. It is to make sure that the TNC pol icy is primary during that phase because there 
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are some pol icies that would exclude coll ision coverage i f  the driver i s  engaged in  a 
commercial activity. We believe that when Uber h i res a driver they should notify the driver's 
insurance company to make sure that the insurance company knows, so they can talk with 
the driver about the coverage he/she may or may not have. 

Representative Ch ris Olson: If there is more than one transportation network that a driver 
is participating in ,  how would you decide which company is primary? 

Pat Ward: I would have no problem in that situation you added a sentence in here to 
requ i re those companies that the driver is logged into, would spl it the cost if the driver is in  
an accident. 

Representative Chris Olson: Along those same l ines, wou ld we also be justified in writ ing 
in  h is personal coverage as wel l? 

Pat Ward: If you d id that, you would be rewrit ing insurance pol icies that have been on the 
books for a long time. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: On the suggestion for the insurance amounts, is it because it is 
common to buy insurance at those levels? 

Pat Ward: No, 50-1 50-25 or 50-1 50-50, the 1 50 is the unusual part. The 50 is per person, 
the 1 00 is per accident. That would g ive three people $50,000 coverage as opposed to two. 
As you know, we th ink it should be even more. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Can they readi ly find 50-1 50-50? 

Pat Ward: With the size of Uber, I th ink that they can get whatever pol icy they need . 
Remember, what Uber is doing is using someone else's car to provide a ride to someone 
else. They are not bearing any of the expense. The only thing they have is this App . They 
are h i ring drivers and putting them and the passengers at risk, and they should have to pay 
something to play the game. 

1 :26 
Representative Ch ris Olson: Right now, if there were an Uber driver in  North Dakota and 
there was no law passed , and the driver was signed into the appl ication and waiting for a 
cal l ,  but didn't have a fare yet, and he had an accident. Would the driver's personal 
insurance cover that accident, right now, i n  the absence of this leg is lation? 

Pat Ward: That would depend on h is insurance policy. Al l  of the insurance pol icies have 
exclusions that are worded d ifferently. 

Jeff Ubben, General  Counsel and Director of the legal division at the North Dakota 
Insurance Department, spoke to support SB  2368. He provided written proposed 
amendments. See attachment #7. The amendments are mostly techn ical amendments. 
We have brought th is bil l to a p lace where we feel comfortable with it. (The amendments 
were reviewed . )  
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Jeff Ubben: One amendment that is not on that sheet, Page 3 Line 27, (50-1 50-50) we are 
fine with moving that back from 1 50 to 1 00 .  It is a much more common pol icy to buy. 

Remainder of amendments reviewed . They feel that this language is a fai r  compromise to 
the App on stage and bel ieve that Uber is in support of it as wel l .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: On Page 4 l ine 18 taking out "a personal" and just putting in "an 
automobile insurance pol icy" , what is the reason for that? 

Jeff Ubben : We were hoping to also include commercial  auto pol icies as wel l .  

Representative Rick C.  Becker: Where did the age change come from? 

Jeff U bben: I t  was mostly just from the Senators. The Insurance Department didn't take a 
position on that. 

Representative Rick C. Becker: I am assuming that the actuarial r isk for a 2 1  year old 
male is much h igher than a 1 9  year old female. Is that true? 

Jeff Ubben :  When it comes to auto insurance , I don't know that that is a lways true. I don't 
th ink it is .  

Rep. Ma rk Owens: What are the insurance requ i rements for taxi compan ies? 

Jeff Ubben :  We don't regu late that; it is regulated by the city or mun icipa l ity. It is not in  
state law. 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: It is genera l ly a commercial pol icy, isn't it? 

Jeff Ubben: Yes. 

Representative Lois Delmore:  If you have nothing to do with the regu lation of taxi 
companies, why is it so important for us to have the regu lation set in place statewide for 
Uber? 

Jeff Ubben :  This is a new industry that is unique. Trad itional ly taxis and l imos have been 
regu lated by the city. Fargo tried to regulate the TNCs, and the industry came to the 
leg islature with a b i l l  th inking it wou ld be a good idea to have the state be involved so there 
is un iformity in the regu lation.  We are not opposed to that. 
1 : 34 :55 

There was no further support for SB 2368. 
There was no testimony in  opposition to SB 2368. 
Chairman Da n Ruby cal led for neutral testimony on SB 2368. 

Linda Sitz, Depa rtment of Transportation,  explained that the Department is at the hearing 
for clarity. The Director is questioning the purpose for TNC under Title 39, on Page 7 Lines 
26 - 30 and the control l ing authority. Our  question is what are we developing ru les over, 
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what are we trying to control ,  and what type of regu lations are supposed to b e  followed? It 
doesn't appear l ike there is anything in this bi l l  that ta lks about any penalties or any type of 
infraction if there something that goes wrong . When we met with Uber on 2368 when it was 
in front of the Senate, Sager ind icated that there were other states that th is was underneath , 
so we asked for an  example from another state . The example that he sent us was the city 
of Tulsa, OK. So, it wasn't real ly gu idel i nes for how another state is mon itoring this. The 
Department of Transportation is questioning the reason why it is u nder Title 39. We are not 
opposed to Uber, but are just wondering why. 

Chairman Da n Ruby: Mr. Ward thought that maybe Colorado had it. That cou ld be 
checked . I am wondering if the Department of Transportation would even have the abi l ity to 
verify the driver requ i rements, and make sure that the fare is being g iven to the passenger. 
You are not set up to do that kind of enforcement, are you? 

Linda Sitz: No, we're not, so i f  that were a requ i rement we would have to create 
something . Right now we wouldn't know how to even get that. Wou ld we have access to 
the Uber App , somehow, to gain that information? 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Was it the Department of Transportation that prepared the fiscal 
note that showed no fiscal effect? If you are going to do that, you would have some 
expense . 

Lin da Sitz: Correct. At the time that we looked at this as a whole, there was a section with 
a $5000 for the Department of Transportation, and we were supposed to do something with 
that dol lar amount .  We did n't know how to write a fiscal note on this because we don't know 
what we are being asked to do.  

Representative Chris Olson: The population of Tulsa is over 50% of the popu lation of 
North Dakota , so maybe we could take a cue from the cities and just look at what they do 
and use it for our state. 

Linda Sitz: In  Tu lsa the d i rector is considered to be the mayor or h is designee. To me that 
sounds l ike it is u nderneath the city. There is sti l l  not clarity if someth ing happens. What 
are the rules and regu lations that we are supposed to write? 

Chairman Dan Ru by: If there is a min imal amount of reg istration for a business with the 
Secretary of State's Office and verifying some insurance requirements that is what they 
have do. That would probably be as far as we could go with that. 

Linda Sitz: We are not sure of the best fit for that section . 

Representative Gary Paur: Can you see any short comings to el iminating most of the 
section , Title 39? 

Linda Sitz: I th ink the attorney that you brought over here, said that m ight not be a bad 
idea to take that section out. You wou ld think that there would have to be some kind of 
gu idel ines for this type of company. 



House Transportation Committee 
SB 2368 
03-19-15 
Page 1 3  

Chairman Dan Ruby: I n it ial ly, the way that this b i l l  started out before amendments, we 
took our a bunch of what we thought were useless regu lations, and what seemed , in some 
cases, to almost be Uber's pol icies being put into state law that all other compan ies wou ld 
have to comply with . We didn't want something that was that specific .  Were al l  of the 
regu lation requ i rements put in under Title 39 in the orig inal b i l l? 

Lin da Sitz: When 1 1 44 came out, we d idn't even come to testify on i t  because we did n't 
catch the section in  Title 39 that it wou ld some sort of regu lation on the Department of 
Transportation .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: I don't th ink that i t  was original ly in there .  

Linda Sitz: It may not have been originally i n  it, but when the $5000 was on 2368 on the 
orig inal  b i l l ,  the Department of Transportation would get the $5000 to be distributed to the 
H ighway Tax Distribution Fund.  We started questioning why are we collecting $5000, and 
what are we going to do with it. There was more confusion than clarity when we were 
read ing the b i l l ,  j ust on our section .  

Representative Gary Paur: Mr. Shah , have you seen the amendments that were provided 
by the by the Department of Insurance, and do you feel comfortable with them? 

Sagar Shah: I have not seen them in written form yet, but I understand them. We are not 
comfortable with them. I can speak to that. 

We are actively opposed to the add ition about col l ision , for the reason that col l ision and 
comprehensive are not required by any state for any type of veh icle. This wou ld make 
North Dakota the first to do that for any vehicle. We don't see this as a publ ic safety issue 
either. This wou ld be covering a d river's personal vehicle if they h it a stop sign or get hai l  
damage. F inal ly, req u iring TNCs to offer col l is ion and comprehensive is going to l imit 
innovation in the insurance market as wel l .  We want to create room for the existing 
compan ies to offer these extra pol icies that wou ld offer these new products. If the TNC is 
provid ing everyth ing ,  there is not real ly any incentive for that to happen .  

The second point, which is the word "specifical ly" is  also very problematic for us.  There is 
court precedent, Johnson vs Center Mutual  I nsurance Company, from 1 995.  It basically 
says that insurance law is written as adhesion contracts , and in any instance in which there 
is ambigu ity whether or not insurance appl ies, it fal ls on the responsibi l ity of the insurance 
company to provide that coverage. So, auto insurance is written as exclusion . They are 
written to exclude certain types of activity; they are not written to specifical ly include 
anything.  These people have existing pol icies and add ing the word "specifical ly" wou ld 
nu l l ify those exist ing contracts. Using state law to change existing contracts is something 
that we see as very problematic from a consumer protection point of view. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: On the issue with 50-1 50-25,  do you envision that to be an additional 
amount on top, or do you envision that your insurance would be secondary with in  those 
levels. 
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Sagar Shah : It wou ld be with in those levels. If a driver has the state min imums, and thei r  
personal insurance only covers up to $50 ,000, then the TNC would cover the remain ing 
amount up to $1 00 ,000. This would be during a time when there are no passengers in  the 
car. That is a l ready twice the state min imums. 

Representative Lois Delmore:  Are your  drivers ful l  time drivers? 

Sagar Sha h :  Most of them are part time drivers . We look at them as customers that are 
runn ing their own operation ,  and they pay Uber a fee to use the App to connect them with 
passengers .  Many of  them are teachers or stay at  home parents who have some extra 
t ime. 

Representative Lois Delmore:  But, if I am taking my kids to school ,  I want to make sure 
that I have coverage in  case something happens. So, the l imited amount m ight not be the 
best choice for me to make. 

Sagar Shah: That is correct. If you are a parent and you constantly have chi ldren in your 
car, in those cases you m ight choose to have h igher l im its on your personal auto. But, 
remember, those wil l  be when you are App off. 

Representative Hanso n :  Was the 1 995 case that you mentioned a Supreme Court case? 

Sagar Shah : It was a North Dakota court case. 

David Boeik, lawyer for the Protection and Advocacy Project, spoke i n  a neutra l capacity. 
The bi l l  as introduced has a section on discrimination .  It had a shortcoming that was 
a l ready mentioned . It requ i red that they adopt pol icies to do this or pol icies to do that. I 
suggested to the Senate Committee that if it is going to be in  there ,  then we should make 
them follow that law and not have a pol icy about it. I submitted an amendment for that 
purpose. The committee decided that the provision was not needed at a l l .  I just want to 
make it clear that these compan ies would not be immune from d iscrimination laws. They 
wou ld sti l l  be subject to the state Human Rights Act and Federal Americans with Disabi l ities 
Act that prescribe d iscrimination on numerous bases, just to avoid controversy, none of 
which address sexual orientation. 

Steve Becker, Professional Insurance Agents of North Dakota: I would l ike to provide 
some clarification for some things that I was hearing.  When we are talk ing about the 50-1 50 
l imit that has nothing to do with the people in your car. Liabi l ity insurance is for the other 
people on the road . It is bod i ly injury and property damage for the other potential people 
that the driver would run into. The people that are in your  car are covered under personal 
i njury protection (P IP) ,  and they are also covered under the u ninsured and underinsured 
motorist if someone would i nju re the people in that car. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: What is our min imum? 

Steve Becker: Our min imums are 25-50-25 for the other people on the road . 

Representative Lois Del more: What do most people carry then for their own l iabi l ity? 
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Steve Becker: That is a personal  choice that they make .  The state requ i res you to carry 
2 5-50-25,  but the vast majority of our agents sell 1 00-300-1 00 or h ig her. Our  agents are 
trying  to p rotect you r  assets, so if you are sued by another party, you want to make sure you 
have enough protection so that they won't get i nto your  personal assets. 

Pat Ward: I want to clarify one thing.  I said Colorado ,  but it was actua l ly Virginia that is the 
newest one, that just went i nto effect and has it in  the Department of Transportation .  
Colorado has i t  in  what is  called the P ubl ic Uti l ities Commission. When we were looking for 
a home for our  b i l l ,  we asked the P ubl ic Service Commission ,  and they didn 't want it. 

Crystal Bartuska, North Dakota Insurance Department: I have been on this from the 
beg inning and can p rovide some h istory on how 26. 1 and 39 got melded together. HB 1 144 
was original ly j ust the insurance component. The Senate b i l l  was strictly just the 
Department of Transportation Section 39 component. Then one day i n  I BL on the House 
side, some of the components from the Senate Bi l l  came in .  That is how it melded and we 
got 1 1 44. The Senate side then did something simi lar and brought components over. That 
is how we got where we are. 

The hearing was closed on SB 2368!  
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Chairman Dan Ruby brought S B  2368 back before the committee. I was thinking about 
taking all the references to title 39 out because DOT expressed that they really didn't know 
what to do with a l l  of that and how they wou ld oversee and regu late the requ i rements under 
that. As of yesterday Pat Ward sent me a model legislation that the insurance industry has 
worked with U ber and they came to an agreement. One of the key th ings is to have Uber's 
insurance be primary du ring that time of the application (app) on stage. It doesn't include 
the compensation and col l is io n .  U ber has g iven us some amendments that wil l  hopefully 
put our b i l l  in l ine closer. They would be in favor of moving in those d i rections as long as 
they get everything that's in there .  

Representative Chris Olso n :  Do you know i f  Uber is  actual ly agreeable to the d rafted 
legislation? 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: Yes, I talked to Sager Shah from Uber. He said their i ndustry has 
met and they've been work ing on this .  We are working off of h is amendments right now. 

Representative Chris Olso n :  I sent everyone some m in utes from the various meetings 
with the National Associatio n  of I nsurance Commissioners. State insurance commissioners 
across the country have a special task force that has been addressing this specific issue. 
They are just about to release a white paper that d iscussed their find ings. There are only 
three states that have enacted legislation concerning TNCs; Cal ifornia, Colorado, and 
Wash ington and 1 2  cities .  We now have a patchwork of regu lations. 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: That is why they are agreeing to th is legis lation because it will 
e l iminate the patchwork and bring something that is consistent for their business model. 

Representative Chris Olso n :  My concern now is  that we are specifical ly dealing with 
U ber and they are agreeable to this ;  they've got a lot of money and are very big.  How wil l  
this affect the other sharing economy companies that exist? 
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Chairman Dan Ruby: I n  IBL  we talked about the difference between p izza del ivery people 
using their own vehicles a nd whose insurance appl ies in those situations. In most cases 
it's the company that is d i recting them to do it otherwise they just pay them mi leage and it's 
their personal insurance.  They don't real ly have too many problems overa l l ;  the company 
is insuring their d rivers. They have a real problem when it 's deal ing with picking up other 
passengers and that process. 

Representative Chris Olson:  If we were to take these amendments that have been 
crafted into this b i l l  would the app on primary insurance stipulations a pply to other types of 
sharing economy arrangements? 

Chairman Dan Ruby: I don't believe so. This is the transportation  network companies, 
not those other types. 

Representative Chris Olson:  We'l l  probably want to consider companies that may not be 
able to afford to provide primary insurance j ust because a person has an app on .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: If you fel l  u nder the TNC driver then you r  U ber insurance would be 
primary. 

Representative Robin Weisz: The big issue seems to be insurance. Do we real ly care 
about a l l  of the rest of this? It is real ly a fight between insurance com panies and TNCs. 

Representative Rick C. Becker: Having been i n  on a l l  of the d iscussions in this 
committee and in I BL ,  I wonder if we are just acting on this prematurely. C urrently, without 
a law, U ber can come in  to North Dakota. There are on ly three states that have a law. 
We're on the g round floor that may be resolved within the industry. Maybe we should come 
back in two years. 

Representative Ben Hanson:  There has been price gouging with these TNCs. I'm not 
married to the idea of putting it i nto state law. If there is uniform legislation coming forward 
I don't know how we can trust or guarantee that it is going to come forward . I don't th ink 
they would send an  i nd ividua l  to come in  and ask for the b i l l  because they need new 
standards since they are a new technology so they need new insurance for it. I see the 
necessity for the insurance aspect of it. I don't th ink they wou ld spend all this money on 
plane tickets and spend hours out  here working on this if they didn't want it. I would l ike the 
insurance aspect to be in  th is ;  I think it's a positive thing to have. 

Representative Gary Paur: We requ ire l iabi l ity insurance for everyone in  this state. If 
there is a possib le gap in  the insurance, I th ink we are obl igated to take care of it .  

Representative Chris Olson:  I don't think there is a gap. Insurance compan ies would l i ke 
us to bel ieve that there is a gap.  Right now they are on the hook because their policies 
don't specifical ly exclude people who happen to have an app on their smart phone. 
Personal coverage is in p lace in  period one; the app on stage ,  and that's why the insurance 
companies are lobbying us  to use the force of law to say that Uber  covers it or some other 
TNC. This is because if you're an  insurance adjuster or  an  actuary you want to do 
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everything you can in  the world of statistics to lower your risk and th is type of leg is lation 
wou ld d ramatica l ly lower their  risks . Right now their risks are h igher statistically because 
people who a re app on m ay be more active. Who should bare that risk? If you have 
mu ltiple TNCs that you're logged i n  to should U ber bare the risk  for a person who's logged 
in to fou r  or five TNCs or shou ld the private insurance? This is an issue that doesn't have a 
clean answer right  now and they are asking us to make a clean and clear cut decision on 
what the answer should be. 

Key Point: The I l l i nois Department of Insurance has a lso approved new private market 
products that help fi l l  coverage gaps in period one. 

Representative Robin Weisz: If someone is d riving today and has an accident, how wi l l  
the insurance company know that I had an app on? They cou ld try and subpoena my 
phone. I don't want to go d own that road . 

Chairman Dan Ruby: I n  the b i l l  there are requ i rements that the companies such as Uber 
would requ i re that you let you r  insurance company know you've become a d river. 

Representative Robin Weisz: If I don't? 

Chairman Dan Ruby: This was our fight in ISL with the app on stage; I was on the side 
that Uber should be p rimary. There was a big d isagreement between the insurance 
industry and our  chairman i n  I SL .  If  there is a risk then they should show us the actuarial 
data. I t  was a big surp rise for me to see that they have moved to accept that time. If you 
get in an accident and you know that your  app is on then you're going to make sure that 
Uber's insurance pays because you don't want it on your  own personal policy. There are 
instances where once you pick up  a rider for a fare your  personal insurance right now wi l l  
not cover. Al l  i t  takes is a n otice that the pol icy has changed for the app on stage and your 
pol icy won't cover it. You can get a rider where they can buy that. There is TNC insurance 
where you can get a rider to put on your  personal insurance to cover you and if you do that 
then you're preventing the parent company from having to be the primary but they wil l  be a 
supplemental insurance to cover additional amounts. I n  the app on stage they agree to 
cover what the state has right  now. On the transportation part of it they are saying the 
department may aud it the records of a transportation network company by means of a 
random sample of the transportation network company's records related to transportation 
network drivers; two t imes per year or fewer, at a th ird party location  agreed by the d ivision 
and the transportation network company, and not withstanding subsection? in a reasonable 
timeframe to investigate a complai nt related to publ ic safety or violations of this b i l l  p rovided 
the authority has first provided detai ls of the nature of the compla int. 

Representative Robin Weisz: What are we audit ing? 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: The records.  

Representative Robin Weisz: What's the point? What is the DOT supposed to be doing 
with that? 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: Is that you r  question too,  Linda? 



House Transportation Committee 
SB 2368 
03-26-15 
Page 4 

Linda Sitz, Department of Transportation :  Looking a t  the i nformation that you gave me 
that would be our  question as wel l .  We don't have anything currently set up;  we don't have 
any information to aud it .  We are sti l l  unclear what our  role is. If we have to put in ru les and 
regu lations then are there penalties involved with it  besides the $500 it's talking about in 
th is amendment? I don't th ink  it's a good fit for this to be u nderneath the department. If 
you look at other states it's u nder the SOS or the PSC. 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: If we get rid of that then it's j ust deal ing with the insurance issues 
and it's u nder the Department of Insurance to regu late that. 

Linda Sitz: That's correct. 

Representative Gary Paur moved to delete section two of the bil l .  
Representative Rick C .  Becker seconded the motio n .  

A voice vote was taken.  T h e  motion carried. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: We wi l l  meet again th is afternoon.  

Representative Rick C.  Becker: Is  i t  rea l ly that much of a quandary when the majority of 
states and cities don't have legislation? It seems that th is is a theoretical p roblem but we 
actual ly have real l ife going on a l l  around us in  these cities and states that don't have 
legislation and U ber is working just fine. 

Representative Robin Weisz: We had a bi l l  before where we fou nd out that we've been 
operating for the last ten years without any coverage on the h ighway. The world d idn't end 
there. 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: The senate put a provision on that b i l l .  

Representative Robin Weisz: U ltimately i t  was my responsibi l ity and my agent should 
have informed me that I d idn't have any coverage on the h ighway. If you own a vehicle we 
say you have to have coverage. 

Representative Chris Olso n :  Maybe the compromise is to have the Uber insurance be 
secondary in  the event that the primary insurance of the ind ividua l  fai ls  to cover a particular 
accident. That way the coverage gap wi l l  be el iminated . 

Chairman Dan Ruby: They are wi l l ing to g ive on that but they want other areas. They 
said industry wanted a lot more nationwide in that model leg islation .  

Representative Gary Paur: I looked at  Seattle and counci l  fu l ly agrees that d rivers be 
covered whenever active on a system including between rides. There a ren 't many states 
that requ i re insurance but the cities do. 

Representative Robin Weisz: The fact that U ber has agreed to these provisions doesn't 
make it good . 
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Rep. Mark Owens: What happens right now if I turn on the app and drive somebody 
somewhere? Who wou ld be l iable right now if I got into an accident? 

Chairman Dan Ruby: When you sign up as a d river they g ive you a form showing what 
they cover and when they cover you .  Right now they cover you primary when you're 
engaged to pick up a ride and when you're carrying a ride .  You ' re covered with a $ 1  mi l l ion 
pol icy. 

Representative Robin Weisz: I guarantee you that when your  app is on and you have an 
accident you're going to cal l  you r  personal insurance company and they're going to pay. 

Rep. Mark Owens: If you were in an accident and you cal led them your insurance 
company may not cover you .  

Representative Chris O lson :  If you're on cal l  for a n  agency should their insurance cover 
you?  That is the same as an  app on stage. 

Representative Robin Weisz: That's the same for a doctor on cal l  d uring the weekend.  

Representative Gary S ukut: My question has been since day one, why do you turn the 
app on? It's to go to work. 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: We will work on this later today. 
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Chairman Da n Ruby brought SB 2368 back before the committee. 

Amendments were provided . See attachment #1 . 

Sagar Shah, U ber Tech nologies, explained the process that led up to the amendments 
and explained the amendments .  There were a number of insurance compan ies that were 
involved in th is .  A deal was struck about 36 hours ago between Uber and the insurance 
compan ies. It was understood that North Dakota would be exempt from this deal but for 
the sake of compromise we are happy to work with you to get that language adopted . Our 
goal is to clearly state the d ifference between the driver who is providing the transportation 
with the veh icle and the Transportation Network Company (TNC) who is using software to 
connect the two parties . This was adopted previously when the bi l l  was previously 
d iscussed but currently this is mandating $1 mi l l ion of un insured/underinsured motorist 
coverage during this t ime. Per the compromise language we would tie this to the state 
requ irements for vehicles. (Mr. Shah continued reviewing the attached amendment. )  One 
p iece that is extremely important to us is the personal identifiable information p iece that we 
d iscussed last week but as it stands th is language doesn't work for us operational ly. If we 
operated tomorrow we would be violating this section so we couldn't operate the way this is 
currently worded . The language currently asks for written consent anytime there is a 
d isclosure of personal information .  If a driver sees the rider's name, phone number, and 
picture that is sharing personal information so we can't have somebody provide written 
consent every single t ime. There are other examples I cou ld l ist that are problematic from 
an implementation standpoint. We ask for that language to either be taken out or mod ified 
with respect to the amendment that I had shared last week.  

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: Chal l is ,  you didn't include this because it showed up under title 39 
correct? 

Chal lis Wil l iams, Legal  I ntern : I didn't include that because it was amended in the b i l l  
removing section two. 
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Chairman Dan Ruby: Yes. I n  the house version we had our confidential ity language i n  
26. 1 -40 . 1 -07 and i n  the title 39  so  that i t  would be  seen no  matter which section you were 
looking in for this area. We could sti l l  put it back in the 26. 1 -40 . 1 -07 with the language they 
are proposing.  Are there any questions about the confidential ity? The language they have 
is identical to what we had on the house side. The language for confidential ity information 
is very strict and very tight. 

Representative Ben Hanson: It 's also unprecedented that level of restriction on 
confidential ity. There are currently no other states that have a problem .  

Representative Rick C .  Becker: Did I understand correctly that you do want the 
transportation driver requ i rements taken out? 

Sagar Shah: We would l ike to keep them in there. 

Representative Rick C. Becker: Why don't you just do that yourself? 

Sagar Shah: I think it's important from a publ ic safety issue to have some requ irements for 
background checks . It's also important to have the contro l l ing authority section which says 
that this controls at the state level otherwise we wou ld work in a patchwork format with 
d ifferent cities that may propose d ifferent regu lations when it comes to l icensing or 
background checks or how drivers are brought into the system .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: Is that the language on page six l ine fourteen of the bi l l? 

Sagar Shah: Yes and also page seven l ine 26; that section is important to us as wel l .  

Vice Chairman Lisa Meier: For the states that don't have leg is lation do you requ i re 
background checks? 

Sagar Shah: We do. We background check all our drivers regard less of whether or not it's 
requ ired by regu lation.  A lot of the city level ordinances have ordinances for background 
checks as wel l .  

Vice Chairman Lisa Meier: So, you just want this i n  the bi l l  in case another competitor 
moves i nto the state? 

Sagar Shah: Yes.  General ly from a publ ic safety issue it's important that there are some 
requirements in terms of who can be brought on to the system.  

Representative Chris Olson: I n  the 12  o r  1 3  cities you have operations in are the 
requ irements for the drivers widely d ivergent as far as background checks or other 
qual ifications? 

Sagar Shah: In some places they are. In Mich igan it is somewhat problematic as they 
have different city level ord inances and they are pretty close to each other. If there's a 
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Michigan footbal l  game and a Detroit driver wants to drive over it could be confusing and 
d ifficult to deal with . 

Chairman Dan Ruby: My concern with the language is who is going to make sure that it is 
regu lated? Our d iscussions up to this point have determined that DOT doesn't feel they're 
qual ified to do it nor are they set up to do it and are uncomfortab le of the position that puts 
them in .  We spoke with the Secretary of State today and he doesn't have any abi l ity to 
aud it to make sure background checks are being done or that al l  this information is being 
done. 

Representative Robin Weisz: You made the statement that this wou ld improve un iformity 
across the state , but I don't see anyth ing that restricts the cities to be more restrictive. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: If it would have been under the Department of Transportation they 
would have been the regu lating body. The pol itical subd ivisions could not have imposed 
tax or requ ire l icensure .  

Vice Chairman Lisa Meier: I n  states or cities with no leg islation who pays for the 
background checks? 

Sagar Shah:  Uber wi l l  pay for the background checks. 

Crystal Bartuska, State Insurance Department: As far as authority and the insurance 
department, we are in  the same boat and we have been since the beg inning of al l  this. As 
an insurance department if a TNC company violates someth ing we don't have authority 
over them ; they are not an insurer nor are they a producer/agent. The way the law is right 
now with insurance requ i rements is simi lar to what we have on the books as far as how 
carriers design their prod ucts to meet state laws. But when you start talking about 
contro l l ing authority we have no authority over TNC compan ies or the d rivers .  

Representative Ben Hanson:  Is  there a precedent for requ i rement of criminal background 
checks at a state level i n  any other state? How many if there are? 

Sagar Shah:  All the states have had that in  their statute. Currently Colorado, I l l inois,  and 
Cal ifornia all have background check requirements. In  those states the govern ing body is 
varied but is most commonly the Public Uti l ities Commission .  We've been trying to work 
with the DOT to find a good way they could fit into this. The DOT could possibly regulate 
by having a bi-annua l  audit ;  meeting with the TNC in a mutual p lace in  North Dakota, 
looking through driver records, and making sure there is a background check for 
everybody. If they don't comply then there is a fine with the TNC. This example has been 
attractive to other states in how they could enforce some sort of regulatory authority. We're 
not asking the DOT to conduct background checks or anyth ing l ike that. 

Representative Rick C. Becker: When it comes to replacing secondary and primary, is 
Lift on board with that? 

Sagar Shah: Lift has joined the compromise as wel l  so they are on board with that. 
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Representative Rick C. Becker: It concerns me that we've spent hours upon hours i n  IBL 
understanding the d ifference between the stages and acknowledging that secondary was 
the right place to put you for app on.  Now you come back and say you don't real ly care 
about that. In my opin ion I don't think this is good for you but you are the big man on 
campus so what m ight hurt you a l ittle bit might hurt the competitors more so you have an 
advantage.  I 'm a l ittle suspicious and frustrated with this. 

Sagar Shah: I don't know the specifics that went into the compromise that struck the dea l .  
I wi l l  say that there were in add ition to that forty other things that were problematic i n  some 
of the issues that were being proposed by the insurance i ndustry that we couldn 't l ive with .  
The compromise was also us g iving into the issue in order to not have a bunch of other 
things that we've been d iscussing.  I think this committee and North Dakota in general  has 
been very understanding of our position . We wil l  g ive on this one issue if we don't have to 
go forth on the other big forty issues . Unfortunately that's how the compromise worked . 
Both parties have things we l ike and don't l ike. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: We have defin itions that are in 26. 1 ,  we have insurance levels and 
priorities also in that section so whether there is privacy language in  there I don't know if 
that's the right p lace for it. I would say that if it's not in here then that's what your  pol icy is .  
If we don't have that in the b i l l  then your privacy policy is what i t  is ru led by. 

Representative Robin Weisz: Do we require a privacy pol icy for every business in the 
state? 

Chairman Dan Ruby: No. We do for banking and those kinds of things. We don't 
necessarily need that. The control l ing authority is the place we found to put that in .  

Representative Robin Weisz: Exactly. I stand corrected ;  the b i l l  does e l iminate a political 
subdivision from setting their own criteria. 

Chairman Da n Ruby: It relates to the ru les adopted by the department which is under 
chapter thirty n ine .  

Representative Robin Weisz: No, i t  says any other prov1s1on the companies are 
governed exclusively by this chapter and any rules. This chapter would override anyth ing 
a city would do. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: It sti l l  wouldn't be in title 39 though .  This is something we need to 
d iscuss as a committee. I th ink we need to keep it as clear language. The compan ies 
would have to register with the Secretary of State l ike other businesses . 

Representative Ben Hanso n :  The compromise was 36 hours ago so I 'm assuming you 
don't have a pol icy paper from Uber or any of these folks? 

Sagar Shah : We do. I believe there was a document of modeled language that was sent 
out to the industry. 
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Representative Ben Hanson: I don't u nderstand the agreement because it's not as if 
you're able to create a law since its national .  Your group came together and wanted one 
set of b i l ls for all the state leg islatures that are currently considering these laws? 

Sagar Shah: Generally speaking the bi l l  outl ines the types of pol icies and types of terms of 
those contracts . There are a few p laceholders for nuances in the states .  

Representative B e n  Hanson: At that point with such a pert inent aspect of  what this and 
the other bil l has been compromised with the insurance agencies , wou ld Uber want or need 
this b i l l? 

Sagar Shah:  When this deal  was struck I think i t  was a mutual understanding between the 
two industries that g iven how much progress we've made with North Dakota we cou ld 
continue on the current road . It's favorable to us not to have the primary language but in 
the interest in creating compromise and getting th is done we are accepting of this 
language. 

Representative Ben Hanson: Was North Dakota specifical ly talked about in this 
agreement? 

Sagar Shah:  There were a number of states that were early in  the leg islative processes. 

Representative Ch ris Olson: In the absence of this leg islation wou ld Uber voluntari ly 
offer to g ive the primary coverage to anybody in  the stage one process of your  service? 

Sagar Shah: It is a difficult question to answer because there are so many other moving 
pieces. 

Representative Ch ris Olso n :  It seems odd that you want leg islation to do something that 
you could certain ly do of your  own free wi l l .  

Sagar S h a h :  We would continue to  operate as we have been where Uber is  secondary 
during period one and it fal ls under the personal insurance.  This deal was a compromise 
amongst d ifferent states in order to make this process more efficient. 

Representative Ch ris Olso n :  You would l ike us to create a un iform system for al lowing 
TNCs to operate in the state without worrying about what each individual pol itical 
subdivision might do as far as l icensing requ irements and background checks . Could we 
simply put that into law without any talk of the insurance? 

Sagar Shah:  As long as ind ividual cities wouldn't then go and requ i re their own crazy 
amounts of insurance or other parameters of insurance for their vehicles. I th ink they'd 
have the abi l ity to do that at the mun icipal level as wel l .  

A written document was provided for the committee, "Suggested Key Messages for TNC 
Insurance Compromise Model Bill Supporters" . See attachment #2. 



House Transportation Committee 
SB 2368 
03-26-15 
Page 6 

Chairman Dan Ruby: I have some questions for the Insurance Department. Crystal ,  d id 
you find that we put the privacy language in 26 . 1  on 1 1 44? 

Crystal Bartuska: Yes. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: I don't remember that there were any concerns at that time with the 
language. Do you have concerns this time? 

Crystal Ba rtuska: I th ink at that point when SB2368 was going through there was so 
much focus on the stages , the insurance coverages, the l imits, and the amounts that we 
didn 't d ive into those as we focused more on the insurance components versus the privacy 
and duty to cooperate . If they don't correlate with the insurance p ieces we would l ike them 
taken out. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: It kind of got lost in the shuffle? 

Crystal Bartuska: Yes it d id .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: How about any of the language that would l imit the insurance 
requirements ,  proof, and other areas for municipalities? Would any of that be in  the scope 
of the insurance department? 

Crystal Bartuska: We don't have authority over mun icipalities so if they start doing 
something above and beyond we wouldn't be able to go after them for anything.  I don't 
foresee compan ies creating specific pol icies that are going to be for these types of activities 
especially on the personal auto side; I th ink we' l l  see a lot more of th is on the commercial 
side. The personal auto is excluding this type of activity already. If you decide to become 
a TNC driver you're carrier is a lready excluding this activity so you wou ld need to contact 
your  agent and either get a commercial pol icy or see if your company has some sort of an 
endorsement or r ider that pul ls this type of activity back into your  policy. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: In our  chapter eight that deals with taxis, l imos, and such , is that an 
area that any l im it ing language for this towards mun icipal ities would be placed? 

Crysta l Ba rtuska: I 'm not sure .  The h ighway patrol came in on H B 1 1 44 when we were 
trying to figure out whose home this belongs in and they said chapter eight wou ldn't work 
because of some verbiage that was a lready in there. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Maybe our intern cou ld see if any of the language would fit into 
chapter eight. I don't know where company privacy pol icies wou ld fit with l imit ing pol itica l 
subdivisions. There were changes to the coverage levels I bel ieve. 

Crystal Bartuska: We were also confused about the primary sudden ly being okay. We 
are not upset by that. The largest piece for us is in  phases two and three which is Mr. 
Shah's amendment on page three l ine six where you're removing the m i l l ion dol lars and 
just going to the min imums for uninsured or underinsured . That is a big change for us.  We 
u nderstand the ind ivid uals would sti l l  have coverage; they would have the state min imums 
of the 25-50-25 but we would prefer the mi l l ion dol lars .  We want to make sure the drivers 
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are covered . We recently found out that in North Dakota with P IP  (personal injury 
protection) coverage or no fau lt benefits you cannot exclude P IP .  Carriers are not al lowed 
to exclude P IP  from policies . We have a specific state insurance code law that P IP  fol lows 
the owner of the veh icle. The owner of the veh icle , the insurance carrier, must cover P IP  at 
primary. Even though we appreciate Uber and those TNC compan ies offering to be 
primary because North Dakota has a specific law and that wi l l  create ambiguity in the laws . 
When we met on the senate side on HB1 1 44 we also brought this up to them . I n  the model 
that Mr. Shah provided on page four there is the abi l ity for insurers that write this type of 
coverage to exempt personal injury protection coverage as sited in D1 i i .  We feel if this 
verbiage would be adopted then that wou ld get around the P IP  chal lenge. We would l ike 
something l ike this put in  so that carriers have the abi l ity to exclude P I P  which would then 
make Uber that primary piece.  

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: With the changes that have been proposed as far as the app on 
stage page two l ine three talked about the TNC means the insurance pol icy that specifical ly 
covers would not be necessary at this point? 

Crystal Bartuska : I 'm going to let one of our attorneys comment on that. 

Johnny Paulsg raph, attorney for the Insurance Department: I th ink  we can fix that with 
some clean-up language. The P IP  coverage and the other coverage was to separate out 
what is TNC insurance versus what is personal auto insurance.  Uber is p lanning on being 
primary for both P IP  coverage and the app on stage as wel l  as l iabi l ity coverage. I don't 
th ink we're going to be fighting over the specific language any longer. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: The P IP  coverage can't be their primary; it has to be on the 
personal auto? 

Joh n ny Paulsg raph : Yes.  I th ink we can work that out  as Crystal was suggesting . We 
can include something that al lows the personal auto to exclude the coverage from the 
model language then you're right on track with saying "specifical ly" would no longer be an 
issue. 

Representative Gary Paur: If we backed up to where Uber was secondary and had the 
m i l l ion dol lars coverage under the P IP  al l  stages wou ld sti l l  be covered with the ind ividual's 
own pol icy? 

Crystal Bartuska : We fou nd that bump in the road last week before they agreed to be 
primary. If they would be secondary then the insurance pol icy that the driver owns would 
be responsible for the P IP  portion .  

Representative Gary Paur: I n  a l l  cases because of the P IP  law they wou ld a l l  be 
covered? 

Crystal Bartuska: By the personal auto . 

Representative Gary Paur: Then we could go back to the orig inal  language of mi l l ion 
dol lars .  
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Crystal Bartuska : We would prefer the mi l l ion dol lars but if that would go to the state's 
l imits at least the consumers are getting something versus noth ing .  That's a pol icy decision .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: I f  we put together their amendments and what you want there was a 
mistake on page five l ine five where it talked about more than eight passengers; I th ink that 
had to be eight passengers or less . 

Crystal Bartuska : I bel ieve so. I bel ieve Pat Ward had an amendment to that effect. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Are you going to put that into these amendments? 

Crystal Bartuska : We can but without knowing i f  you're going to adopt Sagar's 
amendments I don't know how our amendment wou ld read . We can address the verbiage 
from the model law and have that as an amendment ready to go. On bottom of page three l ine 
30 it is an incorrect citation .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: Please include that in your amendment as wel l  please. Sagar, in the 
engaged and passenger stage, it has been stated that you carried a m i l l ion dol lars .  

Sagar S h a h :  Yes, for primary l iabi l ity insurance. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: U nder the uninsured and underinsured you don't want to carry the 
m i l l ion? 

Sagar Shah : Correct. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: And you don't now? 

Sagar Shah: We do but I don't know if every TNC does. If it's a l l  these th ings then we are 
okay with it but as soon as we start deviating away then that is troublesome for us.  

Representative Ben Hanso n :  Sagar, i f  we sti l l  included the previous framework of the app 
on app off that you desired before would Uber now oppose that b i l l?  

Sagar Shah: We would not oppose that b i l l .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: You stated al l  or none but your  a l l  includes the privacy part and the 
auditing of the drivers but those defin itely wouldn't be in  it so is that part of the all you wouldn 't 
support. If we leave it as a clean insurance bi l l  as we discussed would you be okay with that? 

Sagar Shah : It sounds l ike regardless of where the insurance language went you would 
take it out anyway. That is d ifficult for us. I wi l l  have to continue working with the DOT and 
see if we can find a p lace for that. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: We just can't find a right fit for it right now. We just don't want to 
leave anyone exposed . If everything we discussed was in the areas of where you're primary 
on the app on stage but you get the min imum requ i rements of the un insured or underinsured 
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and the P IP  is taken care of. I don't know how you feel on  that. We certain ly don't want to do 
anything that wil l  p revent you from operating in  the state. 

Sagar Shah:  We wil l  continue working on that and wil l  get back to you .  

Chairman Dan Ruby: We'l l  d iscuss this tomorrow morning.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution :  

A b i l l  re lating to  transportation network company services . 

Minutes: Attachment # 1 -2 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby brought SB 2368 back before the committee. He reviewed progress 
so far on the b i l l .  Amendments were provided . See attachment #1 . We need to instead 
work off of this amendment rather than the one from yesterday. The insurance department 
also has an amendment for us with the P IP  coverage. 

Representative Robin Weisz: The amendments have been cleaned up tremendously. 
sti l l  strugg le with the one spot on Page 3 ,  Line 26; rep lacing secondary with primary. The 
on ly reason Uber l ikes primary versus secondary is because they are now the big boy and 
it makes it more d ifficult for upstarts to come in .  Other than that I th ink  this bi l l  cleans up  
the best you can do with what you have on  the amendments. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: I wou ld l ike to hear from the I nsurance Department about the P IP  
coverage.  

Crysta l Bartuska, North Dakota Insurance Department, provided amendments to SB 
2368. She explained the amendments. See attachment #2 . Our  amendment cleans up 
some verbiage. If the intent of the committee is to go to the primary level i n  a l l  stages l ike 
the TNC compan ies would prefer then you're going to see that verbiage in  here .  The 
biggest part is the P IP  part. On the bottom of our amendment, page 4, after l ine 26, you 
have to inset an entirely new section that wou ld al low the insurers that write personal auto 
insurance to be able to exclude TNC P IP  coverage pursuant to the app on no passengers 
and the app stage two and three levels. That would get around a P IP  issue. 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: The owner of the car that gets insurance is responsible to have P IP 
insurance ,  is  that right? 

Crystal Bartuska: Yes ,  there is a section in law that specifical ly says the owner of the 
motor vehicle is requ i red to have the no fau lt benefits , aka P IP .  
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Chairman Dan Ruby: What do you mean when it says to al low them to be condit ional? 

Crystal Bartuska : That g ives the insurance carriers enough room to be able to exclude 
P IP  coverage specific to TNC activity. That would pul l in  TNC compan ies to be primary to 
be responsible to that P IP  coverage. 

Chairman Da n Ruby: What if the insurance compan ies exclude it because they are a 
driver? 

Crystal Bartuska: They can't .  There's another section of law that says there's four criteria 
that al lows carriers to exclude P IP ,  such as racecar drivers. If this goes through I envision 
next session we clean up our code to make it al l  flow and connect together. 

Representative Chris Olson: The law says that the owner must have P IP  but then sets 
up exclusions for when the owner does not need to have P IP .  What are al l  of those 
exclusions right now? 

Crystal Bartuska : Code 26. 1 -4 1 -07. If this goes through then next session we would add 
a number five to this section that would say in the capacity of being a TNC driver. 

Representative Chris Olson: Couldn't we add that number five right now? 

Crysta l Bartuska : I don't know if you want to add any more to this. Without knowing how 
the carriers are going to file these products and what they're going to do I would prefer that 
our fi l ing department administer it through this channel .  

Vice Chairman Lisa Meier: I don't foresee a lot of insurance compan ies wil l  exclude 
issu ing insurance to TNC vehicle operators . If they would get into an accident going to p ick 
up a passenger then they would have to have the d iscussion between the two insurance 
compan ies. 

Crystal Bartuska: We are seeing carriers exclud ing this coverage now. 

Vice Chairman Lisa Meier: So, this wou ld real ly cover the concerns? 

Crystal Bartuska: Yes and because the TNC now want to be primary which will real ly 
cover that whole world of any potential gaps. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: If they're secondary but the company writes an exclusion which 
means they won't cover it for their insured which is their veh icle then that secondary pol icy is in 
effect. 

Crystal Bartuska: Correct. There is a provision saying your insurance company excludes 
any coverage then the TNC kicks in .  

Representative Gary Paur: I n  your amendment page 3 ,  l i ne 26 ,  you say the coverage is 
secondary. In the amendment from this morn ing it says to replace secondary with primary. 
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Crystal Bartuska: Ours wou ld read better. We are trying to clean up as best we can .  
Ours would read the motor veh icle coverage must include at least $50,000 and then it goes 
into that. 

Representative Gary Paur: Would you just leave out the secondary and primary? 

Crystal Bartu ska: If you go above that on l ine 24 it adds during the appl ication on stage 
the TNC insurance is primary and must include . . .  Our  version is that we're putting the 
primary in n umber one because then it would flow down to a ,  b, c ,  and d so then we 
wouldn't need it in a .  We are trying to make the law read as clear as possible. 

Representative Gary Paur:  On page 3 ,  l ine 30,  replacing the section is identical but then 
you have removed three of them . 

Crystal Bartu ska : That has been wrong since I BL committee. The orig inal bi l l  had 
citations to 1 5 . 1 . I n  our law the subsections that are referenced in 1 5 . 1  are just defin it ions. 
Those aren't the actual statutes of 1 5.2 and 1 5 . 3  which are the actual un insured and 
underinsured laws that have that $30 ,000 min imum. By referring to just defin itions that 
doesn't get them the 25-50-25. The amendment from Shah was i ncorrect. Do you have 
the most recent version of the one he sent us this morning? 

Chairman Dan Ru by: They don't .  I th ink we fixed the references in the previous 
amendment so I th ink  we're good there .  The only thing we would be considering is this P IP  
stuff. 

Crystal Bartu ska: For us their request to have the provisions for the l iabi l ity insurance to 
be 50, 000, 1 00 ,  50 ,000, and 50. We are amend ing that so the department has 50, 1 00 ,  50 
but that is up to you .  State requ i rement is 25-50-25. The first two are h igher; the third one 
would match the state. On page 2 l ine 23-26,  we don't th ink that paragraph is needed 
because of the way that it reads. I don't think it reads wel l .  

Chairman Dan Ru by: We trust that they wi l l  clean that up .  

Crystal Bartu ska: We went with our amendments with the thought process that you guys 
were going to put primary across the board .  If that is what you do the top of our 
amendment, page 2 ,  l ine 6 ,  we wou ld l ike that verbiage to be included . That section real ly 
gets to any way that a TNC company could chal lenge that they aren't primary in  some way. 

Chairman Dan Ru by: I had this fight on the house side but I d idn 't l ike the primary and the 
app on stage. I didn't th ink it was necessary. 

Crystal Ba rtu ska : Yesterday you had asked about the other sections that we have no 
authority over. I talked to our general  counsel and even though it's in our code as a 
regu lator we wou ldn 't have the abi l ity to go after a TNC company or an Uber driver. But if 
I'm a passenger and am harmed in some way I could take civi l action if we violate those 
sections in law. We have some thoughts and concerns with M r. Shah's amendments. Do 
you want me to bring those up? 
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Chairman Dan Ruby: I can emai l  everybody a copy of what he sent me and if they decide 
we want to reconsider this after we act on it because of that then we can have that 
d iscussion . 

Crysta l Bartuska: This is coming from Uber and from the beg inning we've said this is for 
a l l  TNCs so some of the verbiage he proposed in his new amendment narrows it down to 
how Uber does business . 

Chairman Dan Ruby: That's why in the IBL committee I suggested to remove a lot of what 
was on the amendment that was supposed ly for l icensing and other areas that was specific 
to them and their business model. I d idn't th ink we should put their business model in state 
law. Committee, we have two amendments before us. 

Crystal Ba rtuska: We wou ld also prefer the mi l l ion stay on the un insured and the 
underinsured where they want to go to the state min imums. 

Chairma n  Dan Ruby: I realize that. That m ight be another d iscussion for conference. 

Representative Robin Weisz: Made a motion to adopt the I nsurance Department 
amendments that Chal l is prepared with some changes; remove page 3 line 26 to keep it 
secondary for the app on stage only and add the language suggested by the department on 
page 4 after l ine 26. It also includes language on the back page replacing subsections with 
subd ivisions. 

Representative Chris Olso n :  I f  we add that P IP  exclusion from the insurance 
department's proposed amendments and we also amend the amendment to get rid of that 
on page 3 l ine 6 and leave the coverage secondary. Could that cause a gap in  P IP? 

Chairman Dan Ruby: No, I don't th ink so. You could ask the department to verify that. 
think they are two separate issues . Their insurance is not typical vehicle insurance;  it's an 
excess l ines type. 

Representative Owens: Second. 

Rol l  call  vote : 1 1  yes 1 no 2 absent 

Motion carried. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: We have an amended bi l l  before us.  What are the committee's 
wishes? 

Representative Lois Delmore: Made a motion for a do pass as amended. 

Vice Chairman Meier: Second. 

Rol l  call  vote: 7 yes 5 no 2 absent 
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Motion carried for a do pass as amended. 

Chairman Dan Ruby: Remember we had a previous amend ment that amended out 
section two so a l l  that information that applied to DOT is out. 

Chairman Dan Ruby will carry this bill. 



Prepared by the North Dakota 
Insurance Department 

March 27, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Page 2, line 6, insert section 26.1-40.1-02 

"On or before [MONTH, DAY, YEAR] and thereafter, a Transportation Network 
Company Driver or Transportation Network Company on the driver's behalf shall 
maintain primary automobile insurance that recognizes the driver as a Transportation 
Network Company Driver or otherwise uses a vehicle to transport passengers for 
compensation and covers the driver." 

Page 2, line 27, remove "liability" 

Page 3, line 4, add after section, "is primary and" 

Page 3, line 4, remove "also" 

Page 3, line 8, after coverage add , "is primary and" 

Page 3, line 9, remove "when required" 

Page 3, line 24, after insurance add "is primary and" 

Page 3, line 26, after coverage remove "and the coverage is secondary. The coverage" 

Page 3, line 27, after hundred remove "fifty" 

Page 3, line 30, remove "subsection 3 of" and replace "26.1-40-15.1" with "26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 3, line 30-31 , remove "and the coverage is secondary" 

Page 4, line 1, remove "subsection 2 of' and replace "26.1-40-15.1" with "26 .1-40-15.3" 

Page 4, line 1-2, remove "and the coverage is secondary" 

Page 4, line 3, remove "and the coverage is secondary" 

Page 4 , after line 26 , insert section 26.1-40.1-06 

Insurers that write personal automobile insurance may allow no fault insurance 
coverage to be conditional on Transportation Network Company no fault 
insurance coverage pursuant to 26.1-40.1-03 and 26.1-40.1-04. 



Page 4, line 9, replace "subsection" with "subdivision" 

Page 4, line 12, replace "subsections" with "subd ivisions" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Adopted by the Transportation Committee 

March 27, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Page 1, line 20, replace "connect with" with "transport" 

Page 1, line 20, after "passengers" insert "for compensation" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "provides" with "enables" 

Page 2, line 1, after "with" insert "independent participating" 

Page 2, line 3, after "that" insert "specifically" 

Page 2, line 24, remove "following" 

Page 3, line 6, replace "of one million dollars" with "under subsection 3 of section 26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 3, line 27, remove the second "fifty" 

Page 3, line 28, replace "fifty" with "twenty-five" 

Page 3, line 30, remove "subsection 3 of' 

Page 3, line 30, replace "26.1-40-15.1" with "26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 4, line 1, remove "subsection 2 of' 

Page 4, line 1, replace "26.1-40-15.1" with "26.1-40-15.3" 

Page 4, line 9, replace "subsection" with "subdivision" 

Page 4, line 12, replace "subsections" with "subdivisions" 

Page 4, line 13, remove "A transportation network company may meet its obligations under this 
section through" 

Page 4, remove lines 14 through 22 

Page 4, line 23, remove "5." 

Page 5, line 4, after "that" insert "specifically" 

Page 5, line 5, replace "more" with "fewer" 

Page 5, line 19, remove ".L" 

Page 5, remove lines 25 through 28 

Page 6, after line 4, insert: 

"26.1-40.1-11. Conditional no fault insurance coverage. 

An insurer that writes a personal automobile insurance policy may allow no fault 
insurance coverage to be conditional on transportation network company no fault 
insurance coverage pursuant to 26.1-40.1-03 and 26.1-40.1-04." 

Page 6, remove lines 5 through 29 

Page No. 1 15.1011 .02001 



Page 7, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 8, remove lines 1 and 2 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 1 5. 1 0 1 1 .02001 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_57 _005 
Carrier: Ruby 

Insert LC: 15.1011.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITIEE 
SB 2368, as engrossed: Transportation Committee (Rep. Ruby, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(7 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2368 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 20, replace "connect with" with "transport" 

Page 1, line 20, after "passengers" insert "for compensation" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "provides" with "enables" 

Page 2, line 1, after "with" insert "independent participating" 

Page 2, line 3, after "that" insert "specifically" 

Page 2, line 24, remove "following" 

Page 3, line 6, replace "of one million dollars" with "under subsection 3 of section 
26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 3, line 27, remove the second "fifty" 

Page 3, line 28, replace "fifty" with "twenty-five" 

Page 3, line 30, remove "subsection 3 of' 

Page 3, line 30, replace "26.1-40-15.1" with "26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 4, line 1, remove "subsection 2 of' 

Page 4, line 1, replace "26.1 -40-15.1" with "26.1-40-15.3" 

Page 4, line 9, replace "subsection" with "subdivision" 

Page 4, line 12, replace "subsections" with "subdivisions" 

Page 4, line 13, remove "A transportation network company may meet its obligations under 
this section through" 

Page 4, remove lines 14 through 22 

Page 4, line 23, remove "~" 

Page 5, line 4, after "that" insert "specifically" 

Page 5, line 5, replace "more" with "fewer" 

Page 5, line 19, remove "1.:." 

Page 5, remove lines 25 through 28 

Page 6, after line 4, insert: 

"26.1-40.1-11. Conditional no fault insurance coverage. 

An insurer that writes a personal automobile insurance policy may allow no 
fault insurance coverage to be conditional on transportation network company no 
fault insurance coverage pursuant to 26.1-40.1-03 and 26.1-40.1-04." 

Page 6, remove lines 5 through 29 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_57 _005 
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Page 7, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 8, remove lines 1 and 2 

Renumber accordingly 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Casper 

February 5, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Page 2, after line 13, insert: 

"39-34-04. Suspension or revocation . 

.1. The department may revoke or suspend a license upon proof of the 
violation of this chapter or rules adopted by the department. The 
department shall provide notice to the licensee and within twenty days of 
the notice an opportunity for a hearing before any revocation or 
suspension. 

2. An appeal may be made to district court from a decision of the department 
under this section or for refusing to grant a license. The appeal must be 
taken in accordance with chapter 28-32." 

Page 2, line 14, replace "39-34-04" with "39-34-05" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "39-34-05" with "39-34-06" 

Page 2, line 24, replace "39-34-06" with "39-34-07" 

Page 2, line 29, replace "39-34-07" with "39-34-08" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "39-34-08" with "39-34-09" 

( Page 4, line 15, replace "39-34-09" with "39-34-1 O" 

Page 5, line 22, replace "39-34-08" with "39-34-09" 

Page 5, line 28, replace "39-34-10" with "39-34-11" 

Page 6, line 14, replace "39-34-11" with "39-34-12" 

Page 7, line 14, replace "39-34-12" with "39-34-13" 

Page 7, line 18, replace "39-34-13" with "39-34-14" 

Page 7, line 22, replace "39-34-14" with "39-34-15" 

Page 7, line 29, replace "39-34-15" with "39-34-16" 

Page 7, line 30, remove "on the" 

Page 7, remove line 31 

Page 8, line 1, remove "disability. age. sexual orientation, or gender identity" 

Page 8, line 4, remove "nondiscrimination against passengers or potential passengers on the 
basis" 

Page 8, remove line 5 

Page 8, line 6, replace "age. sexual orientation, or gender identity" with "nondiscrimination 
against passengers or potential passengers" 

Page No. 1 15.1011.01001 
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~ jof6/15 Page 8, line 16, replace "39-34-16" with "39-34-17" 

Page 8, line 21, replace "39-34-17" with "39-34-18" 

Page 9, line 1, replace "39-34-18" with "39-34-19" 

Page 9, line 4, replace "municipality or other local entity" with "political subdivision" 

Page 9, line 5, after the second 11
.§.

11 insert "separate" 

Page 9, line 6, after "driver" insert "or a vehicle used by a transportation network company 
driver if the tax or license relates to providing transportation network services," 

Page 9, line 7, replace "municipality's or other local entity's" with "political subdivision's" 

Page 9, line 7, after the underscored period insert "A political subdivision may enact an 
ordinance that requires a valid state permit for a transportation network company to 
operate within the political subdivision." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Testimony by Sagar Shah 

Uber Technologies 
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Good morning Mr.  Chairman , Honorable Members of the Senate Committee on 

Transportation : 

My name is Sagar Shah.  I am a General Manager with Uber Technologies, responsible 

for our potential expansion to North Dakota. 

I am here to speak on behalf of Uber and express our support for SB2368. This bi l l  

would provide a balanced framework for Transportation Network Companies, l ike Uber, 

to operate , codify safety requ irements for riders and drivers, and give TNCs a proper 

home in the State of North Dakota . I want to thank Senator Casper for h is support on 

this issue and ask you al l  to support th is bi l l  as it comes before you today. 

Uber is a technology company. We've built a smartphone application that has 

transformed the way people move around their cities by connecting riders and drivers. 

To g ive you some background,  U ber was founded in 2009 on the idea that anyone 

should be able to order a car and be picked up with in  5 minutes of requesting .  Back 

then , we contracted with existing l imo companies by bringing them onto the system and 

al lowing riders to request the nearest car at the touch of a button .  Since then,  we have 

com mitted ourselves to also bringing safe, taxpayer free on demand transportation to 

communities of al l  sizes, and at a lower price, through our uberX product, which is 40% 

cheaper than a taxi .  UberX offers an economic opportunity for everyday Americans to 

provide rides with their personal veh icles - teachers , nurses, mi l itary veterans,  and 

retirees are examples of the part time drivers we see on uberX. 

Companies l i ke this, that match riders with drivers of rideshare veh icles through a dig ital 

network have become known as Transportation Network Compan ies, or TNCs. 

Today, U ber operates in  over 250 cities around the world and mi l l ions of people are 

relying on Uber as their primary means of transportation . While we are not currently 

operating in North Dakota , we hope to be here soon in cities l ike Fargo and B ismarck. 

These cities can strongly benefit from the convenience and rel iabi l ity Uber brings. In  

fact, just last month alone, our app was opened over 6,000 times in  North Dakota by 

people looking for a car. That includes both visitors and over 1 ,500 people with North • Dakota area codes. 

1 
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• I n  addition to offering more accessible and rel iable transportation options, Uber has 

made several positive social impacts on the cities in which we operate, such as a 

reduction in DU ls .  Cities l i ke Seattle and Phi ladelphia previously did not have rel iable 

transportation late at n ight, leading to excessive drunk driving. After Uber's entry, 

monthly DUI  arrests have come down over 1 0% in these cities. For this reason, 

organ izations l i ke Mothers Against Drunk Driving have publ icly embraced rideshari ng. 

• 

• 

We're creating jobs - By coming to North Dakota, we can create hundreds of income 

opportun ities for the people here and at the same time, provide a safe ride home for 

many who previously lacked viable safe on demand transportation options. The beauty 

of the U ber system is that it al lows anyone who is properly qual ified -- to start earning 

money by using an existing asset - their car . . .  and does so ir;i a flexible way that al lows 

drivers to work on their own schedule. This is real American innovation at its best. 

Working with former Secretary of Defense Dr. Robert Gates, we've launched an 

in itiative cal led U berMi l itary, which has al ready created thousands of opportunities for 

veterans and mi l itary spouses by driving with Uber--we want North Dakota veterans and 

their spouses to have the opportun ity to participate as wel l .  

I n  th is  process, safety is Uber's number one concern and we pride ourselves with 

connecting passengers to some of the safest rides on the road in America and around 

the world .  

F i rst - We maintain end-to-end insurance coverage that ensures al l  parties are 

protected throughout the entire Uber experience. Every single ride request that is 

accepted on the U ber platform is covered by a commercial auto l iabil ity insurance pol icy 

-- maintained by Uber and rated "excellent" by AM Best. 

U nder this b i l l ,  every single ride in itiated through the Uber platform would be covered by 

a primary $ 1 -mi l l ion commercial l iabi l ity insurance pol icy provided by the TNC. Th is is 

i n  p lace from the time the driver accepts the request for a ride u ntil the passenger exits 

the vehicle. Note that this is double the existing taxi and l imo requirements in Fargo 

and is in l i ne with Bismarck. 

This b i l l  a lso requ i res that when a driver is logged into the Uber app, but not actual ly 

providing transportation to a passenger, Uber must provide insurance coverage at North 

Dakota state requ i red levels in the event that a driver's personal pol icy is not avai lable 

for any reason .  What's important to remember, is that the insurance provisions here 
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require the TNC to provide end-to-end insurance from the moment a driver fl ips the app 

on, through the duration of a trip .  

Our  coverage has been reviewed by several state insurance departments and found to 

meet or exceeds financial responsibi l ity requ i rements.  One former President of the 

National Association of I nsurance Commissioners, President of the Property Casualty 

I nsurers Association of America and South Carol ina I nsurance Commissioner noted 

most clearly "The special interests are Jobbing false claims about an "insurance gap" 

when none such exists. They are using scare tactics on a new service in order to 

protect their turf and to make more profits for themselves at the expense of drivers and 

consumers. I 've reviewed the coverage plans and there is no insurance gap. " 

Second , each and every one of our drivers undergoes a stringent background check 

process before coming onto the platform.  The bi l l  requ i res every driver appl icant to 

pass a federa l ,  multi-state, and county-level background check. This process is 

superior to many existing state practices and also requires a scan of the driver motor 

veh icle records and national sex offender registry. The process was recently audited 

and vetted by Mayor Rudy Giul iani and his security consulting firm, who found our 

process to be sound and "a substantial improvement over the existing safety standards 

in the personal h i re transportation world . "  

North Dakota has a positive reputation for being a business friendly state that supports 

American innovation,  and hopeful ly  soon - supports the new industry of ridesharing.  

20+ jurisdictions i n  the U S  have passed TNC regulations, the most recent of which is 

I l l i nois,  which passed regu lations similar to those in  front of you . 

I want to summarize by saying that Uber is in favor of balanced regulation that would 

al low free markets to operate, and bring on-demand transportation to communities of al l  

sizes. SB2368 does just that and would help provide a permanent home for ridesharing 

in North Dakota . 

I would l i ke to thank  al l of you for your time and attention ,  and would be happy to 

answer any questions . 
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Mr. Chairman and Senators of the committee - thank you for allowing me to speak this 
morning. 

My name is Joe Burgum. I am here today as a resident of Fargo, a citizen of North Dakota, 

and a customer of Transportation Network Companies, or TNCs. 

I recently moved home to Fargo after l ivihg in Chicago, Los Angeles, and Seattle. My time 
away has provided me the opportunity to understand why I love our great state and observe 

ways in which it could improve. I believe that SB 2368 leads to one of these ways. 

In  case you haven't used TNC services from companies l ike Uber or Lyft, I ' l l  explain them 

using an example that may be more familiar. 

Some of you may know the concept of Custom Combining and the impact it has had on North 

Dakota. As our state was evolving into the agricultural power that it is today, it was a common 

sight to see the fields fi l led with custom combines moving north up the plains from Nebraska 

to North Dakota. The value of custom combining is that farms did not need to own expensive 

combining equipment that was used for a small window of time each fal l .  This idea of sharing 

resources on an economy of scale for a community, is often referred to as collaborative 

consumption; a powerful economic tool which is changing how people l ive and is at the center 

of how customs combing and TNCs are successful. 

TNCs allow drivers to respond to demand for rides and share the use of vehicles in a more 

efficient way. From the East coast, to the West coast, and in the Midwest, I have personally 
seen the positive impact of ride-sharing on communities. 

Whether it be from ease of mind, knowing I can find a safe and rel iable ride home after a night 

out, to knowing many others are doing the same and are staying off the road. 

I have seen my girlfriend in Minneapolis become a driver as a way to make the equivalent to 
her full-time corporate entry level job in order to pay off student debt. 

While riding with TNC drivers, I often heard stories of individuals taking a risk and moving to a 

new city. These drivers knew that if when moved to a city with Uber or Lyft, they would have 

an income as they transition into other employment. Note this bill as a differentiator as we 

work to attract and retain a workforce. 

Not only wil l this bil l allow for a free market solution to public safety, the creation of jobs with 

flexible hours, and a workforce attractor, it provides us an opportunity to show the world we 

are open to new technologies that improve our quality of l ife. 

In  closing , I would ask that you not only vote in favor of this bil l ,  but take a moment to explain 

why we need TNCs to your fellow Statesman. This is a simple way to make a great change. 



( I N  OPPOSITION TO SB 2368 

Dal e  A. Haake - Director of Casualty Claims for Nodak M utual  I ns .  

Representing Nodak M utual  I ns u ra nce Company 

Chairm a n  Oehl ke, members of the Senate Transportation Com mittee, 

my n a me is Dale Haake, Director of Casu alty Claims for N odak M utual  

I ns. o ut of Fargo, and I am here to speak in opposition to SB 2368, 

s pecifical ly 39-34-09 which deals w.ith d isclosure requ i rements a nd 

obligations of insurers rega rd ing accidents involving TNC d rivers. 

As stated i n  seve ra l  places in th is bi l l, it is wel l  u nderstood that many 

persona l  a uto pol icies h ave exclusions for both l iabi l ity cla ims a n d  

col l is ion losses when the vehicle i s  being used as a l ivery conveyance. 

These a re very standard exclusions which exist in  a great majority of 

a uto policies. Vet, this bi l l  places u n d ue b u rdens u pon insura nce 

carriers, even when that carrier has no obl igation to cover such l osses. 

L 



( Pa ragra p h  4. of 39-34-09 places a req uirement u pon each ins u rer  

to d isclose prominently on its appl ication for insurance, a notice of 

whether or not the pol icy provides coverage while the insured is 

engaged in TNC services. Then, if such an exclusion does exist, another 

docu ment m ust be suppl ied the insu red restating the exact wording 

which excludes this coverage. Th is is not req uired of other exclusions. 

Why should this burden exist in this situation? 

( 
Then we h ave pa ragra ph 3.  of 39-34-09. This puts an obl igation on the 

person a l  a uto ca rrier, even after they have printed a notice on their 

a ppl ication for insura nce that they a re excl ud ing cove rage for TNC 

service and have provided another docu ment to the insured stating the 

word ing they used in the policy to excl ude such coverage, to 

investigate each loss which does occur a nd notify the insured that 

coverage d oes not apply. Then, and only then, wil l  the insurance 

p rovided by the TNC company agree to get involved . 

L 
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Chairma n Oeh l ke, members of the Senate Tra nsportation Com mittee, 

these req u irements do not make sense. These requi rements wi l l  waste 

money and effort for every a uto ca rrier that writes business in North 

Da kota . It places added burden and cha nce for error on each and every 

insura nce agent who writes business in this state. Plus it requ i res 

insu ra nce ca rriers to conduct needless investigations on accidents and 

to forma l ly deny cla ims just to get the TNC ca rrier to perform . That is 

not fa ir  to the a uto ca rriers in this state, it is not fa ir  to the insu rance 

agents i n  this state, a nd it is not fa ir to the people who have been 

harmed in some m a n ner by a d river e ngaged in TNC service who wi l l  

have t h e i r  claims delayed wh ile th ings "work their way th rough the 

cha n nels" . 

The sol ution to the mess 39-34-09 wil l  create is to req u i re the insura nce 

coverage mandated for the TNC d river and the TNC com pany to be 

primary over a ny other  insurance which may exist. I would encourage 

("- that a l l  reference to insurance brstruck from �his bi l l  a nd that the issue 
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of ins u ra n ce coverage be addressed under H B  1144 wh ich takes the 

burden from the persona l a uto insurance carrier a n d  places it u pon the 

TNC compa ny, their d river, and their  insurers, which is where the 

burden should be p laced. 



TESTIMONY I N  OPPOSITION TO SB 2368 

ffeS- I  

Senate Transportation 
February 6, 201 5 

9:00 a .m.  

Good morning Chairman Oehlke and members of  the Senate 

Transportation Committee. My name is Pat Ward. I represent the Property and 

Casualty I nsu rance Association of America and the Association of North Dakota 

I nsurers i n  opposition to SB 2368. 

This b i l l  does two things. It attempts to regu late transportation network 

companies and their drivers. It also creates certain insurance requirements and 

disclosures relating to the transportation network company service. 

This b i l l  is based on an I l l inois statute that was adopted last session and is 

intended to go into effect in J uly of 201 5 .  My understanding is that this I l l inois 

statute is currently being reviewed in the current I l l inois session and several 

changes are l ikely to come, now that there is a new governor. 

The issue of TNC companies such as Uber and Lyft has created a good 

number of legislative and legal strugg les in both state legislatures and 

mun icipalit ies around the country, as wel l  as the Courts. 

The most comprehensive leg islation is the Cal iforn ia model which the 

insurance industry has introduced in North Dakota as HB 1 1 44. I am provid ing 

you with copies of HB 1 1 44. This is the model we support for insuring al l 

scenarios i nvolving these drivers. 

Lobbyists and attorneys were here from Uber and we are working with the 

House committee to get a good insurance bi l l .  
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I oppose this b i l l  on many points. I would strongly urge a Do Not Pass. 

However, if th is committee bel ieves there is a need for Uber regu lation as 

provided in  this bi l l  outside of the insurance requirements, I believe that you 

should gut the insurance requirements from this bi l l  and pass this bi l l  as a TNC 

regu lation statute and leave the House Bill to be the insurance regu lation statute. 

There are many legal issues and potential quagmires presented by this 

type of operation. While we certainly respect and encourage the innovation and 

bel ieve this cou ld provide a useful service for North Dakotans, we believe that 

insurance reg ulation should be handled separately and with supervision of DOI ,  

not DOT. 

We urge a strong Do Not Pass and I wi l l  try to answer any questions. 

P:\PWARD\Legislative 201 5\Testimony i n  Opposition t o  SB 2368.doc 
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Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Representative Keiser 

Senator Klein 
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HOUSE BILL NO. 1144 
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1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapter 26.1-40.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

2 relating to insurance coverage of motor vehicles participating in transportation network 

3 company networks, priority of coverage, and minimum limits; and to provide for application. 

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

5 SECTION 1. Chapter 26.1-40.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted 

6 as follows: 

7 26.1-40.1-01. Definitions . 

8 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires: 

9 .L "Application off stage" of operation means the time period when the driver is operating 

10 

11 

the vehicle for personal noncommercial reasons and not engaged in any manner or 

operation for the transportation network company. 

12 £. "Application on stage" means the time period the driver is logged onto the 

13 

14 

online-enabled application of a transportation network company and available for hire 

but not engaged and there is no passenger on board. 

15 ~ "Engaged stage" means the time period from the moment a participating driver 

16 

17 

18 

accepts a ride request on the transportation network company online-enabled 

application or platform until the driver completes the transaction on the online-enabled 

application or platform or until the ride is complete, whichever is later. 

19 4. "Participating driver" or "driver" means any person who uses a vehicle in connection 

20 

21 

22 

23 

with a transportation network company's online-enabled application or platform to 

connect with passengers. 

.5.,. "Passengers on-board stage" means the time period when there are passengers in the 

vehicle pursuant to the driver's participation in a transportation network company. 

Page No. 1 15. 0434.02000 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

6. "Transportation network company" means a person operating in this state that 

provides prearranged transportation services for compensation using an 

online-enabled application or platform to connect passengers with drivers using a 

personal vehicle. 

5 L "Transportation network company insurance" means a liability insurance policy that 

6 specifically covers liabilities arising from a participating driver's use of a vehicle in 

7 connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled application or 

8 platform. 

9 26.1-40.1-02. Reg u ired disclosures. 

10 1,. A transportation network company shall disclose in writing to participating drivers. as 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

part of its agreement with those drivers. the insurance coverage and limits of liability 

that the transportation network company provides while the driver uses a vehicle in 

connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled application or 

platform and shall advise a participating driver in writing of when the driver's personal 

automobile insurance policy will not provide coverage under the agreement. 

2.,. A transportation network company shall disclose in writing to participating drivers. as 

part of its agreement with those drivers. of when the driver's personal automobile 

insurance policy will not provide collision or comprehensive coverage, under the 

agreement. 

20 ~ A transportation network company shall provide notice of a driver's participation in the 

21 transportation network directly to the driver's personal automobile insurer unless that 

22 insurer is providing transportation network company insurance to the driver. 

23 26.1-40.1-03. Coverage required when transportation network company application is 

24 engaged until completion of ride. 

25 1,. A transportation network company and any participating driver shall maintain 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

transportation network company insurance and unless otherwise specified. the 

following requirements apply to transportation network company insurance during the 

engaged stage and during the passenger on-board stage. 

a. Transportation network company insurance is primary and in the amount of one 

million dollars for death. personal injury. and property damage. The requirements 

Page No. 2 15.0434.02000 
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4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 
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for the coverage required by this subdivision may be satisfied by any of the 
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ill Transportation network company insurance maintained by a participating 

driver. 

0 Transportation network company insurance maintained by a transportation 

network company. 

.Ql Any combination of paragraphs 1 and 2. 

Q,, Transportation network company insurance coverage provided under this section 

also provides for uninsured motorist coverage and underinsured motorist 

coverage in the amount of one million dollars anytime the driver has 

transportation network company passengers on board. 

c. Transportation network company insurance coverage must provide personal 

injury protection to drivers. passengers. and pedestrians as provided under 

chapter 26.1-41 . 

~ The primary insurer. in the case of insurance coverage provided under 

subdivision a. has the duty to defend and indemnify the insured. 

§..,, A transportation network company may meet its obligations under this section 

18 through a policy obtained by a participating driver under paragraph 1 or 3 of 

19 subdivision a only if the transportation network company verifies that the policy is 

20 maintained by the driver and is specifically written to cover the driver's use of a 

21 vehicle in connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled 

22 application or platform. 

23 26.1-40.1-04. Insurance coverage during the application on stage with no passengers 

24 in vehicle. 

25 1,_ The following requirements apply to transportation network company insurance for 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

application on stage: 

a. Transportation network company insurance shall be primary and in the amount of 

at least twenty-five thousand dollars for death and personal injury per person, fifty 

thousand dollars for death and personal injury per incident. and twenty-five 

thousand dollars for property damage . 

Q,, Transportation network company insurance coverage must provide: 

Page No. 3 15.0434.02000 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

ill Uninsured motorist coverage under subsection 3 of section 26.1-40-15.1: 

.(21 Underinsured motorist coverage under subsection 2 of section 26.1-40-15.1 : 

Ql Personal injury protection under chapter 26.1-41 : and 

.(41 Collision physical damage coverage and comprehensive physical damage 

5 coverage. 

6 £. The requirements for the coverage required by this section may be satisfied by any of 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

the following : 

a. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a participating driver. 

b. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a transportation 

network company that provides coverage in the event a participating driver's 

insurance policy under subdivision a of subsection 1 has ceased to exist or has 

been canceled. or the participating driver does not otherwise maintain 

transportation network company insurance pursuant to this section. 

c. Any combination of subsections a and b. 

15 3. A transportation network company shall maintain insurance coverage that provides 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

excess coverage insuring the transportation network company and the driver in the 

amount of at least two hundred thousand dollars per occurrence to cover any liability 

arising from a participating driver using a vehicle in connection with a transportation 

network company's online-enabled application or platform within the application on 

stage specified in this section, which liability exceeds the required coverage limits in 

subdivision a of subsection 1. 

22 4. The insurer providing insurance coverage under this section is the only insurer having 

23 the duty to defend any liability claim arising from an accident occurring within the time 

24 periods specified in this section. 

25 ~ A transportation network company may meet its obligations under this section through 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

a policy obtained by a participating driver under subdivisions a or c of subsection 2 

only if the transportation network company verifies that the policy is maintained by the 

driver and is specifically written to cover the driver's use of a vehicle in connection with 

a transportation network company's online-enabled application or platform. 

6. Coverage under a transportation network company insurance policy may neither be 

dependent on a driver's personal automobile insurance policy carrier first denying a 

Page No. 4 15.0434.02000 
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claim nor a personal automobile insurance policy carrier be required to first deny a 

claim . 
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3 L In every instance where transportation network company insurance maintained by a 

4 participating driver to fulfill the insurance obligations of this section has lapsed or 

5 ceased to exist. the transportation network company shall provide the coverage 

6 required by this section beginning with the first dollar of a claim. 

7 26.1-40.1-05. Liability of transportation network company beyond required limits. 

8 This chapter does not limit the liability of a transportation network company arising out of an 

9 automobile accident involving a participating driver in any action for damages against a 

10 transportation network company for an amount above the required insurance coverage. 

11 26.1-40.1-06. Limitations on driver's personal auto policy during passenger on-board 

12 stage. engaged stage. and application on stage. 

13 i During the application on stage. engaged stage. or passenger on-board stage. the 

14 

15 

following apply: 

• 16 

a. The participating driver's or the vehicle owner's personal automobile insurance 

policy does not provide any coverage to the participating driver. vehicle owner. or 

any third party, unless the policy expressly provides for that coverage during the 

period of time to which this section is applicable. with or without a separate 

charge. or the policy contains an amendment or endorsement to provide that 

coverage. for which a separately stated premium is charged. 

• 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

~ The participating driver's or the vehicle owner's personal automobile insurance 

company does not have the duty to defend or indemnify for the driver's activities 

in connection with the transportation network company. unless the policy 

expressly provides otherwise for the period of time to which this section is 

applicable, with or without a separate charge. or the policy contains an 

amendment or endorsement to provide that coverage. for which a separately 

stated premium is charged. 

c. Nothing in this chapter may be construed to require a private passenger 

automobile insurance policy to provide primary or excess coverage during the 

application on stage. engaged stage, or passenger on-board stage . 

Page No. 5 15.0434.02000 
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1 26.1-40.1-07. Discretionary personal insurance where offered by personal automobile 

2 insurer. 

3 Notwithstanding any other law. a personal automobile insurer may offer an automobile 

4 liability insurance policy. or an amendment or endorsement to an existing policy that covers a 

5 private passenger vehicle or similar type of vehicle with a passenger capacity of eight persons 

6 or less. including the driver. while used in connection with a transportation network company's 

7 online-enabled application or platform only if the policy expressly provides for the coverage 

8 during the time period specified in section 26. 1-40. 1-03. with or without a separate charge. or 

9 the policy contains an amendment or an endorsement to provide that coverage. for which a 

10 separately stated premium may be charged . 

11 26.1-40.1-08. Duty to cooperate. 

12 In a claims coverage investigation involving a participating driver. a transportation network 

13 company or its insurer shall cooperate with insurers that are involved in the claims coverage 

14 investigation to facilitate the exchange of information. including the provision of dates and times 

15 at which an accident occurred involving a participating driver and the precise times that the 

• 

16 participating driver logged on and off the transportation network company's on line-enabled • 

17 application or platform. 

18 26.1-40.1-09. Confidentiality of passenger personal information. 

19 A transportation network company may not disclose to a third party any personally 

20 identifiable information of a transportation network company passenger unless the customer 

21 knowingly consents. under a legal obligation. or the disclosure is to the commissioner of 

22 insurance in order to investigate a complaint filed with the commissioner against a 

23 transportation network company or a participating driver and the commissioner treats the 

24 information under confidentiality protections. 

25 26.1-40.1-10. Financial responsibility. 

26 Transportation network company insurance that meets the requirements of this chapter is 

27 deemed to satisfy the financial responsibility requirements of chapter 39-16. 

28 26.1-40.1-11. Proof of insurance. 

29 A participating driver of a transportation network company shall carry proof of transportation 

30 network company insurance coverage at all times during the driver's use of a vehicle in 

31 connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled application or platform. In 

Page No. 6 15.0434.02000 
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the event of an accident. a participating driver shall provide this insurance coverage information 

to any other party involved in the accident. and to a police officer. upon request. 

SECTION 2. APPLICATION. The insurance commissioner shall expedite review of any 

application for approval of transportation network company insurance products so that these 

products become available for purchase on or before the effective date of this Act. 

Page No. 7 15.0434.02000 
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U B E R  Aug ust 27, 20 1 4  
E V E R Y O N E ' S P R I VA T E  D R I V E R '" 

Assem bly B i l l  2293 (Bon i l la) - SUPPORT 

U ber Tech nolog ies,  I nc .  is i n  S U PPORT of Assembly  B i l l  2293 .  

N ew amend me nts t o  AB 2293 add ress m a n y  o f  t h e  concerns that U ber 
has had in reg a rd to excessive i n s u rance req u i rements . 

G iven C a l iforn ia 's  u n iq ue i n s u rance reg u l atory framework, i ncl ud ing 
P rop 1 03 ,  we bel ieve the b i l l  is  a n  approp riate compromise for 
i n s u ra nce compan ies a n d  TNCs i n  th is state . We enco u rage the 

( Gove rnor a nd the C a l ifornia P u b l i c  Ut i l ities Commission (C P U C ) to 
c la rify how the excess l i a b i l ity i ns u rance appl ies when a d river is 
associated with m u lti p le  TNCs so as to n ot create d u p l icative 
coverage.  

U be r  a ppreciates the wi l l ing ness of a l l  parties to wo rk thro u g h  the 
many com plex pol icy issues re lated to ridesharing . 

AB 2293 i s  fu rther testament to the Cal iforn ia  Leg is latu re's 
com m itment to foster i n n ovation and b u i ld  a new economy.  U ber,  
a long with tens of thousands of d river partners and r iders ,  looks 
forwa rd to conti n u ing to g row and th rive in ou r home state of Cal ifornia 
and a ro u n d  the wo rl d .  

UBER is proud to be a California-born company. By seamlessly connecting riders to drivers through our 
app, Uber links people all over the globe (located in 1 80 cities in 45 countries) with easy and affordable 
transportation options. 
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Lyn \\rJt~:. to :-.tippon the rnrrem n~r.sion of AB 2.293 tBnnilluL After long and intense 
nl.'.gotiatwn. we have E1rrivc-J at a compromise w pmvide clarity for all parties. The bill 
ulkm s frn in.-,ur:o1JK'c.' CtHHp<tnic:-. lo update and introduc~ n~w rohci~s for consumer.s who 
\\ ish to lllm tlwir \\?hide:s from a finuncial burden into tm t:cnnomk opponunity. Riders 
a.nu drivt'rS will al.so i.;Onlinuc 10 be pmt-.:cted by L~ n's$ I 1nillion insurance polky 
\\ ht·nc' >::'f they <lre m:ud11:.•tL This current level of prmection ren11:tins man) times higha 
1h~m \\hm is pro\ ided by taxis in mr~j1)r cities iik~ Loi> Angele~. 

L) ft ha~ d!ligi:mly \·rnrkc-d with th..: sL1pporter5 of ihis bf IL Senate fcm.krship awl the 
Coven1or' s Dffo.:i: (l) rem:h !hi$ compromise. '-! n therefor~ urgc.'S <I yes. VOit.:' i.Hl AB 
229.~. 



( ' 

P ROPOSED AMENDM ENTS TO SB 2368 
In Alternative to Do Not Pass 

Page 2 ,  remove l ines 4-7 

Page 3 ,  remove l ines 3-31 

Page 4, remove l ines 1 -1 4  

P age 5 ,  remove l ines 1 0-1 9 

Renumber accord ing ly 

Senate Transportation 
February 6, 201 5  
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T h i s  copy is for y o u r  pers o n a l ,  non-co mmercial  use o n ly T o  order presentat ion-ready 
cop ies for d istnbut 1on to col leag ues,  c l ients or c u stomers . use the Reprints too l  a t  the top of 
a n y  a rticle or vis i t :  www. reutersreprints . com.  

U .S .  j udge says Lyft drivers may be 
entitled to em ployee benefits 
Th u ,  Jan 29 201 5  

By Dan Levine 

SAN FRAN C I SC O ,  Jan 29 (Reuters) - A U . S .  judge on Th u rsday said it was "very d ifficult" 
to decide whether d rivers for smartphone-enabled car service Lyft are employees or 
independent contractors , but that Cal ifornia law appears to favor the drivers. 

Lyft a nd larger rival U ber face sepa rate lawsu its seeking class action status in San 
Francisco federal court, b rought on behalf of d rivers who contend they a re emp loyees and 
entitled to reimbu rsement for expenses including gas and vehicle maintenance. The drivers 
cu rrently pay those costs themselves. 

A ru l ing against e ither company could sig n ificantly raise their costs beyond the lawsuits' 
scope and force the companies to pay socia l  secu rity, workers' compensation,  and 
unemployment insurance . That cou ld  affect the va luations for other startups that rely on 
large networks of i nd ivid uals to provide rides , clean houses and the l ike. 

At a hearing on the Lyft lawsu it on Thursday, U . S .  District J udge Vincent Chhabria said he 
was "scratch ing my head" because trad it ional employment categories are "woeful ly 
outdated " when appl ied to compa n ies l ike Lyft. 

However,  Ch habria  said Californ ia legal p recedents "point pretty strong ly i n  the d i rection" 
that "people who do the kinds of th i ngs that Lyft d rivers do here a re employees."  

A hearing on the same issue involv ing U ber is set to take p lace on Friday before a d ifferent 
judge.  

Uber has ra ised more than $4 bi l l ion from prominent venture cap ital firms such as 
Benchmark and Goog le Ventu res, va lu ing the company at $40 b i l l ion and making it the most 
va l uable U . S .  startup.  Lyft has ra ised $331 mil l ion from Andreessen Horowitz, Founders 
F u nd and other i nvestors. 

The d rivers h ave not yet specified how much money they a re seeking in damages. 
(Reporting by Dan Levine;  Ed it ing by Ch ristian Plu mb) 

© Th omson Reuters 201 5 .  /\ I I  rig hts reserved . U se rs m ay d ow n l oad a n d  pri n t  extracts of 
content  from this website for the i r  own person a l  and n on-commercia l  use on ly .  
Republ icat io n  or  red istribut ion of T homson Reuters content. inc lud ing by fra ming or  s imi lar  
mea n s . is expressly proh ib ited without t l1 e  prior written consent of  Thomson R euters . 
Thomson Reuters and its iog o a re registered trademarks o r  trade m a rks of the Thomson 
R e u te rs g roup of com p a n ies a round the world . 

Thomson Reute rs J O u rn a i ists a re subject to a n  Ed itori a l  Handbook w h ic h  requ i re s  fa i r  
prese ntation a n d  cJ 1sc!osure of  releva n t  in terests . 

http://www.reuters.com/assets/print?aid=USL 1 NOV82L220 1 50 1 29 2/ 1 /20 1 5  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

#1 

:p::- J- I 
� /  1.3/ JS 

SECTION 1 .  LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - TRANSPORTATION 

NETWORK COMPANY SERVICES. During the 20 1 5-1 6 interim, the legislative 

management shall study services offered by a transportation network company. The study must 

examine and identify which govermnent agency or agencies are equipped to regulate 

transportation network company services. The study must examine insurance coverage provided 

by transportation network companies and determine whether additional insurance is required to 

protect transportation network company drivers and transportation network company customers 

against ioss. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together 

with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fifth legislative 

assembly. 
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15.1011 .01004 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Casper , I ( / ~ 

February 17, 2015 021JC/ ...I. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Page 2, remove lines 4 through 13 

Page 2, line 14, replace "39-34-04" with "39-34-02" 

Page 2, line 15, after "agent" insert "with the secretary of state" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "39-34-05" with "39-34-03" 

Page 2, remove lines 18 through 20 

Page 2, remove lines 24 through 31 

Page 3, remove lines 1 and 2 

Page 3, line 3, replace "39-34-08" with "39-34-04" 

Page 4, line 15, replace "39-34-09" with "39-34-05" 

Page 5, remove lines 28 through 31 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 13 

Page 6, line 14, replace "39-34-11" with "39-34-06" 

Page 7, line 13, replace "nineteen" with "eighteen" 

Page 7, remove lines 14 through 31 

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 15 

Page 8, line 16, replace "39-34-16" with "39-34-07" 

Page 8, line 19, replace "one" with "six" 

Page 8, line 21 , replace "39-34-17" with "39-34-08" 

Page 8, replace lines 22 through 29 with "A transportation network company may not disclose 
any personally identifiable information of a transportation network company passenger 
except under a legal obligation or for payment processing. For any other disclosure, 
the transportation network company must obtain the passenger's written consent on a 
separate form specifically addressing passenger personal information before the 
company may disclose the passenger's personally identifiable information ." 

Page 9, line 1, replace "39-34-18" with "39-34-09" 

Page 9, line 4, replace "municipality or other local entity" with "political subdivision" 

Page 9, line 7, replace "municipality's or other local entity's" with "political subdivision's" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.1011 .01004 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Casper 

February 17, 2015 :l/ff /6 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Page 2, remove lines 4 through 13 

Page 2, line 14, replace "39-34-04" with "39-34-02" 

Page 2, line 15, after "agent" insert "with the secretary of state" 

Page 2, line 17, replace "39-34-05" with "39-34-03" 

Page 2, remove lines 18 through 20 

Page 2, remove lines 24 through 31 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 5, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 13 

Page 6, line 14, replace "39-34-11" with "39-34-04" 

Page 7, line 13, replace "nineteen" with "eighteen" 

Page 7, remove lines 14 through 31 

• Page 8, remove lines 1 through 15 

• 

Page 8, line 16, replace "39-34-16" with "39-34-05" 

Page 8, line 19, replace "one" with "six" 

Page 8, line 21 , replace "39-34-17" with "39-34-06" 

Page 8, replace lines 22 through 29 with "A transportation network company may not disclose 
any personally identifiable information of a transportation network company passenger 
except under a legal obligation or for payment processing. For any other disclosure. 
the transportation network company must obtain the passenger's written consent on a 
separate form specifically addressing passenger personal information before the 
company may disclose the passenger's personally identifiable information." 

Page 9, line 1, replace "39-34-18" with "39-34-07" 

Page 9, line 4, replace "municipality or other local entity" with "political subdivision" 

Page 9, line 7, replace "municipality's or other local entity's" with "political subdivision's" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.1011 .01003 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
Insurance Department 

February 17, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Page 1, line 1, replace "chapter" with "chapters 26.1-40.1 and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "services" insert ", insurance coverage of motor vehicles 
participating in transportation network company networks and services, priority of 
coverage, and minimum limits" 

Page 1, after line 3, insert: 

SECTION 1. Chapter 26 .1-40.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 
enacted as follows: 

"26.1-40.1-01. Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires : 

1. "Application off stage" of operation means the time period when the driver 
is operating the vehicle for personal noncommercial reasons and not 
engaged in any manner or operation for the transportation network 
company. 

2. "Application on stage" means the time period the driver is logged onto the 
online-enabled application of a transportation network company and 
available for hire but not engaged and there is no passenger on board . 

3. "Engaged stage" means the time period from the moment a participating 
driver accepts a ride request on the transportation network company 
online-enabled application or platform until the driver completes the 
transaction on the online-enabled application or platform or until the ride is 
complete, whichever is later. 

4. "Participating driver" or "driver" means any person who uses a vehicle in 
connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled 
application or platform to connect with passengers. 

5. "Passengers on-board stage" means the time period when there are 
passengers in the vehicle pursuant to the driver's participation in a 
transportation network company. 

1 
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6. "Transportation network company" means a person operating in this state 
that provides prearranged transportation services for compensation using 
an online-enabled application or platform to connect passengers with 
drivers using a personal vehicle. 

7. "Transportation network company insurance" means an insurance policy 
that covers a driver's use of a vehicle in connection with a transportation 
network company's online-enabled application or platform. 

26.1-40.1-02. Required disclosures. 

1. A transportation network company shall disclose in writing or electronic 
form to participating drivers, as part of its agreement with those drivers, 
the insurance coverage and limits of liability that the transportation 
network company provides while the driver uses a vehicle in connection 
with a transportation network company's online-enabled application or 
platform and shall advise a participating driver that the driver's personal 
automobile insurance policy may not provide coverage under the 
agreement. 

2. A transportation network company shall disclose in writing or electronic 
form to participating drivers, as part of its agreement with those drivers, of 
when the driver's personal automobile insurance policy may not provide 
collision or comprehensive coverage, under the agreement. 

3. A transportation network company shall provide notice of a driver's 
participation in the transportation network directly to the driver's personal 
automobile insurer unless that insurer is providing transportation network 
company insurance to the driver. 

26.1-40.1-03. Coverage required when transportation network company 
application is engaged until completion of ride when the passenger has exited the 
vehicle. 

1. A transportation network company and any participating driver shall 
maintain transportation network company insurance that provides for the 
following requirements that apply to transportation network company 
insurance during the engaged stage and during the passenger on-board 
stage. 

a. Transportation network company liability insurance is primary and 
in the amount of one million dollars for death , bodily injury, and 
property damage. The requirements for the coverage required by 
this subdivision may be satisfied by any of the following : 

ill Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
participating driver. 

2 
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Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
transportation network company. 

Ql Any combination of paragraphs 1 and 2. 

b. Transportation network company insurance coverage provided 
under this section also provides for uninsured motorist coverage 
and underinsured motorist coverage in the amount of one million 
dollars anytime the driver has transportation network company 
passengers on board. 

c. Transportation network company insurance coverage must provide 
personal injury protection to drivers, passengers, and pedestrians 
as provided under chapter 26.1-41 . 

d. The primary insurer, in the case of insurance coverage provided 
under subdivision a, has the sole duty to defend and indemnify the 
insured . 

26.1-40.1-04. Insurance coverage during the application on stage with no 
passengers in vehicle . 

1. The following requirements apply to transportation network company 
insurance for application on stage: 

a. Transportation network company insurance shall be primary and in 
the amount of at least fifty thousand dollars for death and bodily 
injury per person, one hundred thousand dollars for death and 
bodily injury per incident, and twenty-five thousand dollars for 
property damage. 

b. Transportation network company insurance coverage must provide: 

ill Uninsured motorist coverage under subsection 3 of section 
26 .1-40-15.1; 

ill Underinsured motorist coverage under subsection 2 of 
section 26.1-40-15.1; and 

Ql Personal injury protection under chapter 26.1-41 . 

2. The requirements for the coverage required by this section may be 
satisfied by any of the following : 

3 
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a. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
participating driver. 

b. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a 
transportation network company that provides coverage in the 
event a participating driver's insurance policy under subdivision a of 
subsection 1 has ceased to exist or has been canceled, or the 
participating driver does not otherwise maintain transportation 
network company insurance pursuant to this section. 

c. Any combination of subsections a and b. 

3. The primary insurer, in the case of the insurance coverage provided under 
subdivision a of subsection 1, has the sole duty to defend and indemnify 
the insured during the time period specified in this section . 

4. Coverage under a transportation network company insurance policy may 
neither be dependent on a driver's personal automobile insurance policy 
carrier first denying a claim nor a personal automobile insurance policy 
carrier being required to first deny a claim. 

5. In every instance where transportation network company insurance 
maintained by a participating driver to fulfill the insurance obligations of 
this section has lapsed or ceased to exist, the transportation network 
company shall provide the coverage required by this section beginning 
with the first dollar of a claim. 

26.1-40.1-05. Liability of transportation network company beyond required 
limits. 

This chapter does not limit the liability of a transportation network company 
arising out of an automobile accident involving a participating driver in any action for 
damages against a transportation network company for an amount above the required 
insurance coverage. 

26.1-40.1-06. Limitations on driver's personal automobile policy during 
passenger on-board stage, engaged stage, and application on stage. 

1. During the application on stage, engaged stage, or passenger on-board 
stage, the following apply: 

a. The participating driver's or the vehicle owner's personal automobile 
insurance policy does not provide any coverage to the participating 
driver, vehicle owner, or any third party, unless the policy expressly 
provides for that coverage during the period of time to which this 
section is applicable , with or without a separate charge , or the policy 
contains an amendment or endorsement to provide that coverage, 

4 
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b. 

C. 

for which a separately stated premium is charged . 

The participating driver's or the vehicle owner's personal automobile 
insurance company does not have the duty to defend or indemnify 
for the driver's activities in connection with the transportation 
network company, unless the policy expressly provides otherwise for 
the period of time to which this section is applicable, with or without 
a separate charge , or the policy contains an amendment or 
endorsement to provide that coverage, for which a separately stated 
premium is charged . 

Nothing in this chapter may be construed to require a private 
passenger automobile insurance policy to provide primary or excess 
coverage during the application on stage, engaged stage, or 
passenger on-board stage. 

26.1-40.1-07. Discretionary personal insurance where offered by personal 
automobile insurer. 

A personal automobile insurer may offer an automobile liability insurance policy, 
or an amendment or endorsement to an existing policy that covers a private passenger 
vehicle or similar type of vehicle with a passenger capacity of eight persons or less, 
including the driver, while used in connection with a transportation network company's 
online-enabled application or platform only if the policy expressly provides for the 
coverage during the time period specified in section 26.1-40.1-03, with or without a 
separate charge, or the policy contains an amendment or an endorsement to provide 
that coverage, for which a separately stated premium may be charged. 

26.1-40.1-08. Duty to cooperate. 
In a claims coverage investigation involving a participating driver. a transportation 

network company or its insurer shall cooperate with insurers that are involved in the 
claims coverage investigation to facilitate the exchange of information , including the 
provision of dates and times at which an accident occurred involving a participating 
driver and the precise times that the participating driver logged on and off the 
transportation network company's online-enabled application or platform. 

26.1-40.1-09. Confidentiality of passenger personal information. 
A transportation network company may not disclose any personally identifiable 

information of a transportation network company passenger except under a legal 
obligation or for payment processing . For any other disclosure, the transportation 
network company must obtain the passenger 's written consent on a separate form 
specifically addressing passenger personal information before the company may 
disclose the passenger 's personally identifiable information . 

26.1-40.1-10. Financial responsibility. 
Transportation network company insurance that meets the requi rements of this 

chapter is deemed to satisfy the financial responsibility requirements of chapter 39-16. 

5 



26.1-40.1-11. Proof of insurance. 
A participating driver of a transportation network company shall carry proof of 

transportation network company insurance coverage at all times during the driver's use 
of a vehicle in connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled 
application or platform. In the event of an accident, a participating driver shall provide 
this insurance coverage information to any other party involved in the accident, and to a 
police officer, upon request. 

26.1-40.1-12. Authorized or eligible carrier. 
Transportation network company insurance required by this chapter may be 

placed with an insurer authorized to do business in the state or with a surplus lines 
insurer eligible under section 26.1-44-03." 

Renumber accordingly 
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NOTE : This bill has been p repa red for the signatu res of the appropriate legislative 
officers a n d  the Governor. To d etermine wheth er the Governor h as signed the bill 

o r  taken other actio n on it, please cons u lt the legislative status sheet, the legislativ 
histo ry, or the Session Laws. 

c U ct 0 

SENA TE BILL 1 4- 1 25  

BY SENATOR(S) Jalu1 and Harvey, Baumgardner, Cadman, Crowder, 
Grantham, Herpin, Hodge, Johnston, Lambert, Marble, Newell ,  Rivera, 
Steadman, Todd, Zenzinger, Agui lar; 
also REPRESENTATIVE(S)  Pabon and Szabo, Becker, Coram, Foote, 
Garcia, Gardner, Hamner, Holbert, Hullinghorst, Joshi, Kagan, Landgraf, 
Lawrence, May, McCann, McNulty, Murray, Navarro, Nordberg, Priola, 
Rankin, Schafer, Scott, S inger, Stephens, Vigi l ,  Wil l iams, Wilson, Wright, 
Gina!, Pettersen, Rosenthal, Saine, Sonnenberg, Young. 

CONCERNING THE REGULATION OF TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

COMPANIES, AND, IN CONNECTION THEREW ITH, REQUI RING 

TRANSPORTATION N ETWORK COMPANIES TO CARRY LIABILITY 

INSURANCE , CONDUCT BACKGROUN D CHECKS ON TRAN SPORT A TI ON 

NETWORK COMPANY DRIVERS, INSPECTTRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

COM PANY VEH ICLES, AND OBTAIN A PERMIT FROM THE PUBLIC 

UTILITIES COM MISSION ;  AND MAK ING AN AP PROPRIATION . 

Be it enacted by the General Assembly oft he State of Colorado: 
SECTION 1 .  In Colorado Revised Statutes, 40- 1 - 1 02 ,  a mend (3) 

(b) as fol lows: 

40- 1 - 1 02. Definitions. As used in articles 1 to 7 of this title, unless 

Capital fellers indicate n ew material added to existing statlttes; dashes throltgh words indicate 

deletivnsji·um existing statlttes and such material 1101 part of act. 
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l. 

the context otherwise requires: 

(3) (b) "Common carrier" does not include a motor carrier that 
provides transportation not subject to regulation pursuant to section 

40- 1 0 . 1 - 1 05 ,  or A MOTOR CARRIER that is  subject to part 3, 4, or 5 of ai1icle 
1 0 . 1  of this title, A TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY' AS DEFINED IN 

SECTION 40- 1 0 . 1 -602 (3), OR A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COM PANY 

DRIVER, AS DEFINED I N  SECTION 40- 1 0 . 1 -602 ( 4) .  

SECTION 2. In Colorado Revised Statutes, 40-7- 1 1 2 ,  a m en d  ( 1 )  

(a) as fol lows : 

40-7- 1 12.  Applica bility of civil pena lties. ( 1 )  (a) A person who 
operates or offers to operate as a motor carrier as defined in section 
40- 1 0. 1 - 1 0 1 ;  or a motor carrier, motor private carrier, broker, freight 

forwarder, leasing company, or other person required to register under 
section 40- 1 0 .5- 1 02 ;  OR A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY 

REQUI RED TO OBTAIN A PERMIT UNDER SECTION 40- 1 0 . 1 -606 is subject to 

civi l  penalties as provided in this section and sections 40-7 - 1 1 3  to 

40-7- 1 1 6 ,  in addition to any other sanctions that may be imposed pursuant 
to law. 

SECTION 3. In Colorado Revised Statutes, 40- 1 0 . 1 - 1 0 1 ,  a m end 

(6) and ( 1 0) as fol lows: 

40-10. 1 - 1 0 1 .  Definitions. As used in this ai1icle, unless the context 
otherwise requires : 

( 6 )  "Contract carrier" means every person, other than a common 
carrier or a motor carrier of passengers under pai1 3 of this ai1icle, who, by 
spec ial contract, directly or indirectly affords a means of passenger 
transportation over any publ ic highway of this state; .EXCEPT THAT THE 

TERM DOES NOT INCLUDE A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPAN Y, AS 

DEFINED IN SECTION 40- 1 0 . 1 -602 (3), OR A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

COM PANY DRI VER, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 40- 1 0. 1 -602 (4). 

( 1 0) "Motor carrier" means any person owning, controlling, 

operating, or managing any A motor vehicle that provides transportation in 
intrastate commerce pursuant to this  article; EXCEPT THAT THE TERM DOES 

NOT INCLU DE A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY, AS DEFINE D  IN 
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SECTION 40- 1 0 . 1 -602 (3), OR A TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY 

DRIVER, AS DEFfNED IN SECTION 40- 1 0. 1 -602 (4). 

SECTION 4. In Colorado Revised Statutes, 40- 10. 1 - 1 03,  add (3) 
as follows: 

40-10. 1 - 1 03. S u bj ect to control by comm1ss10n. 
(3) TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPAN IES, AS DEFINED fN SECTION 
40- 1 0. 1 -602 (3), ARE NOT COMMON CARRIERS, CONTRACT CARRIERS, OR 

MOTOR CARRIERS UNDER THIS TITLE, BUT ARE DECLARED TO BE AFFECTED 

WITH A PUBLIC INTEREST AND ARE SUBJECTTO REGULATION TO THE EXTENT 

PROVIDED IN PART 6 OF THIS ARTICLE. 

SECTION 5. In Colorado Revised Statutes, add 40- 1 0. 1 - 1 1 7  as 
follows : 

40-10. 1-1 17. Limited regulation o f  transportation network 

companies. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION OF LA w, 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANIES, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 
40- 1 0. 1 -602 (3), ARE GOVERNED EXCLUS IVELY UNDER PART 6 OF THIS 
ARTICLE. 

SECTION 6. In Colorado Revised Statutes, add pa1i 6 to article 
1 0. 1  of title 40 as follows: 

PART 6 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANIES 

40- 10. 1 -601 .  Short title. THIS ARTICLE SHALL BE KNOWN AND MAY 

BE CITED AS THE "TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY Acr". 

40-10. 1-602. Definitions. As USED IN THIS PART 6, UNLESS THE 

CONTEXT OTHER W !SE REQUI RES : 

( 1 )  "PERSONAL VEHICLE" MEANS A VEHICLE THAT IS USED BY A 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY DRIVER IN CONNECTION WITH 

PROVIDING SERVICES FOR A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY THAT 
MEETS THE VEHICLE CRITERIA SET FORTH IN THIS PART 6. 

(2) "PREARRANGED RIDE" MEANS A PERIOD OF TIME THAT BEGINS 
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WHEN A DRIVER ACCEPTS A REQUESTED RIDE THROUGH A DIGITAL 

NETWORK, CONTINUES WHILE THE DRIVER TRANSPORTS THE RIDER IN A 

PERSONAL VEHICLE, AND ENDS WHEN THE RIDER DEPARTS FROM THE 

PERSONAL VEHICLE. 

(3) "TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY" MEANS A 

CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP, OR OTHER ENTITY, 

OPERATING IN COLORADO, THAT USES A DIGITAL NETWORK TO CONNECT 
RIDERS TO DRIVERS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING TRANSPORTATION . A 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY DOES NOT PROVIDE TAXI SERVICE, 

TRANSPORTATION SERVICE ARRANGED THROUGH A TRANSPORTATION 

BROKER, RIDESHARING ARRANGEMENTS, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 39-22-509 

( l )  (a) (II), C.R.S., OR ANY TRANSPORTATION SERVICE OVER FIXED ROUTES 

AT REGULAR INTERVALS. A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY IS NOT 

DEEMED TO OWN, CONTROL, OPERATE, OR MANAGE THE PERSONAL VEHICLES 

USED BY TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY DRIVERS. A 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY DOES NOT INCLUDE A POLITICAL 

SUBDIVISION OR OTHER ENTITY EXEMPTED FROM FEDERAL INCOME TAX 

UNDER SECTION 1 1 5 OF THE FEDERAL "INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1 986", 

AS AMENDED. 

(4) "TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY DRIVER" OR "DRIVER" 
MEANS AN INDIVIDUAL WHO USES HIS OR HER PERSONAL VEHICLE TO 
PROVIDE SERVICES FOR RIDERS MATCHED THROUGH A TRANSPORTATION 
NETWORK COMPANY'S DIGITAL NETWORK. A DRIVER NEED NOT BE AN 

EMPLOYEE OF A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY. 

(5) "TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY RIDER" OR "RIDER" 
MEANS A PASSENGER IN A PERSONAL VEHICLE FOR WHOM TRANSPORT IS 

PROVIDED, INCLUDING : 

(a) AN INDIVIDUAL WHO USES A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

COMPANY'S ONLINE APPLICATION OR DIGITAL NETWORK TO CONNECT WITH 

A DRIVER TO OBTAIN SERVICES IN THE DRIVER'S VEHICLE FOR THE 

INDIVIDUAL AND ANYONE IN THE INDIVIDUAL'S PARTY; OR 

(b) ANYONE FOR WHOM ANOTHER INDIVIDUAL USES A 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY'S ONLINE APPLICATION OR DIGITAL 

NETWORK TO CONNECT WITH A DRIVER TO OBTAIN SERVICES IN THE 

DRIVER'S VEHICLE. 
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(6) "TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SERVICES" OR 

"SER.VICES" MEANS THE PROV IS ION OF TRANSPORTATION BY A DRIVER TO A 

RIDER WITH WHOM THE DRIVER IS MATCHED THROUGH A TRANSPORTATION 

NETWORK COMPANY . THE TERM DOES NOT INCLUDE SERVICES PROVI DED 

E ITHER DIRECTLY BY OR UNDER CONTRACT WITH A POLITICAL SUBDIVIS ION 

OR OTHER ENTITY EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL INCOME TAX UNDER SECTION 1 1 5 
OF THE FEDE RAL "INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1 986" ,  AS AMENDED . 

40- 1 0. 1 -603. Limited regulation . NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER 

PROVIS ION OF LAW, TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANIES ARE 

GOVE RNED EXCLUSIVELY BY THIS PART 6 .  A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

COM PANY IS NOT SUBJECT TO THE COMMISSION'S RATE, ENTRY, 

OPER ATIONAL, OR COMMON CARRIER REQU IREMENTS , OTHER THAN THOSE 

REQUIREMENTS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS PART 6 .  

40- 1 0. 1 -604.  Registration - financial responsibility o f  

transportation n etwork companies - insurance. ( 1 )  A TRANSPORTATION 

NETWORK COM PANY SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FILING REQUIREMENTS OF 

PART 3 AND THE REGI STERED AGENT REQUI REMENT OF PART 7 OF ARTICLE 

90 OF TITLE 7,  C .R.S .  

(2 )  A TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COM PANY SHALL FILE W ITH THE 

COMM ISSION DOCUMENTATION EVmENCING THAT THE TRANSPORTATION 

NETWORK COM PANY OR THE DRIVER HAS SECURED PRIMARY LIABILITY 

INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE DRIVER FOR INCIDENTS INVOLVIN G  THE 

DRIVER DURING A PREARRANGED RIDE. COVERAGE FOR INCIDENTS 

INVOL VINO A DRIVER DURING A PREARRANGED RIDE MUST BE IN THE 

AMOUNT OF AT LEAST ONE MILLION DOLLARS PER OCCURRENCE .  THE 

INSURANCE POLICY MUST PROVIDE COVERAGE AT ALL TIMES THE DRIVER I S  

ENG AGED IN A PREARRANGED RIDE. THIS SUBSECTION (2) BECOM ES 

EFFECTIVE N INETY DAY S AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS PART 6. 

(3) FOR THE PERIOD OF TI ME WHEN A DRIVER IS LOGGED INTO A 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY'S DIGITAL NETWORK BUT IS NOT 

ENGAGED IN A PREARRANGED RIDE, THE FOLLOWING INSURANCE 

REQUI REMENTS APPLY : 

(a) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY OR A DRIVER SHALL 

MA INTA IN CONTINGENT LIABILITY INSURANCE WITH A LIABILITY L IMIT 

EQUAL TO AT LEAST THE MINIMUM AMOUNT REQUIRED BY SECTION 
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1 0-4-620, C .R. S .  AT A M INIMUM, THE CONTINGENT L IABILITY INSURANCE 

MUST PROVIDE LIAB IL ITY COVERAGE IF THE DRIVER'S INSURER FOR 

PERSONAL AUTOMOB ILE INSURANCE VALIDLY DENI ES COVERAGE UNDER 

THE TERMS OF THE DRIVER'S PERSONAL AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE POLICY OR 

THE DRI VER OTHERWISE DOES NOT HAVE PERSONAL AUTOMOBI LE 

INS URANCE COVERAGE .  NOTHING IN THIS PARAGRAPH (a) PRECLUDES AN 

INSURER'S RIGHT TO EQUITAB LE SUBROGATION . THE REQUIREM ENTS OF THIS 

PARAGRAPH (a) EXPIRE ON JANU ARY 1 5 , 20 1 5, AND THIS PARAGRAP H  (a) 

IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1 ,  20 1 5 . 

(b) ON OR BEFORE JANUARY 1 5 , 20 1 5, AND THEREAFTER,  A DRIVER 

OR A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY ON THE DRIVER'S BEHALF 

SI IALL MAINTAIN A PRIMARY AUTOMOB ILE INSURANCE POLICY THAT : 

( l) RECOGN IZES THAT THE DRIVER IS A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

COM PANY DRIVER AN D COVERS THE DR IVER'S PROV IS ION OF  

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SERVICES WHILE THE DRIVER I S  

LOGGED INTO THE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COM PANY'S  DIGITAL 

NETWORK; 

(II) MEETS AT LEAST THE M INIMUM COVERAGE OF AT LEAST F lfTY 

THOUSAND DOLLARS TO ANY ONE PERSON IN ANY ON E ACCIDENT, ONE 

HUNDREDTI-IOUSAND DOLLARS TO ALL PERSONS IN ANY ONE ACCIDENT, AND 

FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE ARIS ING OUT OF THE USE OF TI-IE MOTOR VEHICLE 

l"O A LIM IT, EXCLUSIVE OF INTEREST AND COSTS, OF THIRTY THOUSAND 

DOL L A R S  IN ANY ONE ACCI DENT; AND 

(Il l) IS ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:  

(A) FULL-TIME COVERAGE S IMILAR TO THE COVERAGE REQUIRED BY 

COM MISSION RUL ES PROMULGATED UNDE R SECTION 40- 1 0 . 1 - 1 07 ( 1 ) ; 

(B) AN INSURANCE RIDER TO , OR EN DORSEMENT OF, THE DRIVER'S 

PERSONAL AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE POLICY REQUI RED BY TI-IE "MOTOR 

V EHICLE FIN ANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY Acr," ARTICLE 7 OFTITLE 42, C .R. S . ;  

OR 

(C) A CORPORATE LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY PURCHASED BY THE 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY THAT PROVIDES PRIMARY COVERAGE 

FOR THE PERIOD OF TIME IN WHICH A DR IVER IS LOGGED INTO THE DIGITAL 
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NETWORK. 

(c) THE DIVISION OF INSU RANCE SHALL CONDUCT A STUDY OF 

WHETHER THE LEVELS OF COVERAGE PROVI DED FOR IN THIS  SUBSECTION (3) 

ARE APPROPRIATE FOR THE RISK INVOLVED WITH TRANSPORTATION 

NETWORK COMPANY SERVICES. IN CONDUCTING THE STUDY , THE DIVISION 

OF INSURANCE SHALL CONVENE ONE OR MORE STAKEHOLDER MEETINGS TO 

E V  ALU ATE THE CHOICES OF COVERAGE SET FORTH IN SUBPARAGRA PH (III) 
OF PARAG RAPH (b) OF TH IS SUBSECTION (3) .  ON OR BEFORE JANUARY 1 5 , 

20 1 5 , T HE DIVIS ION OF INSURANCE SHALL PRESENT ITS FINDINGS AND ANY 

RECOMM ENDATIONS TO THE BUSINESS, LABOR, ECONOMIC AND WORKFORCE 

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, THE 

BUSINESS, LABOR, AND TECHNOLOG Y  COMMJTI'EE IN THE SENATE, THE 

TRANSPORTATION AND ENERGY COMMITTEE IN THE HOUSE OF 

REPRESENTATI VES, AND THE TRANS PORTATION COMM ITJ'EE IN THE SENATE. 

(d) lF A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY PURCHASES AN 

INSU RANCE POLICY UN DER THIS SUBSECTION (3 ) , IT SHALL PROVIDE 

DOCU MENTATION TO THE COMMISS ION EV IDENCING THAT THE 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY HAS SECURED THE POLICY . I F  THE 

RESPON SIBILITY IS PLACED ON A DRIVER TO PURCHASE INSURANCE UNDER 

THIS SUBSECTION (3), THE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL 

VERIFY THAT THE DRIVER HAS PURCHAS ED AN INSURANCE POLICY UNDER 

TH IS SUBSECTION (3 ) .  

(4) A DRIVER'S PERSONAL AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE POLICY THAT 

COM PLIES WITH PART 6 OF ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 1 0, C .R. S . ,  IS SUFFICIENT TO 

SATISFY THE COM PULSORY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS THEREOF. AN 

INSURANCE POLICY REQUIRED BY SUBSECTION (2) OR SUBSECTION (3) OF 

THIS  SECTION : 

(a) MAY BE P LACED WITH AN INSURER LICENSED UNDER TITLE 1 0, \ 
C.R. S . ,  OR WITH A SURPLUS LINES INSURER AUTHORIZED UNDER ARTICLE 5 ) OF TITLE 1 0 , C .R.S . ;  AND 

(b) N EED NOT SEPARATEL Y SATISFY THE REQUI REMENTS OF PART 6 

OF ARTICLE 4 OF TITLE 1 0, C.R. S .  

(5 )  NOTHING IN THIS SECTION REQUIRES A PERSONAL AUTOMOBI LE 

INSURANCE POLICY TO PROVlDE COVERAGE FOR THE PERIOD OF TIME IN 
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WHICH A DRIVER IS LOGGED INTO A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY'S 

DIGITAL NETWORK. 

(6)  IF MORE THAN ONE INSURANCE POLICY PROVIDES VALID AND 

COLLECTIBLE COVERAGE FOR A LOSS ARISING OUT OF AN OCCURRENCE 

IN VOL YING A MOTOR VEHICLE OPERATED BY A DRIVER, THE RESPONSIBILITY 

FOR THE CLAIM MUST BE DIVIDED ON A PRO RA TA BASIS AMONG ALL OF THE 

APPLICABLE POLICIES. THIS EQUAL DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITY MAY ONLY 

BE MODIFIED BY THE WRITfEN AGREEMENT OF ALL OF THE INSURERS OF THE 

APPLICABLE POLICIES AND THE OWNERS OF THOSE POLICIES. 

(7) lN A CLAIMS COVERAGE INVESTIGATION , A TRANSPORTATION 

NETWORK COMPANY SHALL COOPERATE WITH A LIABILITY INSURER THAT 

ALSO INSURES THE DRIVER'S TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY 

VEHICLE, INCLUDING THE PROVIS ION OF RELEVANT DATES AND TIMES 

DURING WHICH AN INCIDENT OCCURRED THAT INVOLVED THE DRIVER WHILE 

THE DRI VER WAS LOGGED INTO A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COM PANY'S 

DIG ITAL NETWORK. 

(8) NOTHING IN THIS SECTION MODIFIES OR ABROGATES ANY 

OTHERWISE APPLICABLE INSURANCE REQU IREMENTS SET FORTH IN TITLE 1 0 ,  
C .R .S .  

(9)  IF A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY'S INSURER MAKES A 

PAY MENT FOR A CLAIM COVERED UNDER COMPREHENSI VE COVERAGE OR 

COLLIS ION COVERAGE , THE TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY S HA LL 

CAUSE ITS INSURER TO ISSUE THE PAYMENT DIRECTLY TO THE BUSINESS 

REPA IRING THE VEHICLE OR JOINTLY TO TH E OWNER OF THE VEHICLE AND 

THE PRIMARY LIEN HOLDER ON THE COVERED VEHICLE. THE COMMISSION 

SHALL NOT ASSESS ANY FINES AS A RESULT OF A VIOLATION OF TH IS 

SUBSECTION (9) .  

40- 1 0 . 1 -605. Operational requ irements. ( 1 )  THE FOLLOWING 

REQU I REMENTS APPLY TO THE PROVIS ION OF SERVICES: 

(a) A DRIVER SHALL NOT PROVIDE SERVICES UNLESS A 

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY HAS MATCHED THE DRIVER TO A 

RIDER THROUG H A DIGITA L  NETWORK.  A DRIVER SHALL NOT SOLICIT OR 

ACCEPT THE ON-DEMAND SUMMONING OF A RIDE, OTHERW ISE KNOWN AS A 

"STREET HAI L" .  
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(b) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL MAKE 

AV AIL ABLE TO PROSPECTIV E  RIDERS AND DRIVERS THE METHOD BY WHICH 

THE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY CALCULATES FARES OR THE 

APPLICABLE RATES BEING CHARGED AND AN OPTION TO RECEIVE AN 

ESTIMATED FARE.  

(c) UPON COM PLETION OF A PREARRANGE D RIDE,  A 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COM PANY SHALL TRANSMIT TO THE RIDER AN 

ELECTRONIC RECEIPT, EITHER BY ELECTRONIC MAIL OR VIA TEXT MESSAGE, 

DOCUMENTI NG:  

( 1)  THE POINT OF ORIGIN AND DESTINATION OF THE PREARRANGED 

RID E ;  

(II) THE TOTAL DURATION AND DISTANCE O F  THE PREARRANGED 

RIDE;  

( III) THE TOTAL FARE PAID, INCLUDING THE BASE FARE AN D ANY 

ADD ITIONAL CHARGES INCUR RED FOR DISTANCE TRAVEL ED OR DURATION 

O F  THE PREARRANGED RI DE; AND 

(IV) THE DRI VER'S FIRST NAME AND TEL EPHONE NUMBER. 

(d) BEFORE PERM ITTING A PERSON TO ACT AS A DRIVER ON ITS 

DIGITAL NETWORK, A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPAN Y  SHALL 

CONFIRM THAT THE PERSON IS AT LEAST TWENTY-ONE Y EARS OF AGE AND 

POSSESSES: 

( 1)  A VALID DRIVER'S LICENSE; 

( l l)  PROOF OF AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE; 

(Ill) PROOF OF A COLORADO VEH ICLE REGISTRATION ; AND 

(IV) WITHIN NINETY DAYS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS PART 6 
AND PURSUANT TO COM MISSION RULES, PROOF THAT THE PERSON IS 

MEDICALLY FIT TO DRIVE. 

(e) A DRIVER SHALL NOT OFFER OR PROV IDE TRANSPORTATION 

NETWORK COMPANY SERV ICES FOR MORE THAN TWELVE CONSECUTIVE 
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HOURS. 

(f) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL IMPLEMENT AN 

INTOXICATING SUBSTANCE POLICY FOR DRIVERS THAT DISALLOWS ANY 

AMOUNT OF INTOXICATION OF THE DRIVER WHILE PROVIDING SERVICES. THE 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL INCLUDE ON ITS WEB SITE 

AND MOBILE DEVICE APPLICATION SOFTWARE A NOTICE CONCERNING THE 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY'S INTOXICATING SUBSTANCE POLICY. 

(g) (I) ATRANSPORTATIONNETWORKCOMPANY SHALLCONDUCTOR 

HAVE A CERTIFIED MECHANIC CONDUCT A SAFETY INSPECTION OF A 
PROSPECTIVE DRIVER'S VEHICLE BEFORE IT IS APPROVED FOR USE AS A 

PERSONAL VEHICLE AND SHALL HA VE PERIODIC INSPECTIONS OF PERSONAL 

VEHICLES CONDUCTED THEREAFTER, AT INTERVALS OF AT LEAST ONE 

INSPECTION PER YEAR. A SAFETY INSPECTION SHALL INCLUDE AN 

INSPECTION OF: 

(A) FOOT BRAKES; 

(B) EMERGENCY BRAKES; 

(C) STEERING MECHANISM; 

(D) WINDSHIELD; 

(E) REAR W INDOW AND OTHER GLASS;  

(F)  WINDSHIELD WIPERS ; 

(G) HEADLIGHTS ; 

(H) TAIL LIGHTS ; 

(1) TURN INDICATOR LIGHTS ; 

(J) STOP LIGHTS; 

(K) FRONT SEAT ADJUSTM ENT MECHANISM; 

(L) THE OPENING, CLOSING, AND LOCKING CAPABILITY OF THE 
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DOORS; 

(M) HORN; 

(N) SPEEDOMETER ; 

(0) BUMPERS; 

(P) MUFFLER AND EXHAUST SYSTEM; 

(Q) TIRE CONDITIONS, INCLUDING TREAD DEP TH; 

(R) INTERIOR AND EXTERI OR REAR-VIEW MIRRORS; AND 

(S) SAFETY BEL TS. 

(II) EFFECTIVE NINETY DAYS AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS 
PART 6, THE COM MISSION MAY ALSO CONDUCT INSPECTIONS OF PERSONAL 
VEHICLES. 

(h) A PERSONAL VEHICLE MUST: 

(1) HA VE AT LEAST FOUR DOORS; AND 

(11) BE DESIGNED TO CARRY NO MORE THAN EIGHT PASSENGERS , 
INCLUDING THE DR! VER. 

(i) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL MAKE THE 

FOLLOWING DISCLOSURE TO A PROSPECTIVE DRIVER IN THE PROSPECTIVE 
DRIVER'S TERMS OF SERVICE: 

WHI L E  OPERA TING ON THE TRANSPORTATION N ETWORK 
CO MPANY'S DIG ITAL N ETWORK, Y O U R  P E RSONAL 
AUTO M OBILE INSURANCE POLICY MIGHT NOT AFFORD 
LIABI LITY COVERAG E, DEPENDI N G  ON THE POLICY 'S 
TERMS. 

U) (1) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL MAKE THE 
FOLLOWING DISCLOSURE TO A PROSPECTIVE DRIVER IN THE PROSPECTIVE 

DRIVER'S TERMS OF SERVICE: 
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I F  TH E VEH ICLE THAT YOU PLAN TO USE TO PROV I D E  
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SERVICES FOR OUR 
TRANSPO RTATION N ETWORK COM PANY H AS A LIEN 
A G A I NST IT, YOU M U ST NOTI FY TH E LIENHOLDER THAT 
YOU W I LL BE USING THE VEH ICLE FOR TRANS PORTATION 
S E RV I CES THAT MAY VIO LATE TH E TERMS OF YOUR 
CONTRACT W ITH TH E LI ENHOLDER. 

(11) THE DISCLOSURE SET FORTH IN SUBPARAGRAPH (I) OF THIS 

PARAG RAPH U) MUST BE  PLACED PROMINENTLY IN THE PROSPECTIVE 

DRIVER'S WRITTEN TERMS OF SERVICE, AND THE PROSPECTIVE DRIVER M UST 

ACKNOWLEDGE THE TERMS OF SERVICE ELECTRON ICALLY OR BY 

S IGNATURE . 

(k) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL MAKE 

AVAILABLE TO A RIDER A CUSTOMER SUPPORT TELEPHONE NUMBER ON ITS 

DIGITAL NETWORK OR WEB SITE FOR RIDER INQUI RIES.  

( I )  THE DISCLOSURE REQUI REM ENTS SET FORTH IN THIS SUBSECTION 

( 1 )  TAKE EFFECT ON JULY 1 ,  20 1 4. 

(m) (I) A TRANSPO RTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL NOT 

DISCLOSE TO A TH IRD PARTY ANY PERSONALLY IDENTIF IABLE INFORMATION 

CONCERN I NG A USER OF THE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY'S 

DIGITAL NETWORK UNLESS :  

(A) THE TRANSPORTATION N ETWORK COMPANY OBTAINS THE USER'S 

CONSENT TO DISCLOSE PERSONALLY I DENTIFIABLE INFORMATION ; 

(B) DISCLOSURE IS NECESSARY TO COMPLY WITH A LEGAL 

OBLIGATION ; OR 

(C) DISCLOSURE IS NECESSARY TO PROTECT OR DEFEND THE TERMS 

AND CONDITIONS FOR USE OF THE SERV ICE OR TO INVESTIGATE V IOLATIONS 

OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS .  

( 1 1) THE LIMITATION ON DISCLOSURE DOES NOT APPLY TO THE 

DISCLOSURE OF AGGREGATED USER DATA AND OTHER INFORMATION ABOUT 

THE USER THAT I S  NOT PERSONALLY I DENTIFIABLE. 
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(n) ANY TAXICAB COMPANY OR SHUTTLE COMPANY AUTHORIZED BY 

THE COM M ISS ION UNDER THIS ARTICLE MAY CONVERT TO A 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY MODEL OR MAY SET U P  A 

S UBSIDIARY OR AFFILIATE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY . IN 

CONVERTING TO A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY MODEL OR 

SElTING UP A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SUBSIDIARY OR 

AFFIL IATE, A TAX ICAB COM PANY OR SHUTI'LE COMPANY AUTHORIZED BY 

THE COMMI SSION UNDER THIS  ARTICLE MAY COMPLETELY OR PARTIA LLY 

SUSPEND ITS CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY ISSUED 

UNDER SECTION 40- 1 0 . 1 -20 1 .  DURING THE PERIOD OF SUSPENS ION OF ITS 

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY,  A TAXICAB 

COMPANY,  SHUlTLE COMPANY , OR A SUBS IDIARY OR AFFILIATE OF A 

TAXICAB COM PANY OR SHUlTLE COMPANY IS EXEMPT FROM TAXI  OR 

SHUTTLE STANDARDS UNDER THIS ARTICLE, THE STANDARDS CONCERNING 

THE REGULATION OF RATES AND CHARGES UNDER ARTICLE 3 OF THI S  TITLE, 

AND ANY COMMISSION RULES REGARDING COMMON CARR IERS 

PROM ULGATED UNDER THI S ARTICLE OR ARTICLE 3 OF THIS  TITLE. 

(o) EACH TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL REQUI RE 

THAT EACH PERSONAL VEHICLE PROV IDING TRANS PORTATION NETWORK 

COM PANY SERVICES DISPLAY AN EXTERIOR MARKING THAT lDENTffIES THE 

PERSONAL VEH ICLE AS A VEHICLE FOR H IRE. 

(2) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY OR A THIRD PARTY 

SHALL RETAIN TRUE AND ACCURATE INSPECTION RECORDS FOR AT LEAST 

FOURTEEN MONTHS AFTER AN INSPECTION WAS CONDUCTED FOR EACH 

PERSONAL VEH ICLE USED BY A DRIVER. 

(3) (a) BEFORE A PERSON JS PERMITI'ED TO ACT AS A DRIVER 

THROUG H USE OF A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY'S DIGITAL 

NETWORK, THE PERSON SHALL:  

(I) OBTAIN A CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD CHECK PURSUANT TO THE 

PROCEDURES SET FORTH IN SECTION 40- 1 0 . 1 - 1 1 0  AS SUPPLEMENTED BY THE 

COMM ISSION 'S RULES PROMULGATED UNDER SECTION 40- 1 0 . 1 - 1 1 0  OR 

THROUG H A PRIVATELY ADMINISTERED NATIONAL CRIM INAL H ISTORY 

RECORD CHECK, INCLUDING THE NATIONAL SEX OFFENDER DATABASE; AND 

(I I) I F  A PRIVATELY ADMIN ISTERED NATIONAL CRIMINAL HISTORY 

RECORD CHECK IS USED, PROVIDE A COPY OF THE CRIM INAL HISTORY 
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RECORD CHECK TO THE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY . 

(b) A DRI VER S HALL OBTAIN A CRIM INAL HISTORY RECORD CHECK 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUBPARAGRAPH (I) OF PARAGRAP H (a) OF THIS  

SUBSECTION (3 )  EVERY F IVE YEARS WHILE SERVING AS  A DRIV ER. 

( c) (I) A PERSON WHO HAS BEEN CONVICTED OF OR PLED GUILTY OR 

NOLO CONTEN DERE TO DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF DRUGS OR 

ALCOHOL IN THE PREV IOUS SEVEN YEARS BEFORE APPLYING TO BECOME A 

DRIVER SHALL NOT SERVE AS A DRIVER. lF THE CRIM INAL HISTORY RECORD 

CHECK REVEALS THAT THE PERSON HAS EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF OR PLED 

GUILTY OR NOLO CONTEND ERE TO ANY OF THE FOL LOWING FELONY 

OFFENSES, THE PERSON SHALL NOT SERVE AS A DRI VER: 

(A) AN OFFENSE INVOL Y ING FRAUD, AS DESCRIBED IN ARTICLE 5 OF 

TITLE 1 8 , C.R.S . ;  

(B)  AN OFFENSE INVOLVING UNLAWFUL SEXUAL BEHAVIOR, AS 

DEFINED IN SECTION 1 6-22- 1 02 (9), C.R.S . ;  

(C) AN OFFENSE AGAINST PROPERTY , AS  DESCRIBED IN  ARTICLE 4 0F 

TITLE 1 8 , C . R . S . ; OR 

(D) A CRIME OF V IOLENCE, AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 1 8- 1 .3 -406, 
C .R.S .  

( I I) A PERSON WHO HAS BEEN CONVICTED OF A COMPARABLE 

OFFENSE TO THE OFFENSES LISTED IN SUBPARAGRAPH (I) OF THIS 

PARAG RAPH (b) IN ANOTHER STATE OR IN THE UNITED STATES SHALL NOT 

SER VE AS A DRIVER. 

(I l l) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY OR A THIRD PARTY 

S l lALL  RETAIN TRUE AN D ACCURATE RESULTS OF THE CRIM INAL H ISTORY 

RECORD CHECK FOR EACH DRIVER THAT PROVIDES SERVICES FOR THE 

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY FOR AT LEAST FIVE YEARS AFTER 

THE CR IM INAL HISTORY R ECORD CHECK WAS CONDUCTED . 

(IV) A PERSON WHO HAS, WITHIN THE IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING 

FIVE YEARS, BEEN CONVICTED OF OR PLED GU ILTY OR NOLO CONTEND ERE 

TO A FELONY SHALL NOT S ERVE AS A DRIVER. 
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(4) (a) BEFORE PERMIITING AN INDIVIDUAL TO ACT AS A DRIVER ON 

ITS DIGITAL NETWORK, A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL 

OBTAIN AND REVIEW A DRIV ING H ISTORY RESEARCH REPORT FOR THE 

INDIVIDUAL. 

(b) AN INDIVIDUAL WITH THE FOLLOWING MOVING VIOLATIONS 

SHALL NOT SERVE AS A DRI VER: 

( I )  MORE THAN THREE MOVING VIOLATIONS IN THE THREE-YEAR 

PERIOD PRECEDING THE INDIVIDUAL'S APPLICATION TO SER VE AS A DRIVER; 

OR 

(11) A MAJOR MOVING VIOLATION IN THE THREE-YEAR PERIOD 

PRECEDING THE INDIVIDUAL'S APPLICATION TO SERVE AS A DRIVER, 

WHETHER COMMI"ffED IN THIS STATE , ANOTHER STATE, OR THE UN ITED 

STATES ,  INCLUD ING VEH ICULAR ELUDING, AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 

1 8-9- 1 1 6 . 5 ,  C .R.S . ,  RECKLESS DRIVING, AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 

42-4- 1 40 1 ,  C .R.S . ,  AND DRI VING UNDER RESTRAINT, AS DESCRIBED IN 

SECTION 42-2- 1 3 8 ,  C.R.S .  

(c) A TRAN SPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY OR A THI RD PARTY 

SHALL RETAIN TRUE AN D ACCURATE RESULTS OF THE DRIV ING H ISTORY 

RESEARCH REPORT FOR EACH DRIVER THAT PROVIDES SERVICES FOR THE 

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY FOR AT LEAST THREE YEARS. 

(5) l F  ANY PERSON FILES A COMPLAINT WITH THE COMM ISSION 

AGA INST A TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY OR DRIVER, THE 

COM MISSION MAY INSPECT THE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY'S 

RECORDS AS REASONABLY NECESSARY TO INVESTIGATE AND RESOLVE THE 

COMPLAINT. 

(6) (a) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL PROV IDE 

SER VICES TO THE PUBLIC IN A NON DISCRIM INATORY MANNER, REGARDLESS 

OF GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION OF THE DEPARTURE POINT OR DESTINATION , 

ONCE THE DRIVER AND RIDER HAVE BEEN MATCHED THROUGH THE DIGITAL 

NETWORK; RACE; ETHNICITY ; GENDER ; SEXUAL ORIENTATION, AS DEFINED 

IN S ECTION 2-4-401  ( 1 3 .5) ,  C .R.S . ;  GENDER IDENTITY ; OR DISABI LITY THAT 

COULD PREVENT CUSTOMERS FROM ACCESSING TRANSPORTATION . A DRIVER 

SHALL NOT REFUSE TO TRAN SPORT A PASSENGER UNLESS: 
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(l) THE PASSENGER IS ACTING IN AN UNLAWFUL, D ISORDERLY, OR 

ENDANGERING MANNER; 

(II) THE PASSENGER IS UNABLE TO CARE FOR HIMSELF OR HERSELF 

AND IS NOT IN THE CHARGE OF A RESPONSIBLE COM PANION;  OR 

(Ill) THE DRIVER HAS ALREADY COMMITTED TO PROVI DING A R IDE 

FOR ANOTHER R I DER. 

(b) A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COM PANY SHALL NOT IMPOSE 

ADD ITI ONAL CHARGES FOR PROVI DING SER V ICES TO PERSONS W ITH 

PHYS ICAL OR MENTAL DISABILITIES BECAUSE OF THOSE DISABILITIES . 

(c) A DRIVER S HALL PERM IT A SERVICE ANIMAL TO ACCOMPANY A 

RIDER ON A P REARRANG ED RIDE. 

(d) I F  A RIDER W ITH PHYSICAL OR MENTA L DISABILITIES REQU IRES 

THE USE OF THE RIDER'S MOBILITY EQUIPMENT, A DRIVER SHALL STORE THE 

MOBILITY EQUIPMENT IN THE VEHICLE DURING A PREARRANGED RIDE IF THE 

VEHICLE IS REASONABLY CAPABLE OF STORING THE MOBILITY EQUIPMENT. 

I F THE DRIVER IS UNABLE TO STORE A RIDER'S MOBILITY EQUIPMENT IN THE 

DRIVER'S VEHICLE, THE DRIVER SHALL REFER THE RIDER TO ANOTHER 

DRIVER OR TRANSPORTATION SERVICE PROVIDER WITH A VEHI CLE THAT I S  

EQUIPPED TO ACC OMMODATE THE R I DER'S MOB ILITY EQUIPMENT. 

(7) (a) A TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY IS NOT LIABLE FOR 

A DRIVER'S V IOLATION OF SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION UNLESS THE 

DRIV ER'S VIOLATION HAS BEEN PREV IOUSLY REPORTED TO THE 

TRANSPORTATION N ETWORK COM PANY IN WRITING ,  AND THE 

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY HAS FAILED TO REASONABLY 

ADDRESS THE ALLEGED V IOLATION. THE COMMISS ION SHALL AFFORD A 

TRANSPO RTATION NETWORK COMPANY THE SAME DUE PROCESS RIGHTS 

AFFORDED TRANSPORTATION PROVIDERS IN DEFENDING AGAINST CIVIL 

PEN A LTIES ASSESSED BY THE COMMISSION .  

(b) THE COMM ISSION MAY ASSESS A CIVIL PENAL TY UP  TO FIVE 

HUNDRED FIFTY DOL LARS UNDER THIS SUBSECTION (7). 

(8) W ITHIN TEN DAYS OF RECEIVING A COM PLA INT ABOUT A 

DRIVER'S A LLEGED VIOLATION OF SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS  SECTION , THE 
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( COMMISS ION SHALL REPORT THE COMPLAINT TO THE TRANSPORTATION 

NETWORK COMPANY FOR WHICH THE DRIVER PROVIDES SERV ICES . 

(9) A DRIVER SHALL IMMEDIATELY REPORT TO THE 

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY ANY REFUSAL TO TRANSPORT A 

PASSENGER PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS 

SECTION , AND THE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SHALL 

ANNUALLY REPORT ALL SUCH REFUSALS TO THE COMMISS ION JN A FORM 

AND MANNER DETERMI NED BY THE COMM ISSION .  

40- 1 0. 1 -606. Permit required for transportation n etwork 

com panies - penalty for violation - ru les. ( 1 )  A PERSON SHALL NOT 

OPERATE A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY IN COLORADO WITHOUT 

FIRST HAVING OBTAINED A P ERMIT FROM THE COMM ISSION .  

(2) THE COMM ISS ION SHALL ISSUE A PERMIT TO EACH 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COM PANY THAT MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS OF 

THIS PART 6 AND PAYS AN ANNUAL PERM IT FEE OF ONE HUNDRED ELEVEN 

THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS TO THE COMM ISSION . THE 

COMMISSION MAY ADJUST THE ANNUAL PERMIT FEE BY RULE TO COVER THE 

COMMISSION'S DIRECT AN D INDIRECT COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH 

IMPLEMENTING THIS PART 6 .  

(3 )  THE COMM ISSI ON SHALL DETERMINE THE FORM AND MANNER OF  

APPLICATION FOR A TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPAN Y  PERMIT. 

(4) THE COMM ISSION MAY TAKE ACTION AGAINST A 

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 

40- 1 0 . 1 - 1 1 2 , INCLUD ING ISSUING AN ORDER TO CEASE AND DES IST AND 

SUSPENDING , REV OK ING, ALTERING, OR AMENDING A PERM IT ISSUED TO THE 

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY.  

(5) (a) FOR A V IOLATION OF THIS PART 6 OR A FAILURE TO COMPLY 

WITH A COMMISSION ORDER , DECIS ION, OR RULE ISSUED UNDER THIS PART 

6, A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY JS SUBJECT TO THE 

COMMISSION'S AUTHORITY UNDER SECTIONS 40-7- 1 0 1 , 40-7- l 1 2 , 40-7- 1 1 3 ,  

40-7- 1 1 5 , AND 40-7- 1 1 6 .  

(b )  THE COMM ISSION SHALL NOT ASSESS A PENALTY AGAINST A 

DRI VER. 
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( 6) THE COMMISSION MAY DENY AN APPLICATION UNDER THIS PART 

6 OR REFUSE TO RENEW THE PERMIT OF A TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

COM PANY BASED ON A DETERM INATION THAT THE TRANSPORTATION 

NETWORK COMPANY HAS NOT SATISFIED A CIVIL PENALTY ARISING OUT OF 

AN ADMIN ISTRATIVE OR ENFORCEMENT ACTION BROUGHT BY THE 

COMMISSION . 

40- 1 0 . 1 -607.  Fees - transportation n etwork company fun d  -

creatio n .  THE COMMISSION SHALL TRANSMIT ALL FEES COLLECTED 

PURSUANT TO THIS PART 6 TO THE STATE TREASURER, WHO SHALL CREDIT 

THE FEES TO THE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY FUND, WHICH I S  

HEREBY CREATED IN  THE STATE TREASURY.  THE MONEYS IN  THE FUND ARE 

CONTINUOUSLY APPROPRIATED TO THE COMMISSION FOR THE PURPOSES SET 

FORTH IN THIS PART 6. ALL INTEREST EARNED FROM THE INVESTMENT OF 

MONEYS IN THE FUN D IS CREDITED TO THE FUND. ANY MONEYS NOT 

EXPEN DED AT THE END OF THE F ISCAL Y EAR REMAIN IN THE FUND AND DO 

NOT REVERT TO THE GENERAL FUND OR ANY OTHER FUND. 

40- 1 0. 1 -608. Ru les. ( 1)  THE COMMISSION MA y PROMULGATE RULES 

CONSISTENT WITH THIS  PART 6, INCLUDING RULES CONCERNING 

ADMINISTRATION, FEES, AND SAFETY REQUI REMENTS .  

(2) THE COMMISS ION MAY PROMULGATE RULES REQUI RING A 

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANY TO MAINTAIN AND FILE WITH THE 

COMMISSION EVIDENCE OF F INANCIAL RESPONSIB ILITY AND PROOF OF THE 

CONTINUED VALIDITY OF THE INSU RANCE POLICY, SURETY BOND, OR 

SELF- INSURANCE , BUT SHALL NOT REQUIRE A TRANS PORTATION NETWORK 

COM PANY TO F ILE A COPY OF THE INSURANCE POLICY. 

SECTION 7. In Colorado Revised Statutes, add 8-4 1 -2 1 1 as 
fol lows :  

8-4 1 -2 1 1 . Tra nsportation n etwork company d rivers - rules. 

U PON THE EFFECTI VE DATE OF PART 6 OF ARTICLE 1 0 . 1  OF TITLE 40, C.R.S . ,  

THE D IRECTOR, UPON CONSIDERATION O F  EXISTING COLORADO STATUTORY 

AND CASE LAW, MAY BY RULE DETERM INE WHETHER OR NOT 

TRANS PORTATION NETWORK COMPANIES HAVE AN OBLIGATION UNDER 

EXISTING COLORADO LAW TO PROVIDE OR OFFER FOR PURCHAS E WORKERS' 

COM PENSATION INSU RANCE COVERAGE TO TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

COM PANY DRI VERS . 
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SECTION 8. Appropriation. ( 1 )  In addition to any other 
appropriation, there is hereby appropriated, out of any moneys in the 
transportation network company fund created in section 40- 1 0 . 1 -607, 
Colorado Revised Statutes, not otherwise appropriated, to the depaiiment 
of regulatory agencies, for the fiscal year beginning July 1 ,  20 14 ,  the sum 
of $ 1 79,777 and 2 .5  FTE, or so much thereof as may be necessary, for 
allocation to the public utilities commission for the administrative costs 
related to the implementation of this act. 

(2) In addition to any other appropriation, there is hereby 
appropriated to the department of law, for the fiscal year beginning July 1 ,  
20 14,  the sum of $9, 108 and 0 . 1  FTE, or so much thereof as may be 
necessary, for the provision of legal services for the public utilities 
commission related to the implementation of this act. Said sum is from 
reappropriated funds received from the department of regulatory agencies 
out of the appropriation made in subsection ( 1 )  of this section. 

SECTION 9. Safety clause. The general assembly hereby finds, 
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determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate 
preservation of the publ ic peace, health, and safety. 

Morgan Carroll 
PRESIDENT OF 

THE SENATE 

Cindi L. Markwell 
SECRETARY OF 
THE SENATE 

Mark Ferrandino 

SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE 

OF REPRESEN TATIVES 

Marilyn Eddins 
CHIEF CLERK OF THE HOUSE 

OF REPRESENTATIVES 

John W. Hickenlooper 
GOVERNOR OF THE STA TE OF COLORADO 
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SB 2368 

House Transportation Committee 
Joe Burgum 

±i J 

Mr. Chairman and Representatives of the committee - thank you for allowing me to speak this 

morning. 

My name is Joe Burgum. I am here today as a resident of Fargo, a citizen of North Dakota, 

and a customer of Transportation Network Companies, or TNCs. 

I have recently moved home to Fargo after living in Chicago, Los Angeles, and Seattle. My 
time away has provided me the opportunity to understand why I love our great state and 
observe ways in which it could improve. I believe that SB 2368 leads to one of these ways. 

In case you haven't used TNC services from companies like U ber or Lyft, I 'll explain them 

using an example that may be more familiar. 

Some of you may know the concept of Custom Combining and the impact it has had on North 
Dakota. As our state was evolving into the agricultural power that it is today, it was a common 

sight to see the fields fil led with custom combines moving north up the plains from Nebraska 
to North Dakota. The value of custom combining is that farmers did not need to own 

expensive combining equipment that was used for a small window of time each fall .  This idea 

of sharing resources on an economy of scale for a community, is often referred to as 

collaborative consumption; a powerful economic tool which is changing how people l ive and is 
at the center of how customs combing and TNCs are successful .  

T N  C s  allow drivers to respond to demand for rides and share the use of vehicles in a more 
efficient way. From the East coast, to the West coast, and in the Midwest, I have personally 
seen the positive impact of ride-sharing on communities. 

Whether it be from ease of mind, knowing I can find a safe and reliable ride home after a night 
out, to knowing many others are doing the same and are staying off the road . 

I have seen my girlfriend in Minneapolis become a driver as a way to make the equivalent to 
her fu ll-time corporate entry level job in order to pay off student debt. 

While riding with TNC d rivers, I often heard stories of individuals taking a risk and moving to a 
new city. These drivers knew that if when moved to a city with U ber or Lyft, they would have 

an income as they transition into other employment. Note this bill as a differentiator as we 
work to attract and retain a workforce. 

Not only will this bill al low for a free market solution to public safety, the creation of jobs with 

flexible hours, and a workforce attractor, it provides us an opportunity to show the world we 

L are open to new technologies that improve our qual ity of l ife. 

I n  closing, I encourage you to work with U ber so we may welcome this business to North 

Dakota and to vote in favor of this bill - It is a simple way to make a great change. 



HOUSE BILL NO. 2368 
Amendments Proposed by Sagar Shah (U ber Technologies) 

Definitions: 
1. Page 1, line 18 replace the definition of "Participating dri ver" with the fo llowing: 

"Parti c ipating driver" or "driver" means any person who uses a vehi cle in connection with a 
transportation network company's online-enabled application or platfo rm to transport passengers for 
compensation. 

2. Page 1, line 23 replace the definition of "T ransportation network company" with the fo llowing: 

"Transportation network company" means a person operating in this state that enables prearranged 
transportation serv ices fo r compensati on using an onl ine - enabled application or platform to connect 
passengers with independent participating drivers us ing a personal vehicle. 

Insurance: 
3. Page 3, line 26-29 change coverage amounts to $50/100/25 with the fo ll owing language: 

"Motor vehicle liabili ty coverage and the coverage is secondary . The coverage must include at least 
fi fty thousand dollars per person and one hundred thousand doll ars per inc ident fo r death and bod ily 
injury and at least twenty five thousand dollars fo r property damage ." 

4 . Page 4, line 9 add "excludes coverage," before "has ceased to ex ist" 

" ... in the event that a participating driver' s insurance policy under subsection a excludes coverage, 
has ceased to ex ist or has been cancelled . .. " 

5. P . 4, lines 13-17 - STRIKE sub-section 3 

Alternatively, strike and replace with: 
"Where coverage to sati sfy thi s section is mainta ined by a parti cipating dri ver, the transportatio n 
network company shall verify proof of that policy befo re allow ing the participating driver to accept a 
ride request in connection with a transportation network company's di gita l pl atform ." 

Privacy: 
6. P . 7, lines 19-25 - STRIKE section 39-34-05. Personally identifiable information 

Alternatively, strike and replace with: 
A transportation network company may not di sclose any personall y identifiable info rm ation of a 
transportati on network company passenger except pursuant to the publically disclosed terms of the 
transportati on network company 's privacy policy. For any other disclosure not governed by the 
transportation network company ' s privacy policy, the transportation network company must obta in 
the passenger' s consent before the company may disclose the passenger's personally identi fi abl e 
informati on. 
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TESTI MONY I N  S U P PORT OF S B  2368 
With proposed amendments 

t of L 
House Transportation 

M a rch 1 9 , 2 0 1 5 
2 : 30 P M  

Good morn i ng Chairman Ruby a nd members o f  the House Tra nsportation 

Committee. My name is Pat Ward . I represent the P roperty and Casua lty 

I nsura n ce Association of America and the Association of North Dakota I nsurers 

i n  support of S B  2368.  

This b i l l  does two th ings.  It attempts to reg u late tra nsportation network 

comp a n ies and their  drivers . It a lso creates certa i n  insurance req u i rements and 

d isclos u res relat ing to  the transportation network company service . 

The issue of TNC compan ies such as U ber and Lyft has created a good 

n u mber of leg is lat ive and leg a l  strugg les in both state leg is latu res and city 

cou nci ls  in m u n ic ipal ities a round the country ,  as wel l  as the Courts . 

The most comprehens ive legis lation is the Cal ifornia model wh ich the 

insurance industry orig ina l ly introd uced in  North Da kota as HB 1 1 44. This is the 

model we support for insuring al l  scenarios involv i ng these d rivers . This bi l l  is 

now l ike a hybrid of Ca l iforn ia ,  Colorado,  I l l i nois and Virg in ia  leg islation with 

some g ood and bad features and needs fu rther amend ing . 

Lobbyists and attorneys have been here from U ber and we are a l l  working 

to get the best possib le insurance b i l l .  DOI a lso has been included in the 

d iscussi o n .  

I am s u re t h i s  comm ittee bel ieves there i s  a need for U ber  reg u lation a s  

provided i n  th is  b i l l  outside of t h e  insurance req u i rements . My concern is with the 

1 
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i n s u ra n ce a nd potential gaps i n  coverage.  We a lso want to avoid a lot of 

u n necessa ry coverage d isputes and l it igation .  There a re many legal  issues and 

potential  q u ag m i res presented by this type of operation . Whi le we certa i n ly 

respect and encourage the innovation and bel ieve this could provide a usefu l 

service for North  Dakotans ,  we bel ieve that insurance reg u lation should be 

hand led separately and with su pervision of DO I .  We do not want to see U ber 

d rivers or  the cars left u n p rotected beca use of coverage issues caused by their 

job with a TNC i n  confl ict with the long-stand ing lang uage of their Personal  Auto 

Pol icies which usua l ly excl udes coverage for th is type of commercial  activity. 

I have severa l amendments to propose . Many of you worked on a s imi lar  

b i l l  that was i n  House IBL before crossover. The Senate Tra nsportation 

comm ittee a lso d id a lot of g reat work i n  p utting th is  SB 2368 together.  The battle 

g ro u nd for us is the Appl ication on phase when a d river is logged in to work but 

n ot yet engaged to get a passenger.  I have a h a ndout that re lates to the 

proced ures involved in  logging i n7and I bel ieve U ber wil l  te l l  you if asked that they 

do have a time out featu re ava i lable that would or  could prevent inadvertent app 

o n  situations . I a lso sent you a n  ema i l  th is morn i n g  which has a video you can 

watc h .  

We urge a Do Pass of t h i s  b i l l  with t h e  amend ments I propose . I w i l l  now 

try to expla in  those and I wi l l  try to answer any q uest ions.  Tha n ks for your t ime 

and attention to th is important matter.  

P:IPWARD\Legislative 201 5\Testimony in Support of SB 2368.doc 
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Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

I o(B 
FIRST ENGROSSMENT 

ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Senators Casper, Axness , Oehlke, Sinner 

Representatives Beadle, Owens 

1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapters 26.1-40.1 and 39-34 of the North Dakota Century 

2 Code, relating to transportation network company services. 

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

4 SECTION 1. Chapter 26.1-40.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted 

5 as follows : 

6 26.1-40.1-01. Definitions. 

7 As used in this chapter and chapter 39-34, unless the context otherwise requires : 

8 

9 

10 

.l. "Application off stage" of operation means the time period when the driver is operating 

the vehicle for personal noncommercial reasons and not engaged in any manner or 

operation for the transportation network company. 

11 £. "Application on stage" means the time period the driver is logged onto the 

12 

13 

online-enabled application of a transportation network company and available for hire 

but not engaged and there is no passenger on board . 

14 ~ "Engaged stage" means the time period from the moment a participating driver 

15 

16 

17 

accepts a ride request on the transportation network company online-enabled 

application or platform until the driver completes the transaction on the online-enabled 

application or platform or until the ride is complete, whichever is later. 

18 4. "Participating driver" or "driver" means any individual who uses a vehicle in connection 

19 

20 

with a transportation network company's online-enabled application or platform to 

connect with passengers. 

21 ~ "Passengers on-board stage" means the time period when there are passengers in the 

22 

23 

24 

vehicle pursuant to the driver's participation in a transportation network company. 

Q.,. "Transportation network company" means a person operating in this state which 

provides prearranged transportation services for compensation using an 
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Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 

online-enabled application or platform to connect passengers with drivers using a ' .(,, ~ 
personal vehicle . $('Gt 

L. "Transportation network company insurance" means an insurance policy that covers a 

driver's use of a vehicle in connection with a transportation network companl s 

5 online-enabled application or platform. 

6 26.1-40.1-02. Required disclosures. 

7 1.,. A transportation network company shall disclose in writing or electronic form to 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

participating drivers. as part of its agreement with those drivers. the insurance 

coverage and limits of liability that the transportation network company provides while 

the driver uses a vehicle in connection with a transportation network company's 

online-enabled application or platform and shall advise a participating driver that the 

driver's personal automobile insurance policy may not provide coverage under the 

agreement. 

14 2., A trans ortation network com 

15 

16 

17 

personal automobile insurance policy may not provide collision or comprehensive 

coverage. under the agreement. 

18 ~ A transportation network company shall provide notice in writing or electronically to the 

19 driver instructing the driver to notify the driver's personal automobile insurer of the 

20 driver's participation in the transportation network. 

21 26.1-40.1-03. Coverage required when transportation network company application is 

22 engaged until completion of ride when the passenger has exited the vehicle. 

23 1.,. A transportation network company and any participating driver shall maintain 

24 

25 

26 

transportation network company insurance that provides for the following requirements 

that apply to transportation network company insurance during the engaged stage and 

during the passenger on-board stage. 

27 2., Transportation network company liability insurance is primary and in the amount of 

28 

29 

30 

one million dollars for death, bodily injury, and property damage. The requirements for 

the coverage required by this subdivision may be satisfied by any of the following : 

Q,. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a participating driver . 
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b. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a transportation 

network company. 

c. Any combination of subdivisions a and b. 

4 3. Transportation network company insurance coverage provided under this section also 

5 

6 

7 

provides for uninsured motorist coverage and underinsured motorist coverage in the 

amount of one million dollars anytime the driver has transportation network company 

passengers on board . 

8 4. Transportation network company insurance coverage must provide personal injury 

9 protection to drivers. pass~ngers . and pedestrians when required under chapter 

10 c. 26.~ . ~ CV )\r> W'-' 

11 ;z.& The primary insurer. in the case of insurance coverage provided under subdivision a. 

12 has the sole duty to defend and indemnify the insured. 

13 ;{ 1 Coverage under a transportation network company insurance policy may neither be 

14 dependent on a driver's personal automobile insurance policy carrier first denying a 

15 claim nor a personal automobile insurance policy carrier being required to first deny a 

16 

17 

claim. 

Li In every instance in which transportation network company insurance maintained by a 

18 participating driver to fulfill the insurance obligations of this section has excluded 

19 coverage according to its policy or ceased to exist. the transportation network 

20 company shall provide the coverage required by this section beginning with the first 

21 dollar of a cla im. 

22 26.1-40.1-04. Insurance coverage during the application on stage with no passengers 

23 in vehicle. 

24 .i. During the application on stage, the transportation network company insurance must 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

include: · 

f1. Motor vehicle liability coverage and the coverage is s~ coverage 

must include at least fifty thousand dollars per person and one hundred fifty 

thousand dollars per incident for death and bodily injury and at least fifty 

thousand dollars for property damage. ~ 

!;L Uninsured motorist coverage under 8tlbsectl~ section 26.1-40-15 .~and the 

coverage is ;s.QseRelBry . 
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~ Underinsured motorist coverage under sl'!lbseetio:h "8'f section 26.1-40-15/ and 

the coverage is ~~ ,__,_,.~?A->~~ 
ct., Personal in ·u rotection under cha ter 26.1-41 and the covera 

4 £. The requirements for coverage required by this section may be satisfied by any of the 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

following : 

Q,. Transportation network company insurance maintained by a participating driver. 

Q,_ Transportation network company insurance maintained by a transportation 

network company that provides coverage in the event that a participating driver's 

insurance policy under subsection a has ceased to exist or has been canceled or 

in the event the participating driver does not otherwise maintain transportation 

network company insurance. 

c. Any combination of subsections a and b. 

13 l A transportation network company may meet its obligations under this section through 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

a policy obtained by a participating driver pursuant to subsection a or c only if the 

transportation network company verifies that the policy is maintained by the 

participating driver and is specifically written to cover the participating driver's use of a 

vehicle in connection with a transportation network company's digital platform. 

ur~ .. _ tJ~/'i/ 
policy that does not exclude coverage. then such policy must provide ~.Q' ~~ 0 
coverage and an insurance policy maintained by the transportation network company 

under subdivision c of subsection 2 must provide excess coverage up to at least the 

23 ~ In every instance in which transportation network company insurance maintained by a 

24 participating driver to fulfill the insurance obligations of this section has lapsed or 

25 ceased to exist, the transportation network company shall provide the coverage 

26 required by this section beginning with the first dollar of a claim. 

27 26.1-40.1-05. Liability of transportation network company beyond required limits. 

28 This chapter does not limit the liability of a transportation network company arising out of an 

29 automobile accident involving a participating driver in any action for damages against a 

30 transportation network company for an amount above the required insurance coverage . 
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26.1-40.1-06. Discretionary personal insurance where offered by personal automobile 

insurer. 

A personal automobile insurer may offer an automobile liability insurance policy. or an 

amendment or endorsement to an existin 

driver. while used in connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled 

application or platform. 

26.1-40.1-07. Duty to cooperate. 

the 

In a claims coverage investigation involving a participating driver, a transportation network 

company or its insurer shall cooperate with insurers that are involved in the claims coverage 

investigation to facilitate the exchange of information , including the provision of dates and times 

at which an accident occurred involving a participating driver and the precise times that the 

participating driver logged on and off the transportation network company's online-enabled 

application or platform. 

26.1-40.1-08. Financial responsibility . 

Transportation network company insurance that meets the requirements of this chapter is 

deemed to satisfy the financial responsibility requirements of chapter 39-16. 

26.1-40.1-09. Proof of insurance. 

1.,, A participating driver of a transportation network company shall carry proof of 

transportation network company insurance coverage at all times during the driver's 

use of a vehicle in connection with a transportation network company's online-enabled 

application or platform. In the event of an accident, a participating driver shall provide 

this insurance coverage information to any other party involved in the accident, and to 

a police officer, upon request. 

£. Before the transportation network company driver is permitted to accept a request for 

transportation network company services on the transportation network company's 

digital network. a transportation network company driver shall provide a certificate of 

insurance to any affiliated transportation network company . 
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26.1-40.1-10. Authorized or eligible carrier. 

Transportation network company insurance required by this chapter may be placed with an 

insurer authorized to do business in the state or with a surplus lines insurer eligible under 

section 26.1-44-03. 

SECTION 2. Chapter 39-34 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as 

follows : 

39-34-01. Agent. 

The transportation network company must maintain a registered agent with the secretary of 

state for service of process in this state. 

39-34-02. Fare charged for services. 

The transportation network company shall provide passengers with the applicable rates 

being charged and the option to receive an estimated fare before the passenger enters the 

transportation network company driver's vehicle . 

39-34-03. Transportation driver requirements. 

_1_ Before permitting an individual to act as a transportation network company driver on its 

digital platform, the transportation network company shall : 

a. Require the individual to submit an application to the transportation network 

company, which includes information regarding the individual's address. age, 

driver's license, driving history, motor vehicle registration , automobile liability 

insurance , and other information required by the transportation network 

company; 

Q,_ Conduct . or have a third-party conduct. a local and national criminal background 

check for each applicant that must include: 

ill Multistate and multijurisdiction criminal records locator or other similar 

commercial nationwide database with validation : and 

ill National sex offender registry database: and 

~ Obtain and review a driving history research report for the individual. 

b_ The transportation network company may not permit an individual to act as a 

transportation network company driver on its digital platform who; 
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_g_,_ Has had more than three moving violations in the prior three-year period . or one 

major violation in the prior three-year period. including attempting to evade the 

police. reckless driving . or driving on a suspended or revoked license; 

Has been convicted. within the past seven years. of driving under the influence of 

drugs or alcohol. fraud . sexual offenses. use of a motor vehicle to commit a 

felony. a crime involving property damage. theft . acts of violence. or acts of terror. 

Is a match in the national sex offender registry database; 

Does not possess a valid driver's license; 

Does not possess proof of registration for the motor vehicle used to provide 

transportation network company services; 

Does not possess proof of automobile liability insurance for the motor vehicle 

used to provide transportation network company services; or 

fl Is not at least twenty-one years of age. 

39-34-04. Records. 

A trans ortation network com an shall maintain individual tri records for at least on 

from the date each tri was rovided and trans ortation network com an driver record at 

least until the~~nniversary of the date on which a transportation network compa/ry 

driver's activation on the trans ortation network com has ended . 

39-34-05. Personally identifiable information. /PIN/Mr.,!;> a-~ 
~ Tl if1 l'k ~ I b }'iv\. 

A transportation network company may not disclose any personally identifiable information o Q 11"1. 

of a transportation network company passenger except under a legal obligation or for payment 

processing. For any other disclosure, the transportation network company must obtain the 

passenger's written consent on a separate form specifically addressing passenger personal 

information before the company may disclose the passenger's personally identifiable 

information. 

39-34-06. Controlling authority. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, transportation network companies and 

transportation network company drivers are governed exclusively by this chapter and any rules 

adopted by the department consistent with this chapter. A political subdivision may not impose a 

tax on. or require a license for, a transportation network company or a transportation network 
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PAT WARD PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SB 2368 

Page 2, line 3, add "specifically" after "that" 

Page 2, line 15, replace "of when" with "that" 

Page 3, line 11 , insert after "5. " 

"Comprehensive and/or collision insurance, in an amount that is not less than the 
limits provided under the comprehensive and/or collision insurance limits 
provided by the Transportation Network Company driver's private passenger 
auto insurance policy." 

Page 3, line 11, replace "5" with "§ " 

Page 3, line 13, replace "6" with "Z" 

Page 3, line 17, replace "7" with ".ff' 

• Page 3, line 26 , replace "secondary" with "primary" 

• 

Page 3, line 30, replace "26.1-40-15.1" with "26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 3, line 30, delete "subsection 3 of" 

Page 3, line 31 , replace "secondary" with "primary" 

Page 4 , line 1, remove "subsection 2 of" 

Page 4, line 1, replace "26.1-40-15.1 " with "26.1-40-15.3" 

Page 4 , line 2, replace "secondary" with "primary" 

Page 4, line 3, replace "secondary" with "primary" 

Page 4, line 4, insert "e. Collision physical damage coverage and comprehensive 
physical damage insurance, in an amount that is not less than the limits provided under 
the comprehensive and/or collision insurance limits provided by the Transportation 
Network Company driver's private passenger auto insurance policy." 

Page 4 , remove lines 18-22 



• 

• 

• 

Page 5, line 5, replace "more" with "less" 

Page 7, line 17, change "six" to "seven" 

Page 7, line 16, after "records" insert "or trip records where an accident, collision or 
injury involving the vehicle has been reported" 

Page 7, line 18, after "network" insert "involving an accident, collision, or injury" 

P:IPWARD\Legislative 2015\Proposed Amendment to SB 2368.doc 
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Transcript of How to Use the Uber Partner App video 

Welcome to Uber. Drivers are our most imp01iant partners and we appreciate all you do 

to keep Uber running smoothly. Let's get started. 

As a driver with Uber, you're able to go online whenever you want and find people who 

need rides anywhere in your city. To load the app, tap the Uber Partner icon on your phone and 

sign-in with your user name and password. Your user name is usually your email address. Once 

you are signed into the app, select a vehicle and you will see a button that says "Go online". 

Once you are online, you will start to receive trip requests. So don't go online if you're not 

ready to drive. 

When a rider requests a trip, the driver closest to that rider automatically receives the trip 

request. That means when you get a trip request, there is no driver on the road in a better 

position to accept that trip. Your phone will staii beeping and the screen will flash. Tap the 

screen to accept. It's important that you accept most trips because it ensures that riders can get a 

ride quickly. If you are online, you are expected to accept most trip requests. Once you have 

accepted the trip, drive to the rider's pickup location. You can tap the arrow to get turn by turn 

directions. The app will automatically send the rider a notification when you are almost there. 

Tap arrived once you get to the pickup location. If your rider entered the destination, you'll here 

this sound (ring tone). If the rider did not enter the destination, you can enter it into the app. 

Your rider may not ready right away, so we suggest waiting a few minutes before calling or 

texting. Riders generally prefer text messages to phone calls but make sure you follow all 

driving laws . 



/' 

Once the rider is in your car, ask for their name to make sure it is the right person. 

Saying something like, "What is your name please?" is more effective than asking, "Are you 

Chris?" If you say that, the person could pretend to be your rider, Chris. 

All trips through Uber must be pre-arranged. According to regulations, emailing or 

picking up riders who have not requested through the app is against the law that can result in 

citations and fines. 

When you know you have the right rider, slide the blue button to begin the trip. If your 

rider entered their destination, you will see the route to the destination in your app. Confirm the 

rider's destination by asking something like, "Are we still headed to 1 1  West 53rd Street?" Tap 

the arrow for turn by turn directions to the destination. Once you arrive, slide the red button to 

end the trip. 

Payments are calculated automatically. And both you and the rider will be prompted to 

leave a rating for each other. When you are done, just tap "Go online" and you're ready to 

accept another trip. 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
Insurance Department 

March 19, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Page 2, line 3, after "that" insert "specifically" 

Page 3, line 30, remove "subsection 3 of" and replace "26.1-40-15.1" with "26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 4, line 1, remove "subsection 2 of" and replace "26.1-40-15.1 " with "26 .1-40-15.3" 

Page 4, after line 3, insert: 

"e. In the event a participating driver's vehicle has collision physical damage 
coverage and comprehensive physical damage coverage under a 
personal automobile policy, the transportation network company insurance 
coverage shall also provide collision physical damage coverage and 
comprehensive physical damage coverage in the same amounts carried 
by the participating driver's personal automobile policy and the 
transportation network company's coverage is secondary. " 

Page 4, line 9, replace "subsection" with "subdivision" 

Page 4, line 12, replace "subsections" with "subdivisions" 

Page 4, line 14, replace "subsection" with "subdivision" and after "_g" insert "of 
subsection 2" 

Page 4, line 18, replace "a personal" with "an" 

Page 5, line 4, after "that" insert "specifically" 

Renumber accordingly 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS SB 2368 

Page 1, line 20, replace "connect with" with "transport" 

Page 1, line 20, after "passengers" insert "for compensation" 

Page 1, line 23, remove "which" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "provides" with "that enables" 

Page 2, line 1, after "with" insert "independent participating" 

Page 3, line~replace "one million dollars" with "subsection 3 of section 26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 3, line 26, replace "secondary" with "primary" 

Page 3, line 27, remove the second "fifty" 

Page 3, line 28, replace "fifu" with "twenty-five" 

Page~' line 13, remove "A transportation network company may meet its obligations under this 
sectiOnthrough" 

Page 4, remove lines 14 through 22 

Page 4, line 23, remove ".i." 

Page 5, remove lines 25 through 28 

Page 6, remove lines 5 through 29 

Page 7, remove lines 1through30 

Page 8, "remove lines 1 and 2 
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SUGGESTED KEV MESSAGES FOR TNC INSURANCE COMPROMISE MODEL BILL SUPPORTERS: 

• Over the past months, state legislatures have been evaluating proposals to regulate the 
activities of Transportation Network Companies (TNCs). The auto insurance and transportation 
network industries share a mutual commitment to ensuring safe transportation options and this 
includes ensuring that transportation network companies and their drivers maintain appropriate 
automobile insurance. 

• Some of the leading auto insurance organizations and Transportation Network Companies have 
come together to urge adoption of commonsense TNC insurance rules designed to: 

o eliminate consumer confusion, 

o provide a framework for safe transportation options, and 

o support continued marketplace innovation. 

• The TNC Insurance Compromise Model Bill will help bring clarity and consistency to TNC 

insurance laws, and will: 

o enhance consumer choice, 

o increase entrepreneurial activity, and 

o bring greater stability and confidence to the transportation network industry. 

• Residents in states that have passed similar regulations have already begun to benefit from the 

clearly-defined insurance requirements for Transportation Network Companies and their 

drivers. We believe this model imposes reasonable and workable requirements for TNCs and 

their drivers and provides insurers with the ability to make sound underwriting and pricing 

decisions. We believe it will also create an environment where TNC services will thrive and also 

facilitate development of a robust insurance market for this new business model. 
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(Stat/Reg#): Transportation Network Vehicle Insurance Requirements 

A. Definitions 

1. "Personal Vehicle" means a vehicle that is used by a Transportation 
Network Company Driver in connection with providing a Prearranged 
Ride and is: 

i. Owned, leased or otherwise authorized for use by the 
Transportation Network Company Driver; and 

ii. Not a [TAXICAB, LIMOUSINE, OR FOR-HIRE VEHICLE]. 

2. "Digital network" means any online-enabled application, software, website or 
system offered or utilized by a Transportation Network Company that enables the 
prearrangement of rides with Transportation Network Company drivers. 

3. "Transportation Network Company" means a corporation, partnership, sole 
proprietorship, or other entity that is licensed pursuant to this [Chapter/Title] and 
operating in [ST A TE] that uses a digital network to connect Transportation 
Network Company Riders to Transportation Network Company Drivers who 
provide Prearranged Rides. A Transportation Network Company shall not be 
deemed to control, direct or manage the Personal Vehicles or Transportation 
Network Company Drivers that connect to its digital network, except where 
agreed to by written contract. 

4. "Transportation Network Company Driver" or "driver" means an individual 
who: 

i. Receives connections to potential passengers and related services 
from a Transportation Network Company in exchange for payment 
of a fee to the Transportation Network Company; and 

ii. Uses a Personal Vehicle to provide a Prearranged Ride to riders 
upon connection through a Digital network controlled by a 
Transportation Network Company in return for compensation or 
payment of a fee. 

5. "Transportation Network Company Rider" or "rider" means an individual or 
persons who use a Transportation Network Company's digital network to 
connect with a Transportation Network Driver who provides Prearranged Rides 
to the rider in the driver's Personal Vehicle between points chosen by the rider. 

6. "Prearranged Ride" means the provision of transportation by a driver to a rider, 
beginning when a driver accepts a ride requested by a rider through a digital 
network controlled by a Transportation Network Company, continuing while the 
driver transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last requesting rider 
departs from the Personal Vehicle. A Prearranged Ride does not include 
transportation provided using a Taxi, Limousine, or other for-hire vehicle 
pursuant to [CITE DEFINITION IN ST ATE LAW OR MOTOR CARRIER 
ACT]. 
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B. Financial Responsibility of Transportation Network Companies 

On or before [MONTH, DAY, YEAR] and thereafter, a Transportation Network Company 
Driver or Transportation Network Company on the driver's behalf shall maintain primary 
automobile insurance that: 

1. Recognizes that the driver is a Transportation Network Company Driver or otherwise 
uses a vehicle to transport passengers for compensation and covers the driver: 

i. while the driver is logged on to the Transportation Network Company's digital 
network; or 

ii. while the driver is engaged in a Prearranged Ride. 

2. The following automobile insurance requirements shall apply while a 
participating Transportation Network Company Driver is logged on to the 
Transportation Network Company's digital network and is available to receive 
transportation requests but is not engaged in a Prearranged Ride: 

i. Primary automobile liability insurance in the amount of at least $50,000 
for death and bodily injury per person, $100,000 for death and bodily 
injury per incident, and $25,000 for property damage. 

ii. [Scriveners notes: Reference by statute all other state mandated 
coverage's for motor vehicles by state financial responsibility law, UM! 
UJM, Med Pay, NF and/or PIP.] 

iii. The coverage requirements of this subsection 2 may be satisfied by any 
of the following: 
a. Automobile insurance maintained by the Transportation 

Network Company Driver; or 
b. Automobile insurance maintained by the Transportation 

Network Company; or 
c. Any combination ofsubparagraphs (a) and (b). 

3. The following automobile insurance requirements shall apply while a 
Transportation Network Company Driver is engaged in a Prearranged Ride: 

i. Primary automobile liability insurance that provides at least $1,000,000 for 
death, bodily injury and property damage; 

ii. [Scriveners notes: Reference by statute all other state mandated 
coverage's for motor vehicles by state financial responsibility law, UM/ 
UIM, Med Pay, NF and/or PIP.] 

iii. The coverage requirements of this subsection 3 may be satisfied by any 
of the following: 
a. Automobile insurance maintained by the 

Transportation Network Company Driver; or 
b. Automobile insurance maintained by the 

Transportation Network Company; or 
c. Any combination ofsubparagraphs (a) and (b). 
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4. If insurance maintained by driver in subsections 2 or 3 has lapsed or does not 
provide the required coverage, insurance maintained by a Transportation Network 
Company shall provide the coverage required by Section B beginning with the first 
dollar of a claim and have the duty to defend such claim. 

5. Coverage under an automobile insurance policy maintained by the 
Transportation Network Company shall not be dependent on a personal 
automobile insurer first denying a claim nor shall a personal automobile 
insurance policy be required to first deny a claim. 

6. Insurance required by this Section B may be placed with an insurer licensed 
under [CITE STATUTE] or with a surplus lines insurer eligible under [CITE 
STATUTE]. 

7. Insurance satisfying the requirements of this Section B shall be deemed to 
satisfy the financial responsibility requirement for a motor vehicle under 
[STATE FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATUTE]. 

8. A Transportation Network Company Driver shall carry proof of coverage 
satisfying sections B.2 and B.3 with him or her at all times during his or her use 
of a vehicle in connection with a transportation network company's digital 
network. In the event of an accident, a Transportation Network Company Driver 
shall provide this insurance coverage information to the directly interested 
parties, automobile insurers and investigating police officers, upon request 
pursuant to [INSERT ELECTRONIC ID CARD LAW OR CREATE SUCH 
LAW]. Upon such request, a Transportation Network Company Driver shall also 
disclose to directly interested parties, automobile insurers, and investigating 
police officers, whether he or she was logged on to the Transportation Network 
Company's digital network or on a Prearranged Ride at the time of an accident. 

C. Disclosures 

1. The Transportation Network Company shall disclose in writing to Transportation 
Network Company Drivers the following before they are allowed to accept a 
request for a Prearranged Ride on the Transportation Network Company's digital 
network: 

i. The insurance coverage, including the types of coverage and the limits for 
each coverage, that the Transportation Network Company provides while 
the Transportation Network Company Driver uses a Personal Vehicle in 
connection with a Transportation Network Company's digital network; and 

ii. That the Transportation Network Company Driver's own automobile 
insurance policy might not provide any coverage while the driver is 
logged on to the Transportation Network Company's digital network and 
is available to receive transportation requests or is engaged in a 
Prearranged Ride depending on its terms. 
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D. Automobile Insurance Provisions 

1. Insurers that write automobile insurance in [INSERT ST A TE] may exclude any 
and all coverage afforded under the owner's insurance policy for any loss or 
injury that occurs while a Driver is logged on to a Transportation Network 
Company's digital network or while a Driver provides a Prearranged Ride. This 
right to exclude all coverage may apply to any coverage included in an 
automobile insurance policy including, but not limited to: 

i. Liability coverage for bodily injury and property damage; 

ii. Personal injury protection coverage as defined in [CITE STATUTE]; 

iii. Uninsured and underinsured motorist coverage; 

iv . . Medical payments coverage; 

v. Comprehensive physical damage coverage; and 

vi. Collision physical damage coverage. 

Such exclusions shall apply notwithstanding any requirement under [ST A TE 
FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATUTE). Nothing in this section implies or 

requires that a personal automobile insurance policy provide coverage while the 
driver is logged on to the Transportation Network Company's digital network, 
while the driver is engaged in a Prearranged Ride or while the driver otherwise uses 
a vehicle to transport passengers for compensation. 

Nothing shall be deemed to preclude an insurer from providing coverage for the 
Transportation Network Company Driver's vehicle, if it so chose to do so by 
contract or endorsement. 

2. Automobile insurers that exclude the coverage described in Section B shall have 
no duty to defend or indemnify any claim expressly excluded thereunder. 
Nothing in this Article shall be deemed to invalidate or limit an exclusion 
contained in a policy, including any policy in use or approved for use in 
[ST ATE] prior to the enactment of this Article. 

An automobile insurer that defends or indemnifies a claim against a driver that 
is excluded under the terms of its policy, shall have a right of contribution 
against other insurers that provide automobile insurance to the same driver in 
satisfaction of the coverage requirements of Section B at the time of loss. 

3. In a claims coverage investigation, Transportation Network Companies and any 
insurer potentially providing coverage under Section B shall cooperate to 
facilitate the exchange of relevant information with directly involved parties and 
any insurer of the Transportation Network Company Driver if applicable, 
including the precise times that a Transportation Network Company Driver 
logged on and off of the Transportation Network Company's digital network in 
the twelve hour period immediately preceding and in the twelve hour period 
immediately following the accident and disclose to one another a clear 
description of the coverage, exclusions and limits provided under any 
automobile insurance maintained under Section B. 
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Which organizations support the TNC Insurance Compromise Model Bill? 

As of March 24, 2015, the American Insurance Association (AIA), the Property and Casualty Insurance 
Association of America (PCIAA), the National Association of Mutual Insurance Companies (NAMIC), State 
Farm, USAA, Farmers Insurance and Uber support the TNC Insurance Compromise Model Bill. 

Why have Uber and some of the Leading Insurers Compromised on Legislation? 

State legislatures across the country are considering TNC insurance legislation to help protect their citizens and 
encourage innovation. Several states have enacted TNC insurance laws and others are close. 

After several conversations, we found that Uber's "essential elements" were not too far from those articulated in 
the Industry Toolkit. 

The supporting insurance organizations and Uber concluded that if we could reach a compromise on the 
differences, we would ensure the proper insurance protection for consumers, and achieve more consistent 
legislative outcomes that allow both industries to innovate. 

What are the main provisions of the TNC Insurance Compromise Model Bill? 

• The model is similar to bill passed in Colorado and the pending compromise bill in New Mexico. 

• In summary the legislation accomplishes the following: 

1. Expressly permits personal auto policies to exclude coverage for TNC related driving. 

2. During Period 1, this bill would mandate primary insurance coverage of 50/100/25 and includes all state 
mandated coverages (e.g., UM or PIP). The mandate does not include comprehensive or collision 
coverages. 

)> Each of the six states that have passed TNC laws have enacted similar period 1 limits 

• CA, CO, UT= 50/100/30 

• IL, DC, VA= 50/100/25 

3. During Periods 2 and 3 when a driver has accepted a ride request and/or while the fare paying 
passenger is in the vehicle, the bill would mandate primary insurance of $1 million in liability coverage 
(up to $1 .5 in a minority of states that mandate such coverage for limos) as well as any other coverage 
mandated for limos by the state's financial responsibility laws. The mandate does not include 
comprehensive or collision . 

4. These coverage mandates can be satisfied by either a policy maintained by the TNC driver, by the TNC 
itself or a combination of both. 

5. The primary TNC coverage shall not be dependent upon a personal auto policy denying a claim before 
coverage is triggered. 

6. TNC drivers will be required to carry proof of TNC insurance coverage. 

7. TNCs must disclose to their drivers that their current personal auto policy may not provide any coverage 
for TNC related driving. 

8. After an accident, TNC drivers must disclose whether they were logged into the TNC system. 

9. Requires cooperation between TNCs and insurers involved in a coverage investigation. 

10. Grants a statutory right of contribution against TNCs for claims insurers may have erroneously paid. 

What is the main difference between the Industry Toolkit Model and this Compromise Model? 

The biggest difference is the absence of the "firewall" language that appears in the California law. The 
Compromise Model creates neither a presumption of coverage nor a presumption against coverage for TNC 
related activities. 

This bill also does not contain any mandate that TNCs or their drivers. maintain comprehensive or collision 
coverage. This was only an "optional" provision in the Industry Toolkit Model. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS SB 2368 

Page 1, line 20, replace "connect with" with "transport" 

Page 1, line 20, after "passengers" insert "for compensation" 

Page 1, line 23, remove "which" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "provides" with "that enables" 

Page 2, line 1, after "with" insert "independent participating" 

Page 2, line 3, after "that" insert "specifically" 

Page 3, line 6, replace "of one million dollars" with "under subsection 3 of section 26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 3, line 26, replace "secondary" with "ptimmy" ~C:.Y'YL~ I 

Page 3, line 27, remove the second "fifty" 

Page 3, line 28, replace "fifty" with "twenty-five" 

Page 3, line 30, remove "subsection 3 of' 

Page 3, line 30, replace "26.1-40-15.1" with "26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 4, line 1, remove "subsection 2 of' 

Page 4, line 1, replace "26.1-40-15.l" with "26.1-40-15.3" 

Page 4, line 9, replace "subsection" with "subdivision" 

Page 4, line 12, replace "subsections" with "subdivisions" 

Page 4, line 13, remove "A transportation network company may meet its obligations under this 
section through" 

Page 4, remove lines 14 through 22 

Page 4, line 23, remove ".i." 

Page 5, line 4, after "that" insert "specifically" 

Page 5, line 5, replace "more" with "less" 

Page 5, remove lines 25 through 28 

Page 6, remove lines 5 through 29 



Page 7, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 8, remove lines 1 and 2 



Prepared by the North Dakota 
Insurance Department 

March 27, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2368 

Page 2, line 6, insert section 26.1-40.1-02 

"On or before [MONTH, DAY, YEAR] and thereafter, a Transportation Network 
Company Driver or Transportation Network Company on the driver's behalf shall 
maintain primary automobile insurance that recognizes the driver as a Transportation 
Network Company Driver or otherwise uses a vehicle to transport passengers for 
compensation and covers the driver. " 

Page 2, line 27, remove "liability" 

Page 3, line 4, add after section , "is primary and" 

Page 3, line 4, remove "also" 

Page 3, line 8, after coverage add, "is primary and" 

Page 3, line 9, remove "when required" 

Page 3, line 24 , after insurance add "is primary and" 

Page 3, line 26, after coverage remove "and the coverage is secondary. The coverage" 

Page 3, line 27, after hundred remove "fifty" 

Page 3, line 30, remove "subsection 3 of" and replace "26 .1-40-15.1" with "26.1-40-15.2" 

Page 3, line 30-31 , remove "and the coverage is secondary" 

Page 4, line 1, remove "subsection 2 of" and replace "26 .1-40-15.1" with "26 .1-40-15.3" 

Page 4, line 1-2, remove "and the coverage is secondary" 

Page 4, line 3, remove "and the coverage is secondary" 

Page 4, after line 26 , insert section 26.1-40.1-06 

Insurers that write personal automobile insurance may allow no fault insurance 
coverage to be conditional on Transportation Network Company no fault 
insurance coverage pursuant to 26 .1-40.1-03 and 26 .1-40 .1-04. 



Page 4, line 9, replace "subsection" with "subdivision" 

Page 4, line 12, replace "subsections" with "subdivisions" 

Renumber accordingly 
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